
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

CABINET 
 
WEDNESDAY, 15 OCTOBER 2014 
 
11.30 AM OR AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE, WHICHEVER IS THE 
LATER, COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
 
MEMBERSHIP -  Councillor Keith Glazier (Chair)  

Councillors Nick Bennett, Bill Bentley, Chris Dowling, David Elkin (Vice 
Chair), Carl Maynard, Rupert Simmons and Sylvia Tidy 
 

 
A G E N D A  
 
1   Minutes of the meeting held on 16 September 2014  (Pages 3 - 6) 

 
2   Apologies for absence   

 
3   Disclosures of interests   

Disclosures by all members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the member regards the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct. 

 
4   Urgent items   

Notification of items which the Chair considers to be urgent and proposes to take at the 
appropriate part of the agenda. Any members who wish to raise urgent items are asked, 
wherever possible, to notify the Chair before the start of the meeting. In so doing, they 
must state the special circumstances which they consider justify the matter being 
considered urgent. 

 
5a   Scrutiny Review of Early Years Attainment: report of the Children's Services Scrutiny 

Committee  (Pages 7 - 32) 
Report by the Assistant Chief Executive  
 

5b   Early Years attainment: observations on the Scrutiny committee's report  (Pages 33 - 
44) 
Report by the Director of Children’s Services  
 

6   East Sussex Councils' "Open for Growth" Peer Challenge update  (Pages 45 - 92) 
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
 

7   East Sussex National Non Domestic Rates Pooling Agreement  (Pages 93 - 98) 
Report by the Chief Operating Officer 
 

8   Treasury Management: 2013/14 Stewardship/Half Year 2014/15 Report  (Pages 99 - 
116) 
Report by the Chief Operating Officer 
 

9   Any other items considered urgent by the Chair   
 

10   To agree which items are to be reported to the County Council   
 

 
 



 

 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 7 October 2014 
 
Contact Andy Cottell, 01273 481955,  
Email: andy.cottell@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
 
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website and the record archived for future viewing. The 
broadcast/record is accessible at 
 www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm 
 



CABINET 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Cabinet held on 16 September 2014 at County Hall, Lewes. 

 

 
35. PRESENT   - Councillor Glazier (Chair) 

Councillors Bennett, Bentley, Dowling, Elkin, Maynard,  
Simmons and Tidy   

 
 The following members spoke on the items indicated: 
    

Councillor Barnes   -  item 8 (minute 42)  
Councillor Birch   -  item 8 (minute 42)  
Councillor Ensor   -  item 8 (minute 42)  
Councillor Field   -  item 8 (minute 42)  
Councillor Forward   -  items 5, 7 and 8 (minutes 39, 41 and 42)   
Councillor Hodges   -  items 6 and 8 (minutes 40 and 42)  
Councillor St Pierre   -  item 5 (minute 39)  
Councillor S Shing   -  items 6 and 8 (minutes 40 and 42)  
Councillor Shuttleworth  -  items 7 and 8 (minutes 41 and 42)  
Councillor Stogdon   -  items 5 and 8 (minutes 39 and 42)  
Councillor Tutt    -  items 5 and 8 (minutes 39 and 42)  
Councillor Ungar   -  item 6 (minute 40)  
Councillor Webb   -  items 7 and 8 (minute 41 and 42)  
Councillor Whetstone   -  item 8 (minute 42)  

   
 
36. MINUTES  
 
36.1 The minutes of the meeting held on 22 July 2014 were agreed as a correct record.  
 
 
37. INTERESTS  
 
37.1 Councillor Field declared a prejudicial interest in item 7, in that a family member is the 
business manager at a school for children with SEN which accepts placements from the County 
Council.  
 
37.2 Councillor Tutt declared a personal interest in item 8 as the parent of a child at an East 
Sussex school, but he did not consider this to be prejudicial.  
 
 
38. REPORTS 
 
38.1 Copies of the reports referred to below are included in the minute book. 
 
 
39. COUNCIL MONITORING REPORT: QUARTER 1 2014/15  
 
39.1 The Cabinet considered a report by the Chief Executive.   
 
39.2  It was RESOLVED to (1) note the latest monitoring position for the Council;  
    (2) agree the proposed target amendment to set more challenging 
targets as set out in paragraph 2.1 of the report; and  

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



    (3) agree the adjustment to the base budget in relation to the 
treatment of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) as set in paragraph 2.5 of the report.  
 
Reason  
 
39.3 The report sets out the Council’s position and year end projections for Council Plan targets, 
Revenue Budget, Capital Programme and Savings Plan, together with risks for Quarter 1 2014/15.  
 
39.4 The three amended targets are all more challenging, with an increase in the number of on-
line learning courses delivered in libraries, increased inward investment and tourism, and reduction 
in the percentage of unclassified roads requiring maintenance.  
 
39.5 Included in the forecast overspend is a sum of £1.2m relating to an issue that has been 
identified in relation to treatment of DSG which resulted in a pressure in Children’s Services.  Use 
of flexibilities in corporate budgets this financial year will resolve this, and an adjustment to the 
base budget will be incorporated into the Medium Term Financial Plan.    
 
 
40. EFFICIENCY IMPROVEMENTS FOR MOBILE LIBRARY SERVICES  
 
40.1 The Cabinet considered a report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport.  
The Director highlighted that it was proposed to retain the stops at Cripps Corner and Dumbrells 
Court in Ditchling, in addition to the 88 sites originally proposed for retention.        
 
40.2  It was RESOLVED to (1) note the results of the Mobile Library Service consultation which 
has been undertaken from 1 May 2014 to 31 July 2014; 

(2) agree the following proposed changes to Mobile Library Services 
to be implemented on 5 January 2015: 

- To continue to visit 90 of the current 127 stops 
- To combine stops in 16 communities along the mobile library route, where there are 
two stops a mile or less apart in the same community 
- To offer alternative provision to 21 care home / sheltered housing settings via the 
Care Centre Service or the Home Library Service 
- To offer a three weekly service in place of the current fortnightly schedule; and  

(3) delegate authority to the Director of Communities, Economy and 
Transport to determine the location of stops in the 6 communities set out in Appendix 2b. 
 
Reason  
 
40.3   The Library Service have carried out a detailed communications plan to ensure that high 
quality information about proposals to change mobile library services has been received by users, 
their relatives, and key stakeholders. The consultation process has provided very useful feedback 
and comments about the proposals from residents, care homes and parish councils which will help 
the County Council to find solutions for each individual affected as well as providing alternative 
suggested locations for mobile stops which will be investigated and implemented wherever 
possible.  
 
 
41. REPORT ON THE SECOND YEAR OF THE THRIVE PROGRAMME   
 
41.1 The Cabinet considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services.   
 
41.2  It was RESOLVED to note the report and the progress made to date.  
 
 

Page 4



 
Reason  
 
41.3   The THRIVE programme was established against a background of escalating demand and 
costs for Children’s Social Care.  An external expert led an interim evaluation and the results are 
very positive.  The external opinion is that the programme is on track and delivering results in line 
with the programme change logic.    
 
 
42. OFSTED INSPECTION OF EAST SUSSEX ARRANGEMENTS FOR SCHOOL 

IMPROVEMENT      
 
42.1 The Cabinet considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services.      
 
42.2  It was RESOLVED to (1) note the report on the outcomes of the inspection as detailed in 
Appendix 1;  
    (2) note the proposals to address the findings of the inspection; and  

(3) agree to release £370,000 from the Corporate Transformation 
Fund to be targeted on the areas outlined in Appendix 2.  
 
Reason  
 
42.3  The Council is committed to improving educational outcomes for all children and young 
people in the county as part of one of its key priority outcomes, driving economic growth.  We are 
confident that we have the right strategy in place to ensure that children and young people make 
the appropriate levels of progress.     
 
 
43. ITEMS TO REPORT TO THE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
43.1 The Cabinet agreed that item 5 should be reported to the County Council.  
 
[Note: the item to be reported refers to minute 39]  
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item    5a  
Report to: 
  

Cabinet 

Date:  15 October 2014 
 

By: Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Title of Report: Scrutiny Review of Early Years Attainment 
 

Purpose of report: To provide an opportunity for the Cabinet to consider the report of the 
Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee. 

 
RECOMMENDATION – to consider any comments the Cabinet wishes to make to the 
County Council on the report of the Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 
1. Financial Appraisal 
 
1.1 Recommendation seven of the report seeks some re-allocation of existing funding to 
implement the recommendations of the Review. It is not envisaged that the implementation of the 
recommendations will result in a growth in the revenue budget of the Council.  
  
2. Background and Supporting Information 
 
2.1 The Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee has completed its review of Early Years 
attainment in East Sussex, which encompasses the early education of children from birth to five 
years of age. 
 
2.2 The Committee’s report will be submitted to the County Council on 21 October 2014 and a 
copy is attached in appendix 1. The Cabinet has the opportunity to comment to the County Council 
on the recommendations in the Scrutiny Committee’s report, although it cannot alter the report. 
Elsewhere on the agenda (item 5b) there is a separate report by the Director of Children’s 
Services commenting on the Scrutiny Committee’s report and recommendations. 
 
3. Conclusion and Reason for Recommendation  
 
3.1 Cabinet is invited to consider any comments it wishes to make to the County Council on 
the report of the Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 
Contact Officer: Martin Jenks          Tel No. 01273 481327 
 
Local member: All 
 
 
Background Documents: None 
 
 

5
Page 7

Agenda Item 5a



6
Page 8



 
Scrutiny review of early years 
attainment 
Report by the Review Board 
of the Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee 
 

 
Councillor Kathryn Field (Chair) 
Councillor Kim Forward  
Councillor Alan Shuttleworth 
Councillor Francis Whetstone 
Catherine Platten (parent governor representative) 
 

 
 

 
September 2014 
Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee – 15 September 2014 
Cabinet – 15 October 2014 
Full Council – 21 October 2014  
 

 

7
Page 9

simonb
Typewritten Text
Appendix 1

simonb_1
Typewritten Text

simonb_2
Typewritten Text

simonb_3
Typewritten Text

simonb_4
Typewritten Text



 

2 

 
 
 

Report of the scrutiny review of early years attainment 
 
 
 

Contents 
Recommendations ................................................................................................................ 3 

Overview ................................................................................................................................ 5 

Factors affecting attainment ................................................................................................ 6 

1. Home learning environment and the role of Children’s Centres .................................. 6 

2. Take up of early years education places and access .................................................... 7 

3. Structure and nature of early years provision ............................................................... 9 

4. Quality of settings ........................................................................................................... 10 

5. Qualification level of staff and training ......................................................................... 13 

Issues ................................................................................................................................... 14 

6. Funding ............................................................................................................................ 14 

Conclusions ........................................................................................................................ 16 

7. Concluding comments ................................................................................................... 16 

Appendix .............................................................................................................................. 17 

Scope and terms of reference .................................................................................... 17 
Review Board Members ............................................................................................. 17 
Witnesses ................................................................................................................... 17 
List of evidence papers ............................................................................................... 18 
Early Years Foundation Stage areas of learning and their associated early learning 
goals ........................................................................................................................... 19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

8
Page 10



 

3 

Recommendations Page 

 Home learning & Children’s Centres  
1 Children’s Centres fulfil a number of roles. However,  they should focus their work to improve 

children’s early development and educational attainment by: 

a) Conducting outreach work in order to know all the families in their area and to identify 
their needs early (children’s centres KPI 9 & 10). 

b) Co-ordinating work to support families to ensure school readiness and language 
development needs are being met (children’s centres KPI 1 & 5). 

c) Making child development progress and language development checkers available to 
all parents/carers. 

d) Providing parenting courses for parents/carers and examine ways of involving 
parents/carers in their children’s learning to improve home learning environments 
(children’s centres KPI 4). 

e) Working with Health providers to review the child development advice and guidance 
given to parents/carers from pre- birth through to age 2 in the light of the withdrawal 
of free universal antenatal classes. 

7 

2 Following the withdrawal of early years teachers from Children’s Centres, examine the 
feasibility and benefits of bringing Children’s Centres and the Early Years Improvement Team 
under the same management to strengthen the early years education role of Children’s 
Centres. 

7 

 Information for parents and carers  
3 Children attending high quality early years provision have higher levels of attainment. It is 

important for parents and carers to have good information so they can access high quality 
early years provision and understand the benefits for their children. The review board 
recommends that: 

a) Information for parents/carers on the quality of pre-school providers should be 
improved to make it easier for them to identify high quality provision in their area and 
those settings who are working with the Council to improve attainment. 

b) Information for parents/carers on the East Sussex County Council (ESCC) web site 
must be easier to find, be up to date and show the Ofsted rating for the setting 
together with the qualification level of the staff (e.g. an A-Z list of settings assessed 
as ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’ together with qualification levels of lead and support staff). 

c) The ESCC website should contain advice for parents/carers highlighting the benefits 
of choosing ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’ settings for children’s education. 
 

8 

 Transitions, assessment and the quality of early years teaching practice  
4  Attainment can be improved if pre-school early years providers work closely with primary 

schools and one another to improve transitions and school readiness, the quality of their 
assessment of children’s progress, and their teaching practice. The review board 
recommends that: 

a) The Early Years ‘Village’ and quality across the foundation stage (QUAFS) projects 
are extended to all primary schools by September 2016. 

b) Early years hubs are developed to promote good practice through clusters of 
providers and consideration be given to creating foundation stage leaders/area co-
ordinators for early years settings (a strategy is currently being introduced by the 
Early Years Team). 

c) Pre-school providers should be included in primary school alliances to facilitate the 
spreading of best practice across all settings. 

d) ESCC should take opportunities to promote pre-school provision co-located with 
primary schools, which could be either private, voluntary or maintained provision. 
 

10 

9
Page 11



 

4 

 Quality of Early Years Provision  
5 Evidence suggests that attending good quality early years provision leads to higher levels of 

attainment. However, not all provision in East Sussex is ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’ and levels of 
attainment are below national averages. The review board recommends that: 

a) ESCC continues to work with early years settings in the Ofsted categories of 
‘requires improvement/satisfactory’ and ‘inadequate’, so that at least 85% of settings 
are in Ofsted categories of  ’good’ or ‘outstanding’ by September 2015 and at least 
90% by September 2016 to ensure all parents/carers have access to a good quality 
setting in their area. 

b) The Early Years Improvement Team continue to develop programmes to tackle early 
years foundation stage (EYFS) profile weaknesses in literacy development, 
communication & language development and mathematics development. 

c) Primary schools consider including an early years specialist as part of the school 
leadership team, and governing bodies should appoint a governor with specific 
responsibility for the early years foundation stage (EYFS). 

d) ESCC should develop enhanced quality assurance measures and target those 
settings whose attainment results are not in line with their Ofsted rating. 

12 

 Qualifications and Training  
6 Evidence highlights the role that highly qualified early years practitioners have in improving 

attainment. The review board believe that ESCC should take action to improve the 
qualification levels and practice of early years leaders and staff in East Sussex. It 
recommends that: 

a) ESSC adopt a policy that all child minders and pre-school early years staff should 
hold or be working towards at least a Level 3 qualification by September 2016. Any 
prospective child minders should be required to obtain a Level 3 qualification. 

b) ESSC provide a list of preferred training providers for Level 3 early educator training 
courses and higher level training, to increase the number of early years staff and 
practitioners with higher level qualifications. 

c) The Early Years Improvement Team provide training for managers of early years 
settings in staff mentoring/supervision, appraisal and staff development to support 
the development of best practice within settings (i.e. Level 5 minimum qualification 
standards for lead practitioners). 

14 

 Funding  
7 It is recognised that the Council’s financial position may not allow additional resources to be 

invested in early years education. However, some re-allocation of resources should be 
considered to improve early years attainment as evidence suggests this will also improve 
attainment at Key Stage 1 & 2. The review board recommends that: 

a) ESCC review the allocation of funding for early years education through the 
Reconciling Policy, Performance and Resources (RPPR) process, and by agreement 
with the Schools Forum, to provide a 2 year transitional programme of resources for 
early years provision in 2015/16 and 2016/17 to fund: 

• transformative measures to raise staff qualification levels in all settings; 
• training for early years educator level 3 qualifications; 
• delivery of more quality across the foundation stage and early years village 

projects and; 
• the establishment of peer to peer quality improvement networks so that all 

providers are included within a network of providers. 
b) The East Sussex early years funding formula is changed to encourage and enable 

pre-school providers to employ well qualified staff though the use of an enhanced 
lump sum supplement for high quality providers. 

c) Officers investigate the mechanism for calculating the per child amount in the early 
years funding that ESCC receives from central government, to ensure it reflects fairly 
the needs of children in the County. 

16 

10
Page 12



 

5 

Overview 
1. The review board decided to examine the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) 

because it is the basis for a child’s education and supports later learning. There are 
possibilities to influence attainment through Children’s Centres and in other parts of 
Early Years provision. 

2. Early Years education covers children from birth up to the age of five years old. During 
this time a child may be educated at home, cared for by a child minder, attend a 
nursery or playgroup, and when they turn four years old, enter a reception class at a 
primary school.  

3. The Early Years Foundation Stage is the statutory framework published in 2012 by the 
Department for Education that sets the standards for the development, learning and 
care of children from birth to age five. Early Years providers must ensure that they meet 
the learning and development requirements as specified in the Early Years Foundation 
Stage (EYFS).  

4. In the summer term of the academic year that a child reaches age five, their progress is 
assessed against the areas of learning in the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS). A 
child is judged to have a good level of development (GLD) if they meet expected levels 
of development in the three prime areas of learning, and two specific areas of learning. 
These are: 

Prime 

• Communication and language development 

• Physical development 

• Personal, social and emotional development 

Specific 

• Literacy development 

• Mathematics development.  

5. From September 2016 the EYFS assessment will no longer be mandatory and will be 
replaced by a new baseline assessment which will be carried out when a child enters 
the reception year at primary school. 

6. In 2012/13, 44%1 of East Sussex children were assessed as having a good level of 
development (GLD) in the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS). This is below the 
national average of 52%. For children in receipt of free school meals the gap in 
educational attainment was wider, with 33% of East Sussex children achieving a good 
level of development (GLD). 

7.  The review board found there are many different types of organisations and individuals 
(providers) involved in providing a child’s early education. Some are private businesses 
such as nurseries and child minders; some are voluntary organisations; and others are 
local authority maintained primary schools and nurseries. These organisations do not 
always work closely together to enable children to move smoothly between settings 
(transitions) where their progress is monitored and their individual developmental needs 
met.  

                                                 

1 In 2013/14, initial results indicate 65.6% of children were assessed as having a good level of 
development (GLD) in the EYFS. 

11
Page 13



 

6 

8. Children do best when they have a nurturing home, attend a quality pre-school 
provision with highly qualified staff (child minders, nurseries, playgroups etc.), followed 
by a high achieving primary school. A key component of good quality early education 
provision is having well managed transitions when children move through and into the 
early education system, and are supported by highly qualified early years staff. 

9. In this report, we have identified the key factors involved in attainment and we have 
made recommendations to improve early years attainment in East Sussex. Our 
recommendations address the areas of: 

• Home learning and Children’s Centres 
• Support and Information for parents and carers 
• Transitions 
• Quality assurance 
• Staff qualifications and training 
• Funding of early years education 

Factors affecting attainment  
1. Home learning environment and the role of Children’s 
Centres 
A nurturing home 

10. A child in the early stages of development learns most from their parents and 
caregivers, but not all parents/carers have the same capacity to support their children’s 
early development. In such cases, support is available from other sources including 
Children’s Centres and for those eligible, funded nursery places for 2 year olds. 

11. The review board found that there is evidence that a nurturing home environment, 
sometimes referred to as a good ‘home learning environment’ (HLE), is an important 
factor.  Research and practice shows that involving parents/carers in their children’s 
education has a positive effect on improving attainment. An example of this is the early 
help programme which is designed to give support to children and families at an early 
stage. 

12. Other support for parents/carers such as parenting classes, adult literacy classes, and 
training are ways in which a child’s home learning environment can be improved. Key 
research suggests that a mother’s education level is closely linked with providing a 
good home learning environment and a child’s level of development. Children’s Centres 
are well placed to support parents/carers to improve a child’s home learning 
environment. 

The role of children’s centres 
13. Local authority managed Children’s Centres have an important role to play in early 

years education. They are already working with young children and their parents/carers 
in all areas of the County. The evidence suggests Children’s Centres are well placed to 
meet children’s early development needs, and in particular those children aged from 
birth to 2 years old. Their early help and outreach programmes, together with 
programmes delivered by healthcare partners, mean they can support and improve 
home learning environments. 

14. Children’s Centres provide venues at which additional nursery provision could be 
made. This may be particularly important in areas where there is a lack of high quality 
nursery places for 2 year olds, and where there are a number of children eligible for 
free nursery places. 

12
Page 14



 

7 

15. Current provision is focussed around the early help programme to provide help and 
support to the most disadvantaged children and families. In 2015, the Council will 
become responsible for commissioning health-visiting services. This provides an 
opportunity to identify and support language and communication development issues at 
an early stage, which will in turn support literacy development. 

16. The review board notes that Early Years teachers have been withdrawn from Children’s 
Centres as part of recent restructuring exercises. The review board considers that it is 
vital that Children’s Centres retain some emphasis on early years education, which was 
part of their initial role, alongside the early help programme. 

17. Children’s Centres are managed separately from the Early Years Improvement Team 
within Children’s Services Department. Although the two teams work closely together, it 
is the review board’s view that it would be beneficial if both teams were managed 
together to reinforce the early years education role that Children’s Centres have.  

18. The review board notes the consultation on the proposals to de-designate a number of 
Children’s Centres and wants to be sure that services will be continued, especially in 
areas of deprivation. 

Recommendations 
1. Children’s Centres fulfil a number of roles. However,  they should focus their work 
to improve children’s early development and educational attainment by: 

a) Conducting outreach work in order to know all the families in their area and to 
identify their needs early (children’s centres KPI 9 & 10). 

b) Co-ordinating work to support families to ensure school readiness and 
language development needs are being met (children’s centres KPI 1 & 5). 

c) Making child development progress and language development checkers 
available to all parents/carers. 

d) Providing parenting courses for parents/carers and examine ways of involving 
parents/carers in their children’s learning to improve home learning 
environments (children’s centres KPI 4). 

e) Working with Health providers to review the child development advice and 
guidance given to parents/carers from pre- birth through to age 2 in the light of 
the withdrawal of free universal antenatal classes. 

2. Following the withdrawal of early years teachers from Children’s Centres, examine 
the feasibility and benefits of bringing Children’s Centres and the Early Years 
Improvement Team under the same management to strengthen the early years 
education role of Children’s Centres. 

 
2. Take up of early years education places and access 
Take up of funded places 

19. The review board examined the level of take up of local authority funded nursery and 
pre-school places for 3 and 4 year old children. The take up levels of funded places are 
high across all areas of the County. For the most deprived 20% of children the take up 
rate was 92% in spring 2013. Therefore, the review board found that a poor take up 
rate of funded provision is not a contributing factor to the lower levels of attainment in 
East Sussex.  

13
Page 15



 

8 

20. Although poor take up does not appear to be a factor, work should continue to promote 
the entitlement to free nursery places, and to target those children who would benefit 
most from early education support. Research evidence shows that attending good 
quality pre-school provision has a positive impact on attainment.  

21. Other evidence that came to light during the review indicates that attending a nursery or 
pre-school place regularly, is as important as the number of hours a child attends. Even 
if a child cannot attend for all the hours they are entitled to (up to 15 hours per week), it 
is still beneficial for them to attend for as many hours as they can. Research studies 
have shown that it is important for children to develop positive relationships with staff. 
Attending regularly enables them to do this, to become familiar with the environment, 
and to understand what is expected of them. 

Access 
22. The Effective Pre-school and Primary Education Project (EPPE 3-11 project) is a 

research study that followed children’s progress from Early Years provision through to 
Key Stage 2. It found children who do well, go to a good quality pre-school and school 
provision. Being able to access good quality child minders, nurseries, pre-schools and 
schools is important for attainment levels.  

23. Parents and carers need to have good information about the early years provision that 
is available in their area when choosing where to send their child. They also need 
information on which type of provision would benefit their child most. 

24. The review found that information available to parents/carers about early years 
provision needs to be improved. In particular, it was difficult to find information on the 
quality of pre-school provision and the Ofsted quality rating of that provision. It was not 
always easy to see the qualification level of the staff employed to look after the 
children, or whether the child minder, nursery or pre-school was working with the 
Council (or other organisations) to improve standards. 

 

Recommendations 
3. Children attending high quality early years provision have higher levels of 
attainment. It is important for parents and carers to have good information so 
they can access high quality early years provision and understand the benefits 
for their children. The review boards recommends that: 

a) Information for parents/carers on the quality of pre-school providers 
should be improved to make it easier for them to identify high quality 
provision in their area and those settings who are working with the 
Council to improve attainment. 

b) Information for parents/carers on the East Sussex County Council (ESCC) 
web site must be easier to find, be up to date and show the Ofsted rating 
for the setting together with the qualification level of the staff (e.g. an A-Z 
list of settings assessed as ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’ together with 
qualification levels of lead and support staff). 

c) The ESCC website should contain advice for parents/carers highlighting 
the benefits of choosing ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’ settings for children’s 
education. 
 

14
Page 16



 

9 

 
3. Structure and nature of early years provision 
The structure of the early years sector 

25. There are many different types of organisation involved in providing early years 
education. Between birth and the age of 5, a child may be educated at home, go to a 
child minder, attend a nursery or playgroup and then enter the reception year at a 
primary school. A mix of private, voluntary, independent (PVI) and state maintained 
(provided by the local education authority) organisations and individuals operate the 
various types of provision.  

26. The fragmented nature of early years provision can make it difficult to maintain quality 
and consistency across a child’s early years education. This is supported by evidence 
from a number of sources including Ofsted’s Early Years annual report 2012/13. There 
is evidence that different providers do not always “trust” each other’s assessments of 
children’s development and progress against the areas of learning described in the 
Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS). 

Transitions and quality across the foundation stage. 
27. In response to the fragmented nature of early education provision, the Council’s Early 

Years Improvement Team has set up the Quality Across the Foundation Stage 
(QUAFS) and Early Years ‘Village’ pilot projects to focus on transition between pre-
school settings and the reception year in primary schools. These projects aim to 
improve the way children’s development in the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) is 
supported; how their progress is measured; how their move between establishments or 
settings is managed (transitions); and to encourage closer working relationships 
between pre-school providers such as nurseries and primary schools. 

28. The review board believe that the Early Years ‘Village’ Quality Across the Foundation 
Stage initiatives have led to an improvement in children’s attainment at the Early Years 
Foundation Stage (EYFS). At one school the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) 
outcomes improved by 5.8% compared with a County average of 1.3%. The following 
factors were found to be important in improving attainment. 

• Managing transitions to provide well connected, integrated, ‘seamless’ provision 
across the foundation stage and by developing early years foundation stage leaders. 

• Improving the EYFS assessment process by undertaking joint assessments, joint 
moderation of EYFS results and training had led to improved quality assurance. 

• School Readiness. Taking a co-ordinated approach to tackling identified weaknesses 
in the EYFS profile through literacy and mathematics support; communication and 
language development; improving self-help skills; sharing of assessments and 
identifying children with a special educational need and disability (SEND) at an 
earlier stage. 

29. In a recent Ofsted inspection of arrangements for school improvement the inspectors 
found that: “Initiatives like the ‘Village School’ in the Early Years Foundation Stage, 
where private, voluntary or independent settings are working closely with local schools, 
is helping to prepare children for school more effectively and improve the quality of 
provision”. 

30. Possible solutions to improve attainment in East Sussex could be the extension of 
projects to improve quality such as the ‘Village School’ and quality across the 
foundation stage (QUAFS). It would also be beneficial to consider initiatives to develop 
opportunities to share good practice between early years providers.  

15
Page 17



 

10 

31. This could be through the creation of foundation stage leaders and/or area co-
ordinators who would be responsible for improving early years attainment across pre-
school and primary school settings. Early years system leadership should also be 
considered when developing peer to peer support such as alliances, teaching schools 
etc. so that the foundation stage and pre-school providers are also included. 

The nature of early years providers 
32. In East Sussex, approximately 60% of children attend pre-school settings that are 

operated by private, voluntary and independent (PVI) sector organisations. The rest 
attend publicly provided maintained settings, such as nursery classes that are part of 
schools and Children’s Centres. There is evidence to suggest that levels of attainment 
are higher in other parts of the country where there are more maintained nurseries. 

33. The reason for this difference in attainment is attributed to the fact that maintained 
settings are more likely to have qualified teachers and early years practitioners, than 
PVI settings. Where nurseries and nursery classes are provided as part of primary 
school, there are better levels of attainment for young children. The impact of staff 
qualifications is explored in more detail in section 5 of the report. 

34. The review board found that there are many ‘good’ and ‘outstanding’ providers in both 
the PVI and maintained sectors located across East Sussex. It was not clear from the 
evidence, that creating more maintained provision on its own, would have a substantial 
positive impact on attainment. The review board considered that it would be appropriate 
to address the nature and structure of provision in a way that develops good practice in 
all settings e.g. through cross phase alliances of schools, nurseries and other 
providers. The review board also believes that where primary school provision is being 
reviewed, consideration should be given to creating co-located pre-school provision. 

Recommendations 
4. Attainment can be improved if pre-school early years providers work closely 
with primary schools and one another to improve transitions and school 
readiness, the quality of their assessment of children’s progress and their 
teaching practice. The review board recommends that: 

a) The Early Years ‘Village’ and quality across the foundation stage (QUAFS) 
projects are extended to all primary schools by September 2016. 

b) Early years hubs are developed to promote good practice through 
clusters of providers and consideration be given to creating foundation 
stage leaders/area co-ordinators for early years settings (a strategy is 
currently being introduced by the Early Years Team). 

c) Pre-school providers should be included in primary school alliances to 
facilitate the spreading of best practice across all settings. 

d) ESCC should take opportunities to promote pre-school provision co-
located with primary schools, which could be either private, voluntary or 
maintained provision. 

 
4. Quality of settings 

35. There is strong evidence that good quality provision leads to better attainment in the 
Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS). This is what the Department for Education (DfE) 
believe and they have highlighted the importance of having highly qualified early years 
practitioners as a way to improve attainment (see section 5 of this report). The Council 
needs to continue to work with education providers to ensure that there is good quality 
provision available to all children. 

16
Page 18



 

11 

36. An analysis of the geographical location of good quality provision revealed there are 
‘good’ and ‘outstanding’ providers in all parts of the County. However, around 20% of 
early years settings have not achieved this standard and 31% of primary schools. 
Those settings assessed as ‘requiring improvement’ (previously ‘satisfactory’) or 
‘inadequate’ should continue to be targeted for improvement.  

37. However, the picture in East Sussex is more complex than simply promoting good 
quality provision. The review board found that in 2012/13 around 82% of pre-school 
children attended a setting rated as either ‘good’ or outstanding and 80% of the early 
years settings were rated ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’, but average attainment at the Early 
Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) was still below the national average. 

38. The review board explored the reasons why the level of attainment was lower than 
expected with the number of ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’ providers. It would appear there are 
a number of factors that may influence the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) 
results. 

Foundation stage profile weaknesses 
39. Evidence from the review has identified the following areas that require improvement in 

order to increase good levels of development at the early years foundation stage 
(EYFS): 

• Literacy development. This involves encouraging children to read and write, both 
through listening to others reading, and being encouraged to begin to read and write 
themselves. 

• Communication and language development. This involves giving children 
opportunities to speak and listen in a range of situations and to develop their 
confidence and skills in expressing themselves. 

• Mathematics development. This involves providing children with opportunities to 
practise and improve their skills in counting numbers, calculating simple addition and 
subtraction problems, and to describe shapes, spaces, and measures. 

• Self-help skills (school readiness). Children manage their own basic hygiene and 
personal needs successfully, including dressing and going to the toilet 
independently. They can communicate their needs and separate confidently from 
their parent or carer. 

40. Specific programmes are being used to target these areas of weakness, such as the 
East Sussex Early Years Speech, Language and Communication Pathway used to 
improve communication and language development. The Early Years Improvement 
Team has also targeted these areas of development through it’s annual training 
programme. 

Quality assurance.  
41. There are a number of local authorities that have better results than East Sussex, who 

have a history of quality assurance. Some of these local authorities are our statistical 
neighbours (i.e. they are similar in nature) and have used quality assurance systems 
based on the rating scales used in the Effective Pre-school and Primary Education 
Project (EPPE 3-11 project). East Sussex no longer has a quality assurance scheme in 
place.  

42. The review board found evidence from the quality across the foundation stage 
approach that suggests that quality assurance is a factor in improving attainment. 
There must be a continued focus on those settings whose attainment results are not in 
line with their Ofsted rating. 

17
Page 19



 

12 

Assessment consistency 
43. It has been suggested that recent changes to the way in which the Early Years 

Foundation Stage Profile (EYFSP) is assessed have contributed to the lower results. In 
particular, assessments may have been applied too strictly and children may have been 
assessed as having lower levels of development than they actually had. Since 2013, 
additional training and moderation work has been undertaken to improve the 
consistency of assessments. It is believed that the impact of this work will be seen in 
the next set of Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) results in September 2014. 

Ofsted inspections 
44. At present, Ofsted does not separately inspect the reception year in primary schools. 

The Ofsted assessment rating is for the whole school, and may not necessarily reflect 
the quality of the reception year where the EYFS assessments are undertaken. Some 
commentators have suggested that there have been inconsistencies in the way Ofsted 
inspects the early years sector. Ofsted has announced that it will stop using consultants 
to carry out inspections in the future and is looking to adopt a more consistent approach 
to inspecting the different types of early years providers. 

Early years expertise in primary schools 
45. There is evidence that there is a lack of understanding of the Early Years Foundation 

Stage (EYFS) by primary school head teachers. Often primary school heads have more 
experience in Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2 education for older children. This is 
currently being addressed by the Early Years Improvement Team, so that the 
appropriate level of attention and focus can be given to early years education in primary 
schools. 

46. The review board recognise that arrangements for formally assessing a child’s progress 
are being changed. The review board considers that having a baseline assessment at 
the start of the reception year supports best practice and the review board believes that 
the sharing of information between phases is essential to ensure a child’s progress. 

 

Recommendations 
5. Evidence suggests that attending good quality early years provision leads to higher 
levels of attainment. However, not all provision in East Sussex is ‘good’ or 
‘outstanding’ and levels of attainment are below national averages. The review board 
recommends that: 

a) ESCC continues to work with early years settings in the Ofsted categories of 
‘requires improvement/satisfactory’ and ‘inadequate’, so that at least 85% of 
settings are in Ofsted categories of  ’good’ or ‘outstanding’ by September 2015 
and at least 90% by September 2016 to ensure all parents/carers have access 
to a good quality setting in their area. 

b) The Early Years Improvement Team continue to develop programmes to tackle 
early years foundation stage (EYFS) profile weaknesses in literacy 
development, communication & language development and mathematics 
development. 

c) Primary schools consider including an early years specialist as part of the 
school leadership team, and governing bodies should appoint a governor with 
specific responsibility for the early years foundation stage (EYFS). 

d) ESCC should develop enhanced quality assurance measures and target those 
settings whose attainment results are not in line with their Ofsted rating. 

18
Page 20



 

13 

 

 
5. Qualification level of staff and training 
Staff qualifications 

47. Evidence from a number of research reports emphasise the impact of having highly 
qualified early years teachers and practitioners in improving early years attainment. The 
Nutbrown Review commissioned by the DfE provides some detailed research and 
evidence from the UK and other countries. In particular, studies have shown the link 
between providers who have qualified teachers and degree educated leaders and 
higher levels of attainment. Research suggests that all staff involved in early years 
education should have at least a Level 3 qualification in early years education. 

48. For child minders and smaller PVI providers this may present a particular challenge, as 
having more highly qualified staff will be more expensive and may be viewed as 
unaffordable. For child minders there has been a change in focus from providing a 
service that looks after and cares for a child, to one that also educates a child. For 
example, Hampshire County Council have a policy that all child minders offering funded 
places should have a Level 3 qualification.  

49. In East Sussex there are 232 pre-school groups who provide funded early years 
places. In 111 of these, the lead practitioner for the Early Years Foundation Stage 
(EYFS) holds a qualification higher than the minimum (early years educator Level 3 
qualification), and 73 have a Foundation Degree or above. The Review Board’s 
recommendation is that lead practitioners (e.g. nursery managers and senior staff) 
should hold at least a Level 5 qualification. 

50. The review board found evidence that the level of staff qualification was one of the 
most important factors in improving attainment. This has implications for the way the 
Council funds early years education and the training it provides. 

Training 
51. The Early Years Improvement Team provide an annual training programme to support 

and meet identified training needs of early years staff and managers in East Sussex. 
Each year part of the training programme focusses on specific areas of learning 
contained within the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS). 

52. The majority of the training courses provided are short course programmes targeted 
around specific issues to meet statutory requirements, assessments, moderation or 
parts of the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) e.g. safeguarding/child protection, 
EYFS assessments, Literacy, Understanding the World etc. At present there are no 
programmes to promote higher level qualifications such as Level 3 or above. 

53. Future improvement support activity includes developing peer to peer support through 
alliances and system leadership. There are opportunities to use training as a 
mechanism to support system change and improvement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

19
Page 21



 

14 

Recommendations 
6. Evidence highlights the role that highly qualified early years practitioners have in 
improving attainment. The review board believe that ESCC should take action to 
improve the qualification levels and practice of early years leaders and staff in East 
Sussex. It recommends that: 

a) ESSC adopt a policy that all child minders and pre-school early years staff 
should hold or be working towards at least a Level 3 qualification by 
September 2016. Any prospective child minders should be required to obtain a 
Level 3 qualification. 

b) ESSC provide a list of preferred training providers for Level 3 early educator 
training courses and higher level training, to increase the number of early 
years staff and practitioners with higher level qualifications. 

c) The Early Years Improvement Team provide training for managers of early 
years settings in staff mentoring/supervision, appraisal and staff development 
to support the development of best practice within settings (i.e. Level 5 
minimum qualification standards for lead practitioners). 

 

 

Issues 
 

6. Funding 
54. The main source of funding for early years education in East Sussex comes from the 

central government Department for Education (DfE). This is from the early years ‘block’ 
of the dedicated schools grant (DSG). The early years ‘block’ provides funding for 
nursery places for 2 year old children from deprived backgrounds and funds pre-school 
places for 3 and 4 year olds. Funding for the reception year in primary schools comes 
from the schools ‘block’ of funding, which is also funds the education of older children. 

55. The early years funding in the dedicated schools grant is based on a per child amount 
multiplied by an estimate of the number of eligible children. For the financial year 
2013/14, the funding that ESCC received from central government was £3,605.96 per 
child. The amount of funding per child is based on historic expenditure levels and is not 
calculated using a needs based formula. Therefore, early years funding per child is less 
than the amount paid to some of our neighbouring authorities, who have similar levels 
of deprivation. 

Early years funding formula 
56. The School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations 2013 allow the Council to 

retain up to 20% of early years funding to pay for centrally provided services such as 
training, moderation and improvement services. At present East Sussex retains 10% of 
funding for centrally provided services. The remainder of the funding is allocated 
through the local early years funding formula to pay for ‘free’, funded, pre-school places 
for 3 and 4 year olds. 

20
Page 22



 

15 

57. The early years funding for 3 and 4 year old children pays for pre-school places of up to 
15 hours per week. The hours can be used flexibly over a minimum of 38 weeks, and 
up to a maximum of 570 hours in any one year. In 2013/14 early years providers were 
paid a base rate payment of £3.54 per hour, per child for funded places for 3 and 4 
year olds. This is one of the lowest funding rates of our statistical and geographic 
neighbouring local authorities (the highest being £4.15 per hour per child). The average 
funding rate of our statistical neighbours is £3.77 per hour, per child.  

58. The local funding formula for early years has to be agreed by the Schools Forum. The 
funding rate for early years providers has not been increased for the last 4 years until 
small increase was recently agreed. The funding rate has been increased from £3.54 to 
£3.60 per hour, per child from April 2014. 

59. The review board examined the funding formulas that are used by other authorities. It 
found that there was a wide variety of approaches, which made direct comparisons 
difficult. The East Sussex local funding formula consists of a single payment rate of 
£3.60 per hour per child, with supplements for quality of 79p per hour per child (paid to 
providers with the highest level of staff qualification) and deprivation consisting of a 
lump sum payment of £92.52 per provider. 

60. Other local authorities had more than one hourly rate that they paid pre-school 
providers, to reflect differences in the cost of some types of provision e.g. provision for 
children with disabilities. There was widespread use of additional payments to providers 
on top of the hourly rate. These additional payments (supplements) were used to pay 
for features of provision such as quality (including qualification levels of staff), levels of 
deprivation, and flexibility. The additional payments were made either by adding to the 
hourly rate paid per child, or via lump sum payment. Lump sum payments for quality 
can be important as they can incentivise PVI providers to employ more highly qualified 
staff. 

Other funded early years services 
61. There are other services for children which are funded from the Council’s main budget 

that are not part of the early years team. These are primarily the network of Children’s 
Centres around the County that provide services for children aged 0-5 and their 
families. The remainder of spending comes from an allocation of funding in the high 
needs ‘block’ to support pre-school children with disabilities and complex special 
educational needs. 

Potential changes to the way ESCC funds early years 
62. It is possible to use central government funding flexibly and to use funding from the 

schools ‘block’ to pay for early years education. A reallocation of expenditure between 
funding ‘blocks’ has to be agreed by the Schools Forum. There is an opportunity to re-
focus education funding in a different way to achieve the best outcomes for children 
over their whole school career. 

63. The way early years provision is funded can be used as a mechanism to improve the 
quality of early years provision. The Council may not be able to influence the amount of 
early years funding that it receives from central government. However, the local funding 
formula can facilitate the changes in attainment that the local authority would like to 
see. The most important issue is to ensure the Council uses the funding it gets as 
effectively as possible. 

 

 

 

21
Page 23



 

16 

Recommendations 
7. It is recognised that the Council’s financial position may not allow additional 
resources to be invested in early years education. However, some re-allocation of 
resources should be considered to improve early years attainment as evidence 
suggests this will also improve attainment at Key Stage 1 & 2. The review board 
recommends that: 

a) ESCC review the allocation of funding for early years education through the 
Reconciling Policy, Performance and Resources (RPPR) process, and by 
agreement with the Schools Forum, to provide a 2 year transitional programme 
of resources for early years provision in 2015/16 and 2016/17 to fund: 

• transformative measures to raise staff qualification levels in all settings; 
• training for early years educator level 3 qualifications; 
• delivery of more quality across the foundation stage and early years 

village projects and; 
• the establishment of peer to peer quality improvement networks so that 

all providers are included within a network of providers. 
b) The East Sussex early years funding formula is changed to encourage and 

enable pre-school providers to employ well qualified staff though the use of an 
enhanced lump sum supplement for high quality providers. 

c) Officers investigate the mechanism for calculating per child amount in the 
early years funding that ESCC receives from central government, to ensure it 
reflects fairly the needs of children in the County. 

 

Conclusions 
 

7. Concluding comments 
64. A child’s early education underpins their later learning as they progress through primary 

and secondary school. It is essential that all children get off to a good start and have 
access to high quality early years provision. 

65. The review board recognises that a child’s relationship with their parents/carers is of 
paramount importance. This should be reflected throughout a child’s early education 
and all providers should strive to have strong relationships with parents and carers. 

66. The review board found that having highly qualified early years staff, having well 
managed transitions between settings, and good relationships between settings and 
parents/carers are key components of good quality provision. It is also important that 
early years practitioners have opportunities to develop and spread best practice 
through training and peer to peer support. 

67. East Sussex has many early years settings that have been assessed by Ofsted as 
‘good’ or ‘outstanding’. However, work needs to continue to ensure that all children 
have access to good quality provision, and that this provision is effective. Children’s 
Centres should continue in their role of supporting children’s early development. 

68. The review makes a number of recommendations that can be implemented with 
existing resources. However, some re-allocation of funding may be required to bring 
about system wide improvements in early years attainment. 

22
Page 24



 

17 

Appendix 
 

Scope and terms of reference 
During 2012/13 the Children’s Services scrutiny committee noted that educational attainment 
in East Sussex was disappointing compared with many other authorities. Achieving a 
commonly accepted understanding of the underlying reasons for differences in attainment 
may provide the best chance of developing effective strategies to sustainably tackle 
underperforming schools or pupils. 

On 9 September 2013 the Children’s Services scrutiny committee established this scrutiny 
review board to investigate and report back to the committee on improving educational 
attainment in East Sussex.  

On 3 December 2013 the review board held a scoping meeting to agree the terms of 
reference for the review. It was agreed to focus on the early years stage of education as this 
is important in providing a sound basis for a child’s education and offers possibilities to 
influence attainment. Therefore, this review will examine the factors that lead to a strong and 
sustained improvement in attainment at the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS), looking 
at the performance of all early years settings. 

 

Review Board Members 
Councillors Kathryn Field (Chair), Kim Forward, Alan Shuttleworth, Francis Whetstone 

Catherine Platten (parent governor representative)  

Support to the Board was provided by the following officers: 
Fiona Wright, Assistant Director – Schools, Youth & Inclusion Support 

Ruth Szulecki, Early Years Development Manager, Early Years Improvement 

Lesley Wickham, Head of Education Improvement, Early Years Improvement 

Witnesses 
Alison Rendle and Elizabeth Funge, Head of Education Improvement. 

Diana Frankcombe, Senior Manager Governor Services & Planning 

Debbie Adams, Head of Children’s Centres Services 

Sam Attwater, Nursery Manager Oakwood Nursery 

John Greenwood, Executive Head of Oakwood Academy 

Margaret Coleman, Head Teacher Manor Primary School 

Review Board meeting dates 
3 December 2013   2 June 2014 

13 February 2014   1 July 2014 

13 March 2014   29 July 2014 

22 April 2014 

23
Page 25



 

18 

List of evidence papers 

Item Date 

Excellence For All – A strategy for education improvement in East Sussex (2013 to 
2015). 

December 2013 

Are you Ready for Your Inspection? A guide to inspections of provision on Ofsted’s 
Early Years and Childcare Registers. Ofsted.  

August 2012. 

Early Years Foundation Stage Profile Handbook 2014 – Standards & Testing 
Agency 

2013 

Reforming assessment and accountability for primary schools: government 
response to consultation on primary school assessment and accountability. DfE. 

March 2014 

Nutbrown Review – Foundations for Quality DfE. June 2012 

More Great Childcare – Raising quality and giving parents more choice. DfE  January 2013. 

Effective Pre-School and Primary Education 3-11 project. A longitudinal study 
funded by the DCSF (2003 – 2008) 

2008 

Sammons P. et al (2008) EPPE 3-11 Project: Influences on Children’s Attainment & 
Progress in Key Stage 2. 

2008 

Sound Foundations, The Sutton Trust. A review of research evidence on quality of 
Early Childhood Education and Care for children under three. 

January 2014 

Premium Policies: What schools and teachers believe will improve standards for 
poorer pupils and those in low attaining schools. The Sutton Trust. 

January 2012 

Early Education and Childcare. Statutory guidance for local authorities. DfE.  September 2013. 

Early years annual report 2012/13. Ofsted. March 2014 

Off to a flying start – assessment in reception Year: West Hove Infant School. 
Ofsted Good practice example. 

19 July 2012 

Early Years Foundation Stage Profile Attainment by Pupil Characteristics, England 
2013. DfE. 

21 November 2013 

Quality and Inequality: Do three and four year olds in deprived areas experience 
lower quality early years provision? Nuffield Foundation. 

May 2014 

Exploring trends in Early Years Education Entitlement (EYEE) take up and 
Foundation Stage outcomes. ESCC 

December 2009 

School Readiness Briefing – Learning Together Alliance and Pilot Project. Early 
Years Improvement Team, ESCC. 

March 2013 

Children’s Centres – Key Performance Indicators. ESCC. February 2014 

Early Years Improvement Team Training Strategy: 2014-15. ESCC. 2014 

 

 

  

24
Page 26



 

19 

Early Years Foundation Stage areas of learning and their associated 
early learning goals  

Prime areas of learning  
Communication and language development involves giving children opportunities to 
speak and listen in a range of situations and to develop their confidence and skills in 
expressing themselves.  

ELG 01  Listening and attention: Children listen 
attentively in a range of situations. They 
listen to stories, accurately anticipating 
key events, and respond to what they 
hear with relevant comments, questions or 
actions. They give their attention to what 
others say and respond appropriately, 
while engaged in another activity.  

ELG 02  Understanding: Children follow 
instructions involving several ideas or 
actions. They answer ‘how’ and ‘why’ 
questions about their experiences and in 
response to stories or events.  

ELG 03  Speaking: Children express themselves 
effectively, showing awareness of 
listeners’ needs. They use past, present 
and future forms accurately when talking 
about events that have happened or are 
to happen in the future. They develop their 
own narratives and explanations by 
connecting ideas or events.  

Physical development involves providing opportunities for young children to be active 
and interactive, and to develop their co-ordination, control, and movement. Children 
must also be helped to understand the importance of physical activity, and to make 
healthy choices in relation to food.  

ELG 04  Moving and handling: Children show 
good control and co-ordination in large 
and small movements. They move 
confidently in a range of ways, safely 
negotiating space. They handle 
equipment and tools effectively, including 
pencils for writing.  

ELG 05  Health and self-care: Children know the 
importance for good health of physical 
exercise and a healthy diet, and talk about 
ways to keep healthy and safe. They 
manage their own basic hygiene and 
personal needs successfully, including 
dressing and going to the toilet 
independently.  

25
Page 27



 

20 

Personal, social and emotional development involves helping children to develop a 
positive sense of themselves and others; to form positive relationships and develop 
respect for others; to develop social skills and learn how to manage their feelings; to 
understand appropriate behaviour in groups; and to have confidence in their own 
abilities.  

ELG 06  Self-confidence and self-awareness: 
Children are confident to try new activities, 
and to say why they like some activities 
more than others. They are confident to 
speak in a familiar group, will talk about 
their ideas, and will choose the resources 
they need for their chosen activities. They 
say when they do or do not need help.  

ELG 07  Managing feelings and behaviour: 
Children talk about how they and others 
show feelings, talk about their own and 
others’ behaviour, and its consequences, 
and know that some behaviour is 
unacceptable. They work as part of a 
group or class, and understand and follow 
rules. They adjust their behaviour to 
different situations, and take changes of 
routine in their stride. 

 

ELG 08  Making relationships: Children play 
cooperatively, taking turns with 
others. They take account of one 
another’s ideas about how to 
organise their activity. They show 
sensitivity to others’ needs and 
feelings, and form positive 
relationships with adults and other 
children.  

Specific areas of learning  
Literacy development involves encouraging children to read and write, both through 
listening to others reading, and being encouraged to begin to read and write 
themselves. Children must be given access to a wide range of reading materials – for 
example books, poems, and other materials to ignite their interest.  

ELG 09  Reading: Children read and understand 
simple sentences. They use phonic 
knowledge to decode regular words and 
read them aloud accurately. They also 
read some common irregular words. They 
demonstrate an understanding when 
talking with others about what they have 
read.  

26
Page 28



 

21 

ELG 10  Writing: Children use their phonic 
knowledge to write words in ways which 
match their spoken sounds. They also 
write some irregular common words. They 
write sentences which can be read by 
themselves and others. Some words are 
spelt correctly and others are phonetically 
plausible.  

Mathematics development involves providing children with opportunities to practise 
and improve their skills in counting numbers, calculating simple addition and 
subtraction problems, and to describe shapes, spaces, and measures.  

ELG 11  Numbers: Children count reliably with 
numbers from one to 20, place them in 
order and say which number is one more 
or one less than a given number. Using 
quantities and objects, they add and 
subtract two single-digit numbers and 
count on or back to find the answer. They 
solve problems, including doubling, 
halving and sharing.  

ELG 12  Shape, space and measures: Children 
use everyday language to talk about size, 
weight, capacity, position, distance, time 
and money to compare quantities and 
objects and to solve problems. They 
recognise, create and describe patterns. 
They explore characteristics of everyday 
objects and shapes and use mathematical 
language to describe them.  

Understanding of the world involves guiding children to make sense of their physical 
world and their community through opportunities to explore, observe and find out about 
people, places, technology and the environment. 

 

ELG 13  People and communities: Children talk 
about past and present events in their 
own lives and in the lives of family 
members. They know that other children 
do not always enjoy the same things, and 
are sensitive to this. They know about 
similarities and differences between 
themselves and others, and among 
families, communities and traditions.  

 

 

ELG 14  The world: Children know about 
similarities and differences in relation to 

27
Page 29



 

22 

places, objects, materials and living 
things. They talk about the features of 
their own immediate environment and 
how environments might vary from one 
another. They make observations of 
animals and plants and explain why some 
things occur, and talk about changes.  

ELG 15  Technology: Children recognise that a 
range of technology is used in places 
such as homes and schools. They select 
and use technology for particular 
purposes.  

Expressive arts and design involves supporting children to explore and play with a 
wide range of media and materials, as well as providing opportunities and 
encouragement for sharing their thoughts, ideas and feelings through a variety of 
activities in art, music, movement, dance, role play, and design and technology.  

ELG 16  Exploring and using media and 
materials: Children sing songs, make 
music and dance, and experiment with 
ways of changing them. They safely use 
and explore a variety of materials, tools 
and techniques, experimenting with 
colour, design, texture, form and function.  

ELG 17  Being imaginative: Children use what 
they have learnt about media and 
materials in original ways, thinking about 
uses and purposes. They represent their 
own ideas, thoughts and feelings through 
design and technology, art, music, dance, 
role play and stories. 

 

 

 

 

  

28
Page 30



 

23 

 

Contact officer for this review:  
Martin Jenks, Scrutiny Lead Officer 

 
Telephone: 01273 481327 
E-mail: martin.jenks@eastsussex.gov.uk 

C6F 
County Hall 
St Anne's Crescent, 
Lewes BN7 1UE 

 

 

29
Page 31

mailto:martin.jenks@eastsussex.gov.uk


30
Page 32



 

Agenda Item 5b 
Report to Cabinet  

 
Date 15 October 2014 

 
Report By Director of Children’s Services   

 
Title of Report Scrutiny Review of Early Years Attainment 

 
Purpose of Report To provide the Cabinet with the opportunity to comment on the 

report of the Scrutiny Committee Review of Early Years 
Attainment. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The Cabinet is recommended to:  
1. note and welcome the report of the Scrutiny Committee; and  
2. advise the County Council that, in considering the report of the Scrutiny Committee, 

the Council be recommended to welcome the report of the Scrutiny Committee and to  
agree the response of the Director of Children’s Services to the recommendations 
and their implementation as set out in the action plan attached as Appendix 1  to this 
report.  

 

1.  Financial Appraisal 
 

1.1 No additional resources are required. The review recommends consideration is given to 
approach Schools Forum regarding the allocation of Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) across 
early years and schools in order to address some of the ambitious areas for development. 
 
2. Supporting Information 
 
2.1 The Scrutiny Review of Early Years Attainment is welcomed by the Department because it 
recognises the importance of Early Year Outcomes as a platform for their future achievements 
and aspirations.  The recommendations of this report will demonstrate the Council’s 
commitment to raising the profile, across our providers, of the significance of the development of 
good quality early years provision throughout East Sussex.  It will make a useful contribution to 
the planned programme of further development of a rich early years experience. 
 
2.2 The action plan attached as Appendix 1, responds to the recommendations made by the 
Scrutiny Committee.  
 
3. Conclusion and Reason for Recommendation 
  
3.1 The Scrutiny Review has provided a useful insight into Early Years Attainment in East 
Sussex. It is recommended that Cabinet advise the County Council that, in considering the 
report of the Scrutiny Committee, the Council be recommended to welcome the report of the 
Scrutiny Committee and to agree the response of the Director of Children’s Services to the 
recommendations and their implementation as set out in the action plan attached as Appendix 1  
to this report..  
 
 
STUART GALLIMORE 
Director of Children’s Services 
 
Contact Officer  Lesley Wickham  Tel. No. 01323 466866 
Local member: All  
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: None  
Appendix 1 - Action Plan 
 

31
Page 33

Agenda Item 5b



32
Page 34



 

Appendix 1 

 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY REVIEW OF EARLY YEARS ATTAINMENT – ACTION PLAN 

 

SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATION DIRECTOR’S RESPONSE AND ACTION PLAN TIMESCALE 

 

 Home learning & Children’s Centres   

R1 Children’s Centres fulfil a number of roles. However,  they should 
focus their work to improve children’s early development and 
educational attainment by: 

a) Conducting outreach work in order to know all the families in 
their area and to identify their needs early (children’s centres 
KPI 9 & 10). 

b) Co-ordinating work to support families to ensure school 
readiness and language development needs are being met 
(children’s centres KPI 1 & 5). 

c) Making child development progress and language development 
checkers available to all parents/carers. 

d) Providing parenting courses for parents/carers and examine 
ways of involving parents/carers in their children’s learning to 
improve home learning environments (children’s centres KPI 4). 

Working with Health providers to review the child development 
advice and guidance given to parents/carers from pre- birth through 
to age 2 in the light of the withdrawal of free universal antenatal 
classes. 

Children’s Centres offer a range of services that encourage 
and support children’s development and activities are 
planned that address key areas of early learning. Centres 
identify those children who are at a higher risk of achieving 
poor outcomes and monitor their take up of services.  
 
Centres acknowledge that many families may find it difficult 
to access services in the designated building and do 
therefore take services out into communities, an example 
being a Come and Play session that is offered at Jarvis 
Brook, an area of need near Crowborough, which focuses on 
encouraging language development and offers a range of 
home learning suggestion for parents to take away. 
 
The focus on early communication has resulted in the 
development of an Early Communication Pathway in 
partnership with the SLES early years improvement team 
and the NHS. The pathway aims to identify children whose 
language development is delayed or at risk of delay. The use 
of language checkers, a key element of the pathway, is 
extending and these materials are now available on CZONE 
for early years setting to access. It is not planned to make 
language checkers available for parents to use 
independently as if any developmental delay is identified 
professionals need to be on hand to offer advice and 
support. 
 

 

33

P
age 35



 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY REVIEW OF EARLY YEARS ATTAINMENT – ACTION PLAN 

 

SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATION DIRECTOR’S RESPONSE AND ACTION PLAN TIMESCALE 

 
Those families who have more complex needs are offered 
support at home by the Children’s Centre keywork service. 
The keyworker will agree a plan with a family which 
addresses a range of issues which impact on a child’s 
development and readiness for school. 
 
The keywork service also offers parenting courses across 
the County in partnership with the NHS. Courses are 
scheduled in every Children’s Centre Cluster. The courses 
offered are evidence based and cover a range of issues that 
impact on children’s readiness to learn. 
 
Children’s Centres work closely with the health visiting 
service who, through the recent “Call to Action” and resulting 
expansion of the service, are now offering  a number of 
universal contacts at significant points in a child’s early 
years. Health Visitors are able to identify children who are at 
risk of developmental delay and signpost them to group 
based activity or refer them to the Team Around the Family 
(which includes the Children’s Centre keywork service) 
where support needs can be discussed and a support plan 
developed. It would be inappropriate to duplicate these 
universal contacts at a time when resources are decreasing.  
 
We have discussed with colleagues in the NHS the recent 
replacement of universal antenatal preparation classes with 
on line support. Antenatal education is not included in new 
national payment arrangements for midwifery. CCG 
colleagues, and colleagues in East Sussex Health Care 
Trust appreciate our concern about opportunities for 
expectant parents to meet each other, and the need for 

34

P
age 36



 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY REVIEW OF EARLY YEARS ATTAINMENT – ACTION PLAN 

 

SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATION DIRECTOR’S RESPONSE AND ACTION PLAN TIMESCALE 

 
additional support for the most vulnerable families. Very 
vulnerable pregnant women will receive support through the 
keywork service. In addition, however, we have developed 
plans with midwifery, health visiting and Family Nurse 
Partnership colleagues to deliver new group based support 
to young parents in Hastings. The provision is due to start in 
early October. If the model is successful it may be extended 
to vulnerable parents in other areas. 
 

R2 Following the withdrawal of early years teachers from Children’s 
Centres, examine the feasibility and benefits of bringing Children’s 
Centres and the Early Years Improvement Team under the same 
management to strengthen the early years education role of 
Children’s Centres. 

Although currently sitting in different divisions within the 
department Children’s Centres and the early years 
improvement team work closely together to ensure services 
are consistent and avoid duplication. The two services jointly 
facilitate network meetings for early years settings and have 
worked together to develop and implement the early 
communication pathway.  
 
Children’s Centres also work closely with social care 
colleagues in the delivery of early help to families with 
complex needs.  With the forthcoming transfer of 
commissioning responsibility for Health Visiting and the 
Family Nurse Partnership to the Local Authority in October 
2015, a review of the structural relationship between the 
different elements of early years provision will be 
appropriate. 

 

 Information for parents and carers   

35

P
age 37



 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY REVIEW OF EARLY YEARS ATTAINMENT – ACTION PLAN 

 

SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATION DIRECTOR’S RESPONSE AND ACTION PLAN TIMESCALE 

 
R3 Children attending high quality early years provision have higher 

levels of attainment. It is important for parents and carers to have 
good information so they can access high quality early years 
provision and understand the benefits for their children. The review 
board recommends that: 

a) Information for parents/carers on the quality of pre-school 
providers should be improved to make it easier for them to 
identify high quality provision in their area and those settings 
who are working with the Council to improve attainment. 

b) Information for parents/carers on the East Sussex County 
Council (ESCC) web site must be easier to find, be up to date 
and show the Ofsted rating for the setting together with the 
qualification level of the staff (e.g. an A-Z list of settings 
assessed as ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’ together with qualification 
levels of lead and support staff). 

c) The ESCC website should contain advice for parents/carers 
highlighting the benefits of choosing ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’ 
settings for children’s education. 

The SLES Early Years team has been exploring ways of 
improving communication with parents and carers so that 
information is more accessible and recognises the 
importance of ensuring that parents and carers receive clear 
information about the location and quality of Early Years 
settings in their area. 
 
Actions: 

 Work with Children’s Centres and other agencies to 
provide a wider network of communication links, so that 
parents and carers have a clear understanding of how to 
access appropriate Early Years provision /support for 
their children. 

 Improve the quality of information provided on the 
website. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
March 2015 

 
 
 
 

November 2014 

 Transitions, assessment and the quality of early years 
teaching practice 

  

R4 Attainment can be improved if pre-school early years providers 
work closely with primary schools and one another to improve 
transitions and school readiness, the quality of their assessment of 
children’s progress, and their teaching practice. The review board 
recommends that: 

a) The Early Years ‘Village’ and quality across the foundation 
stage (QUAFS) projects are extended to all primary schools by 

It is pleasing that the Scrutiny Review Panel has 
acknowledged the role played by the Early Years Village 
Project in improving the quality of education for children in 
East Sussex and also endorses the planned strategy to 
establish Early Years Hubs to promote good practice across 
the county. 
Actions: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

36

P
age 38



 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY REVIEW OF EARLY YEARS ATTAINMENT – ACTION PLAN 

 

SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATION DIRECTOR’S RESPONSE AND ACTION PLAN TIMESCALE 

 
September 2016. 

b) Early years hubs are developed to promote good practice 
through clusters of providers and consideration be given to 
creating foundation stage leaders/area co-ordinators for early 
years settings (a strategy is currently being introduced by the 
Early Years Team). 

c) Pre-school providers should be included in primary school 
alliances to facilitate the spreading of best practice across all 
settings. 

d) ESCC should take opportunities to promote pre-school 
provision co-located with primary schools, which could be 
private, voluntary or maintained provision. 

 Expand the successful Village Project approach to 
strengthen the transition between Early Years Providers 
and Primary Schools, by identifying schools and settings 
in each Education Improvement Partnership to develop 
at least one Village Project per area. 

 Work with a group of identified headteachers to develop 
strategically placed Early Years Hubs across the county 

 Monitor the impact of the model to strengthen Early 
Years and KS1 outcomes by collecting progress data 
and feedback. 

 
 
 

 Work with Capital Project colleagues to ensure that all 
new building projects related to expansion of places 
include pre-school provision.  

 
Outcome measures: 
 Number of schools and settings engaged in Village 

Project increased by 50%. 
 In Year progress data and end of Key Stage data shows 

at least a 5% increase from previous year. 
 
 
 
 
 

October 2014 
 
 
 
 
October 2014 
 
January  and 
April 2015 data 
collection points 
and end of Key 
Stage outcomes 
July 2015 
 
As opportunities 
arise 

 Quality of Early Years Provision   

37

P
age 39



 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY REVIEW OF EARLY YEARS ATTAINMENT – ACTION PLAN 

 

SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATION DIRECTOR’S RESPONSE AND ACTION PLAN TIMESCALE 

 

R5 Evidence suggests that attending good quality early years provision 
leads to higher levels of attainment. However, not all provision in 
East Sussex is ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’ and levels of attainment are 
below national averages. The review board recommends that: 

a) ESCC continues to work with early years settings in the Ofsted 
categories of ‘requires improvement/satisfactory’ and 
‘inadequate’, so that at least 85% of settings are in Ofsted 
categories of  ’good’ or ‘outstanding’ by September 2015 and at 
least 90% by September 2016 to ensure all parents/carers 
have access to a good quality setting in their area. 

 

 

 

 
b) The Early Years Improvement Team continue to develop 

programmes to tackle early years foundation stage (EYFS) 
profile weaknesses in literacy development, communication & 
language development and mathematics development. 

c) Primary schools consider including an early years specialist as 
part of the school leadership team, and governing bodies 
should appoint a governor with specific responsibility for the 
early years foundation stage (EYFS). 

d) ESCC should develop enhanced quality assurance measures 
and target those settings whose attainment results are not in 
line with their Ofsted rating. 

The CSD recognises the significance of high quality early 
years provision in securing the best outcomes for children 
and shares the aspirations of the Scrutiny Review to raise 
the percentage of early years settings that are in OfSTED 
categories of good or outstanding. 
Actions: 
Review the Service’s processes for support and challenge to 
Early Years settings, especially those that are inadequate’ or 
‘requires improvement’, to ensure that they provide 
appropriately robust measures for improvement. 
Outcome measure: 

 New enhanced and intensive support protocols agreed 
and communicated to settings. 

 Increase in the number of settings improving OfSTED 
grading on re-inspection. 

Training for headteachers during 2013-2014 raised their 
awareness of the importance of their engagement with the 
Early Years Foundation Stage, so that they are able to 
support and challenge their practitioners regarding the 
quality of the curriculum and assessment in their schools.  
This has had a significant impact on East Sussex 2014 
outcomes at the end of the Early Years Foundation Stage 
and has enabled headteachers to highlight to governors, the 
need to appoint highly qualified staff and allocate sufficient 
resources for further development of good quality provision 
at this key stage. 
 
 
The changes to the OfSTED framework so that the Early 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 2014 
Termly review 
- December 14  
- March 2015 
- July 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38

P
age 40



 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY REVIEW OF EARLY YEARS ATTAINMENT – ACTION PLAN 

 

SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATION DIRECTOR’S RESPONSE AND ACTION PLAN TIMESCALE 

 
Years Foundation Stage in school receives a separate 
judgement, emphasises even more, the need for schools to 
be able to access good quality training and support.  
 
Actions: 

 commissioning of specialist training in Early Years 
speech, language and communication to accelerate 
improvement in targeted schools and settings; 

 Provision of EYFS CPD training programme to increase 
the focus on writing in Reception and early mathematics; 

 Identifying schools and pre-schools where improved 
outcomes are required; 

 Provision of ELKLAN training to identified schools and 
pre-schools. 

 Ensuring that all schools report in-year ‘progress towards 
targets’ attainment data for writing and mathematics.  

 Ensuring that schools participating in targetted 
programmes provide entry and exit data, as well as 
ongoing data throughout the programme. 

Outcome measures 

Increased levels of attainment across all aspects of language 
and communication and mathematics evident in end of year 
assessment, which are above national averages. 

 
 
 
Termly 
September 2014 
Term 2 2014 and 
Term 4 2015 

 
 
 
Term 1 2014 to 
Term 4 2015 
(according to 
programme) 

 Qualifications and Training   

R6 Evidence highlights the role that highly qualified early years 
practitioners have in improving attainment. The review board 
believe that ESCC should take action to improve the qualification 
levels and practice of early years leaders and staff in East Sussex. 
It recommends that: 

The CSD endorses this view and welcomes the 
recommendation that practitioners in East Sussex should 
have access to, and be encouraged to acquire, higher levels 
of qualifications. Although a wide range of training is offered 
to all settings, the opportunity to improve qualifications is 

 
 
 
 
 

39

P
age 41



 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY REVIEW OF EARLY YEARS ATTAINMENT – ACTION PLAN 

 

SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATION DIRECTOR’S RESPONSE AND ACTION PLAN TIMESCALE 

 

a) ESSC adopt a policy that all child minders and pre-school early 
years staff should hold or be working towards at least a Level 3 
qualification by September 2016. Any prospective child minders 
should be required to obtain a Level 3 qualification. 

b) ESSC provide a list of preferred training providers for Level 3 
early educator training courses and higher level training, to 
increase the number of early years staff and practitioners with 
higher level qualifications. 

c) The Early Years Improvement Team provide training for 
managers of early years settings in staff mentoring/supervision, 
appraisal and staff development to support the development of 
best practice within settings (i.e. Level 5 minimum qualification 
standards for lead practitioners). 

limited, due to financial constraints and lack of access to 
appropriate courses. 
 
Actions: 

 Commission leadership and management 
support/training for voluntary management committees 
and owners in Early Years settings; 

 Commission induction/training for new early years 
leaders, managers and owners; 

 Investigate the possibility of part funding the costs of 
additional accredited training for EYFS staff. 
 

Outcome measures: 

 Increased number of EYFS settings with highly qualified 
staff. 

 More staff accessing courses for higher level 
qualifications. 

 

 
 

 
 
Autumn 2014 
Spring 2015 

 

 Funding   

R7 It is recognised that the Council’s financial position may not allow 
additional resources to be invested in early years education. 
However, some re-allocation of resources should be considered to 
improve early years attainment as evidence suggests this will also 
improve attainment at Key Stage 1 & 2. The review board 
recommends that: 

a) ESCC review the allocation of funding for early years education 
through the Reconciling Policy, Performance and Resources 
(RPPR) process, and by agreement with the Schools Forum, to 
provide a 2 year transitional programme of resources for early 

The CSD share the view that, in spite of the Council’s 
financial position, there is a need to investigate ways of 
allocating additional resources to the development of Early 
Years education. 
Actions: 
Prepare paper to present to Schools’ Forum on projected 
costs involved in:  
 facilitating training for early years practitioners to acquire 

higher qualifications; 
 supporting expansion of the Village Project to all schools 

 
 
 
 
 

 
November 2014 

 
 
 
 

40

P
age 42



 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY REVIEW OF EARLY YEARS ATTAINMENT – ACTION PLAN 

 

SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATION DIRECTOR’S RESPONSE AND ACTION PLAN TIMESCALE 

 
years provision in 2015/16 and 2016/17 to fund: 

 transformative measures to raise staff qualification levels in 
all settings; 

 training for early years educator level 3 qualifications; 

 delivery of more quality across the foundation stage and 
early years village projects and; 

 the establishment of peer to peer quality improvement 
networks so that all providers are included within a network 
of providers. 

b) The East Sussex early years funding formula is changed to 
encourage and enable pre-school providers to employ well 
qualified staff through the use of an enhanced lump sum 
supplement for high quality providers. 

c) Officers investigate the mechanism for calculating the per child 
amount in the early years funding that ESCC receives from 
central government, to ensure it reflects fairly the needs of 
children in the County. 

and settings in East Sussex; 
 establishing peer to peer quality improvement networks; 
 revising the funding formula for pre-school providers so 

that they are able to employ more qualified staff; 
 adjusting the level of funding per child so that it more 

fairly reflects the needs of the children in East Sussex. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

41

P
age 43



42

P
age 44



Agenda Item 6  
Report to: Cabinet  

Date: 15 October 2014 

By: Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 

Title of report: East Sussex Councils’ ‘Open for Growth’ Peer Challenge Update 

Purpose of report: To provide an update on the progress of and activities resulting from the 
East Sussex Councils’ ‘Open for Growth’ Peer Challenge 
 

 
 
Cabinet is recommended to note the progress and activities resulting from the peer challenge and 
the emerging action plan. 
 
 
1. Financial Appraisal 
1.1 No additional costs have been identified at this stage as arising from the recommendations of this 
report.  
 
2.  Background 
2.1 Peer challenge is a tool that helps councils review their performance and was developed by local 
authorities and the Local Government Association (LGA) to replace the previous national performance 
framework of inspection and assessment, which judged performance against prescribed national criteria. 
Peer challenges are improvement focused, with the scope tailored with the council(s) involved. An ‘Open 
for Growth’ peer challenge looks at how councils are supporting their local economy and businesses. 
 
2.2 All six of the East Sussex Councils (Eastbourne Borough Council, East Sussex County Council, 
Hastings Borough Council, Lewes District Council, Rother District Council and Wealden District Council) 
were to take part, and commissioned the LGA to undertake a first of its kind peer challenge across a two-
tier area. The LGA brought together an expert team from within local government and other sectors to 
assess: 

• what the councils do well to support local growth;  
• how and where the councils could do better; and  
• what businesses need from the councils to support the sector further. 

 
2.3 The East Sussex Councils identified the following five priority areas for the focus of the peer 
challenge: 

• Promotion of economic growth; 
• Planning; 
• Housing; 
• Educating and training for skills; and 
• Procurement. 

 
2.4 The peer challenge took place in March 2014, with the peer team spending a week talking to 
Members, officers and partners. In total, the challenge team met over 250 key stakeholders. 
 
2.5 A presentation of the initial findings was then delivered by the peer challenge team followed by a 
report which set out all the findings and their recommendations for next steps. The full report is attached 
as Appendix 1. 
 
2.6 Since the final report was approved in July, the local authorities have worked together using the 
recommendations in the report to develop the first stage of an Action Plan that outlined the status of the 
report’s key recommendations. In all, there are 30 recommendations across 5 key areas: (i) Leadership; 
(ii) Team East Sussex (TES); (iii) Partnership Working; (iv) Business Focus; and (v) Final Key Messages.  
 
2.7 The subsequent work carried out by all the local authorities has been to identify those 
recommendations of high importance and rank the remainder accordingly. The group soon recognised 

43
Page 45

Agenda Item 6



that the majority of the recommendations were already being progressed. The developing Action Plan 
giving the current situation on each recommendation is given at Appendix 2. 
 
2.8 Key recommendations include: 

• Production of a strong and punchy East Sussex Growth Strategy. 
• An effective, inclusive and forward looking Team East Sussex (TES).  
• Build upon the effective working relationships under the ‘Duty to co-operate’, to look at the value of 

implementing a ‘Strategic Cross Boundary Planning Infrastructure Plan’. 
• Better support to local business through the South East Shared Services Procurement Hub. 
• Establish a new East Sussex Employment and Skills Partnership Board to influence and shape 
skills and training priorities with providers. 

 
2.9 Two key recommendations recognised as ‘linked’ were specifically subject to an LGA facilitated 
workshop for the local authorities on 19 September. These were: 

• A stronger East Sussex narrative and branding that maximises our growth potential. 
• Recognise the importance of joining up the combined visitor / culture and tourism economies in 

East Sussex. 
 
2.10  The workshop was viewed as successful and was facilitated well by the LGA. The findings from 
the workshop are: 

• that all agreed with the principle of a joint East Sussex narrative and to move the process of 
defining it forward;  

• the joint production of an East Sussex ‘prospectus’ to articulate the specific offers of East 
Sussex – a ‘package’ that plays into the strengths of a ‘county of contrasts’ and;  

• the need for some new work on ‘perceptions’ to also be used as initial benchmarking and so 
test the effects of the actions. 

 
2.11 The initial workshop will be followed up with a more focused meeting to agree methods and 
timings to progress the key agreements as above. 
 
2.12  As appropriate to the individual recommendations, the Action Plan will be developed into more 
focused outcomes and timely actions. It will also be more specific about the contributions that partners will 
make to the achievement of the outcomes. This will inform (in part) the new East Sussex Growth Strategy 
and will be incorporated into the Councils’ business planning processes. 
 
3. Conclusion and Reason for Recommendation 
 
3.1 The report details the background and the work to date on the peer challenge 
recommendations and highlights how the majority of them are already being progressed, or explains 
how they will be. 
 
3.2 Continued support from authorities in carrying through the recommendations independently and 
collectively will ensure the positive working relationships already well-established further enable 
growth.   
 
RUPERT CLUBB 
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
 

  

Contact Officer: Shelagh Lorne Powell  Tel. No. 01273 482637 
Local Members: All  
   
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
None  

44
Page 46



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 1 

Investment (open for growth)  
Peer Challenge 
 
East Sussex Councils 

 
10 - 14 March 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

45
Page 47



1. The Investment (open for growth) peer challenge 
 
This is a report of the findings of an Investment (open for growth) peer challenge 
organised by the Local Government Association (LGA), in association with the Planning 
Advisory Service (PAS). The peer challenge was carried out at the invitation of the six East 
Sussex Councils and conducted by sector peers in the spirit of a ‘critical friend’ to promote 
the priority of growth for the East Sussex area. 
 
1.1 Purpose 
Councils by themselves cannot create economic growth, but they have a pivotal influence 
in creating the environment for it to flourish by being ‘open for business’. This peer 
challenge was focused on assisting the East Sussex Councils understand where their key 
areas of influence lie and to assess how effectively they are set up to support, promote 
and facilitate a positive environment for economic growth that will benefit the residents and 
businesses of East Sussex. 
 
The peer challenge aims to support the East Sussex Councils to align their services to 
facilitate and support economic growth. It is less about process and more about whether 
the vision, structures, relationships and resources are positioned to deliver this objective. 

 
1.2 The perspective and methodology 
For councils to be effective in promoting an environment conducive for economic growth, 
they need to be self-aware of their service contributions, but also to understand the factors 
that affect business or community confidence, and how decisions are made about 
investment.  
 
This peer challenge takes account of a range of background documentation but its primary 
evidence was face-to-face meetings with a range of people both from within councils and 
from partner organisations, the business community, developers and community 
organisations. Through these meetings and extensive data gathering, the team worked to 
establish how effectively the councils and their partners performed to create an 
environment for growth. 
  
Care is taken to differentiate between the common gripes levelled at council services and 
those that reflect the real experience of doing business with the East Sussex Councils and 
their partners. Such an external review is inevitably challenging. The goal is to provide a 
platform of understanding upon which recommendations can help councils meet their 
ambition for encouraging growth. 

 
1.3 The peer challenge team 
• Nick Hodgson, former Chief Executive, Derbyshire County Council 
• Councillor Spencer Flower, Leader of Dorset County Council 
• Councillor Ric Pallister, Leader of South Somerset District Council 
• Councillor Graham Chapman, Deputy Leader, Nottingham City Council 
• Daniel Mouawad, Chief Executive, South East Midlands Local Enterprise Partnership  
• Richard Alderton, Head of Planning and Development, Ashford Borough Council 
• Fiona McDiarmid, Assistant Director of Economic Development and Strategy, Norfolk 

County Council 
• Joe Keech, Chief Planner, Devon County Council 

46
Page 48



• Phillipa Silcock and Richard Crawley, Principal Advisers, Planning Advisory Service 
• Andrew Winfield and Gill Elliott, LGA Peer Challenge Managers. 
 
1.4 Areas of focus 
The focus of this peer challenge was to investigate the manner in which local government 
in East Sussex (Eastbourne Borough Council, East Sussex County Council, Hastings 
Borough Council, Lewes District Council, Rother District Council and Wealden District 
Council) are engaged in fostering economic growth within the locality, both together at the 
strategic level and separately within the communities of each borough/district. 
 
The peer challenge was asked to focus particularly on: 
• Ambition and corporate and political leadership 
• Strategic planning and partnership working 
• Promotion of economic growth and supporting businesses 
• The role of planning in economic growth 
• Housing and infrastructure needs 
• Educating and training for skills for the current and future economy 
• Procurement (in relation to support for the local economy). 
 
It is these themes that are used to structure this report. 
 
1.5 Follow up support 
The LGA and PAS make a significant contribution in investment (open for growth) peer 
challenge delivery and are keen to ensure that councils follow this up with an improvement 
programme. After the peer challenge report is finalised, PAS and the LGA offer a follow-up 
Improvement Planning day to meet the councils’ requirements and involving some 
members of the challenge team. Other support is also available from the LGA and PAS, 
and some of this is listed in Appendix 1. 

 
1.6 Thanks 
The team appreciates the welcome and hospitality provided by the East Sussex Councils 
and the candour and openness in which discussions were held. The team would like to 
thank the 250 key partners and stakeholders in the local economy from the public, private 
and third sector that they met during the process for their time and their contribution. 
  

47
Page 49



2. Executive Summary  
 
2.1 The importance of growth for East Sussex 
The former South East Plan showed that the East Sussex county economy was 
underperforming when compared to the rest of the South East. The Gross Value Added 
(GVA) per head of population is 68% of the national average and 63% of the South East 
average. 
 
The six East Sussex Councils (Eastbourne Borough Council, East Sussex County Council, 
Hastings Borough Council, Lewes District Council, Rother District Council and Wealden 
District Council) recognise the importance of economic growth and have, as such, 
prioritised it as a strategic policy objective. 
 
2.2 East Sussex is a county of contrasts and opportunities 
The East Sussex population and employment patterns are predominantly urban and much 
of this is concentrated in the major coastal communities of Bexhill, Eastbourne, Hastings, 
and Newhaven. At the same time the county contains an outstandingly beautiful 
environment recognised through the establishment of the South Downs National Park and 
the High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 
 
There is considerable and concentrated economic disadvantage particularly in Hastings 
(recognised as the 19th most deprived borough in England) but also in other coastal 
communities. There is considerable economic opportunity in both the urban and rural 
areas and the inter-connection between them is not sufficiently developed. The challenge 
is not only to achieve growth but to ensure its benefits are widely shared. 
 
East Sussex is not a homogenous economic entity. Eastbourne and Hastings are 
recognised centres of economic areas, while Lewes, as the County Town, links closely to 
Brighton and Hove and parts of Wealden have links to both the Tunbridge Wells and 
Crawley areas. The links with Gatwick, London and the continent are unique but under-
exploited assets. 
 
The population is 531,000 (ONS mid 2012 estimates) and is the lowest of the three 
counties contained in the South East Local Enterprise Partnership (SELEP). However, the 
proportion of the population over 65 years is high at 24%, where the national average is 
17%. This will have a significant impact on the future economy with a smaller population 
proportion being available for employment. It will also have a significant impact on housing 
needs for older people and their social care requirements. 
 
Although the demography, socio-economic disparities and educational attainment levels 
are challenging, there is a good foundation to deal with these and opportunities to drive 
sectors of the economy. The ‘county of contrasts’ holds great potential for developing 
niche growth sectors that may not rely on expensive road and rail infrastructure but could 
flourish with the availability of high speed broadband.  
 
However, the county needs to develop a narrative that takes account of the opportunities 
and advantages of the county and understand when to represent these with a coherent 
identity and unique selling point, which will underpin its economic growth and inclusion 
strategy. 
 

48
Page 50



2.3 Good Working Relationships  
There are extremely positive relationships apparent across all tiers of local government in 
East Sussex. East Sussex County Council (ESCC) and the five District and Borough 
Councils enjoy positive and productive working relationships.  
 
This is supported by a Joint Leaders’ and Chief Executives’ Group and a Joint Chief 
Executives’ Group, the latter includes not only councils but chief officers from the Fire and 
Rescue Service and the Police. These are important public sector forum to enable East 
Sussex-wide working. 
 
The pattern of working arrangements varies across East Sussex depending on the issues 
and how widely these are shared. For example, there is the increasingly important role of 
SELEP to direct economic growth, which covers the county areas of Essex, Kent and East 
Sussex and two Unitary Councils. The development of the SELEP strategic economic plan 
will provide an important platform for the future East Sussex economic growth strategy.  
 
Effective, county-wide strategic partnership working has been essential to co-ordinate 
activity, agree priorities and to maximise the opportunities that SELEP can offer East 
Sussex. The success of this has been seen in the higher level of funding achieved from 
some funds than would have come from a proportional allocation. This provides a good 
foundation for future working within the federated structure of SELEP. The further 
development and resourcing of Team East Sussex (TES) and effective links to strategic 
and delivery partnerships operating at the level of the functioning economies, will be 
crucial to further strategic level success in the future. 
 
An important area for future development will be to further develop opportunities for 
councils to combine resources to develop greater capacity. The recent joint waste contract 
has done much to build a climate of trust where more joint working can be considered. 
This might include joint working on projects, shared services and common performance 
standards, approaches to promoting economic growth. This might also include: 
employability hubs, development viability assessments and pre-application planning 
advice. 
 
2.4 Working in Partnership 
Successful partnership working will be important to develop the capacity to deliver 
economic growth priorities. However, this landscape should be continuously reviewed to 
check that the resources committed are delivering what was originally envisaged. 
 
Effective partnerships can provide scope for engagement across the public sector and also 
bring in more commercial and entrepreneurial skills and resources. They also provide a 
chance to build social capital through partnerships with the community and voluntary 
sector in the community. Supporting innovative partnerships will require councils to 
consider new governance arrangements that are more agile and adaptable to changing 
circumstances in which they can be confident of having effective representation and 
influence. This will only be achieved if Government enables the new federated system to 
work through effective and autonomous use of budgets and without undue bureaucracy. 
 
It will also be important that the partnership landscape is comprehensible and accessible 
and that there is a complementary fit across the piece. The partnership landscape in East 

49
Page 51



Sussex is complex and would benefit from mapping and, where necessary, review to 
ensure that partnerships remain fit for purpose and still fit together.  
 
2.5 Proximity to Major Employment Areas and Infrastructure 
The proximity to London, Gatwick airport and Brighton is important for the local economy 
and the ‘agglomeration’ effect. The Newhaven to Dieppe crossing provides access to 
mainland Europe and is poised for important development. However, transport 
infrastructure is recognised as a significant weakness for economic growth with no 
motorways in the county and only 7.4 miles of dual carriageway. The advantage of 
proximity to London is currently lessened by slow rail links. The economic potential and 
importance of Brighton and Hove which borders the county and Lewes and Newhaven in 
the west of the county is highlighted by the recent approval of the City Deal for the Greater 
Brighton City Region. 
 
The aspirations for transport infrastructure improvements extend across the county area. 
However, it will be important to acknowledge that public sector spending constraints will 
require aspirations to be tempered with pragmatism and prioritisation. This will mean that 
some aspirations will not be realised in the short-term and will require tough decisions to 
be made on which transport infrastructure bids progress and which are deferred. 
 
High speed broadband will be important for the future economy and is scheduled to be 
implemented by 2016 with area coverage of 95%. The economic opportunity presented is 
that smaller businesses could be attracted to East Sussex for the quality of life while 
successfully conducting and growing their business via high speed information 
connectivity. It will be important to map the likely broadband coverage and mobile phone 
gaps - ‘not spots’ - and make contingency plans to address these. 
 
2.6 Housing 
Housing is an essential component for economic growth, and the location of strategic 
housing growth, supported by infrastructure, will be a key component of future economic 
success. The particular issues in East Sussex are: 
• Affordability where average house prices are 7.36 times greater than earnings (the 

national average is 5.44 times). 
• A dysfunctional housing market in a number of coastal towns where comparatively 

cheap housing has contributed to a rise in the private rented sector often linked to the 
availability of benefits and low wages. 

• Spatial Strategy for housing growth. 
 

Housing issues can be linked to deprivation levels, which vary across the county in rural, 
urban and coastal areas. Hastings is the 19th worst nationally on the Index of Multiple 
Deprivation and this is partly due to the collapse of demand for visitor accommodation 
which was then often turned into poor quality rented housing creating a cycle of economic 
inactivity. 
 
Growth is supported by the councils’ good record on the delivery of housing. This is not 
just in terms of new build market and affordable housing. It is also the work and 
commitment to address housing market failure, due to the significant rise of the private 
rented sector and the quality of this housing, which is a particular issue in coastal towns. 
 

50
Page 52



The availability of development land for some coastal authorities to meet their housing 
growth requirements is a considerable constraint. The Duty to Co-operate, from the 
Localism Act 2012, will be important for councils to develop a mature discussion on 
housing and employment market areas, housing constraints and how they might work 
together to address housing growth needs and concentrate infrastructure investment 
accordingly (judged against other infrastructure priorities). This will be an important area to 
progress as economic growth will go hand in hand with the growth of mixed-tenure 
housing. 
 
There were some good examples of innovative financial models – detailed in the body of 
this report – to deliver more housing and there is good learning to be obtained from these 
to extend this further, in particular by councils working together more closely in future on 
such initiatives. 
 
2.7 Supporting Existing Businesses 
The structure of the economy in East Sussex is different to other parts of the South East.  
East Sussex is dominated by micro businesses with 85% employing fewer than 10 people. 
ESCC conducts an annual survey of 1,000 local businesses which provides good 
intelligence and is used to steer local action. 
 
However, not enough is known about the significant clusters of economic activity in East 
Sussex, their supply chain or what their future growth plans might be and how these could 
be supported. This knowledge will be important to develop as existing businesses will form 
the basis for the future economy. It will also enable potential benefits from the 
‘agglomeration’ effect of interacting with local businesses, including small and medium 
enterprises (SMEs) even at micro-business level and the attraction to new businesses to 
join and profit from these business clusters. One particular area that could benefit from 
such an approach is tourism which is a major contributor to the county economy. This is an 
area of work that should be progressed by the East Sussex Councils working together. 
 
2.8 Skills and Training 
As in many parts of the country, businesses in East Sussex have concerns that education 
leavers do not possess the employability skills that they need and expect. 
 
ESCC has recently drafted a Skills Strategy, which is about to go out to consultation with 
partners. Once approved, this should seek to be the principal strategic means to drive 
skills and training. It should seek to bind the range of different partners, working in this 
area, to work together to agreed priorities and outcomes. 
 
2.9 Procurement 
ESCC and Surrey County Council operate a joint procurement partnership which offers the 
obvious benefits of savings of economies of scale. ESCC has a target of 45% of 
procurement spend in the local area. For the current financial year, only 14% of this is with 
SMEs. The District and Borough Councils are achieving much higher rates of spend with 
SMEs. This would appear to be an area to explore further and could be progressed via the 
county-wide Procurement Hub, which encourages support to SMEs through working links 
with Chambers of Commerce and the Federation of Small Businesses. 

51
Page 53



3. Recommendations 
 
To support the East Sussex Councils achieve their priorities of growth and inward 
investment, the peer challenge team has made the following recommendations: 
 
R1: Leadership 
• Use the emerging consensus around the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP), and a 

revised East Sussex economic growth strategy, as a catalyst for driving forward the 
next round of Local Plans. 

• Raise the standards and improve the consistency of the councils’ ‘Open for Growth’ 
services including a more consistently positive and proactive approach to the delivery 
of the planning system, especially development management, in East Sussex. 

• Build consensus across the councils and develop a common and consistent strategic 
approach to support a shared vision and understanding of the role of house building as 
an economic generator and social benefit, linked to the economic growth and inclusion 
strategy. 

• Focus on a small number of achievable infrastructure projects which are essential to 
the delivery of economic growth. 

• Ensure that economic inclusion and opportunity as well as economic growth plays a 
key part in future strategy and delivery. 

• Recognition that housing growth and delivery is key to economic growth 
 

R2: Team East Sussex 
• The SEP, cited in R1.1, should be developed under the strategy and guidance of Team 

East Sussex.  
• Develop Team East Sussex as the partnership to co-ordinate the delivery vehicles for 

the East Sussex economic growth strategy in the federated structure of the LEP, to: 
o operate at a new level of maturity based on openness and trust between the 

partners 
o co-ordinate delivery vehicles; influence and advise on commissioning delivery 
o involve key public/private/third sector players as an executive driving force for the 

economic growth agenda 
o create the East Sussex ‘narrative’ which reflects the varying need and ambition 

across the county and which sets out an agreed vision for the future 
o ensure the right economic partnerships exist to deliver and initiate action and 

strategic thinking at a local and thematic level 
o encourage leadership and participation by all partners 
o operate a “light touch” approach that values innovation and creativity by all 

partners and enables rather than constrains this. 
• Map the micro and niche clusters of business activity in East Sussex so that councils 

can engage with these commercial interests to understand their needs and be better 
able to provide support. 

• Review the membership and resourcing of Team East Sussex to ensure all necessary 
stakeholders are included. 

 
R3: Partnership working  
• Be open to new opportunities to work more closely with existing partners to maximise 

outcomes, but also look out for opportunities to work with wider partners. 

52
Page 54



• Review different governance models to ensure partnerships are effective and are 
inclusive of the business sector, the third sector and community agencies to maximise 
social value and economic growth. 

• Stretch ambition and trust by combining resources, as appropriate, to improve business 
access to services and to develop collective capacity. 

• Help each other with the hard choices regarding the Duty to Co-operate whilst 
incorporating priorities across the area. 

• Branding will be essential as will the need to recognise when to market as ‘East 
Sussex’ and when to market as ‘specific areas’ of the county (understand and play to 
collective and individual strengths as necessary) in a way which maximises the 
economic growth, opportunity and benefits for businesses and residents. 
 

R4: Business focus 
• Focus procurement activities where they will have the most chances of success in 

supporting local businesses while delivering value for money. 
• Review, along with partners, procurement activities across the councils with a view to 

developing new procedures to promote and enhance opportunities for local 
businesses. 

• Continue to recognise tourism and culture across the county as important elements for 
growth and consider building resources to further support these parts of the economy. 

• Ensure that employers and business are able to influence and shape the skills and 
training priorities for the East Sussex economy with education and skills providers. 

• Review the performance of Locate East Sussex and inward investment activities, with a 
view to understanding if increased resources would deliver added value. 

 
R5: Key message 
• East Sussex is poised to accelerate growth but this needs collective vision driven by a 

strategic view. 
• Continue to build on partnerships across the county and understand when to work 

collectively and when to work independently. The consensus already achieved and the 
proven track record is the way for councils to deliver economic growth for their 
communities. This approach may require individual councils to trade some control on 
certain issues in exchange for enhanced rates of growth and prosperity across the 
county as a whole. Partnerships between councils are not constrained by Team East 
Sussex and may include additional regional, national and international working. 

• Working together and stretching the boundaries for closer working will build trust and 
lead to mature working relationships between councils and partners.  

53
Page 55



4. Detailed findings 
 
4.1 Ambition and Corporate and Political Leadership 
East Sussex is a relatively small county which has the advantage of being capable of 
mobilising quickly behind growth initiatives.  
 
There is a strong sense of ambition with all East Sussex Councils making economic 
growth a corporate priority. This is supported by committed political and managerial 
leadership. This is despite political complexities, for example the mix of political 
administrations across the area, and the churn associated with elections and the intake of 
newly elected Members. Ambition and leadership are supported by a good understanding, 
across the partners, of the issues hindering growth and often leads to consensus on what 
needs to be done to address these, for example action on infrastructure, housing linked to 
growth, school leaver skills and the creation of apprenticeships. 
 
This ambition is supported by a willingness to take brave decisions, many of them project 
based, for example, providing and securing priority funding for the Bexhill to Hastings Link 
Road, funding for high speed broadband and commitment to planned housing delivery 
targets. Further strategic land releases may be considered in future. Local Plans, through 
Examination in Public, may require a more co-ordinated infrastructure supported approach 
for schemes. 
 
This ambition and commitment is underpinned by good working relationships at both 
Member and officer levels and between authorities. This is an extremely important basis 
for collective working that enables the East Sussex Councils to set out agreed priorities 
with a single and a louder voice. 
 
Supplementing county-wide working arrangements are the several initiatives where 
districts and boroughs are working together on local priorities/issues, for example, the 
Hastings and Rother Task Force, rural business support to farming and forestry business 
and community and tourism enterprise delivered through the Wealden and Rother Rural 
(WARR) partnership. This acknowledges when natural alliances are best positioned to 
progress these issues locally, and includes options outside the county area, for example 
Lewes and Brighton and Hove and the LEP Coastal Communities Group. It will be 
important to continue to press for support for the rural economy and SMEs through the 
2015 Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs announced programmes of 
support. 
 
With the priority given to economic growth, the East Sussex Councils have ensured that 
Economic Development services are being safeguarded. However, these are still relatively 
small given the need for, and the potential of, East Sussex to create growth. It would be 
worth considering whether these resources are sufficient to deliver and whether there 
might be means to aggregate this resource to greater effect. 
 
Team East Sussex (TES) is an important vehicle that has been established to take forward 
East Sussex’s economic growth and to support the South East Local Enterprise 
Partnership (SELEP). TES is well regarded in articulating the East Sussex ‘offer’ and ‘ask’ 
within the SELEP. Its membership includes a strong business voice, and representation 
from the Chambers of Commerce and the Federation of Small Businesses, the Leaders of 

54
Page 56



each of the District/Borough Councils, ESCC and representation from the HE and FE 
sectors. 
 
Working alongside this are the Leaders’ and Chief Executives’ Group and the Chief 
Executive’s Group of East Sussex Councils, the latter of which includes senior 
representation from the Fire and Rescue Service and the Police. Both forums are 
reinforcing strong working relationships. 
 
SELEP is the largest LEP outside London in England and includes the counties of Essex, 
Kent and East Sussex as well as two Unitary Councils. It has recently moved to a 
federated structure, based on the three county areas, to allow more a local focus. This 
should offer significant advantages for East Sussex to agree its priorities at a more local 
level and to then set out these out to the wider SELEP, where this adds value. 
 
Historically, East Sussex has been successful in accessing SELEP funding. This success 
has been due in particular because East Sussex has had schemes ready (‘shovel ready’) 
for implementation. To date, it has secured £19.5m of Regional Growth Fund and Growing 
Places Fund, used for: 
• £7m to the Priory Quarter Phase 3 in Hastings 
• £1.5m for North Queensway Business Park in Hastings 
• £6m for Bexhill Business Mall 
• a further £3.6m will be secured for the Sovereign Harbour Innovation Centre at 

Eastbourne, subject to confirmation by the SELEP Board 
• £1.9m of Rural Development Fund under the Leader Programme for rural business. 
 
SELEP has £165m of European structural funds for the entire LEP area. This will be 
matched by UK Trade and Investment, the Skills Fund Agency, private leverage and 
council contributions. This funding will be available for business support, innovation and 
business, and work on skills and the reduction of worklessness. East Sussex will need to 
maintain its readiness to promote strategic delivery projects in the new funding allocations, 
with schemes for implementation, and at the same time clearly set out the East Sussex 
‘ask’ from the new federated SELEP working arrangements. 
 
The East Sussex Councils and partners on economic growth are poised at a moment of 
significant opportunity. The Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) will bid for a local Growth Deal 
and a share of the £2bn national Single Local Growth Fund. SELEP’s bid for the period 
2015-2016 proposes £148.22m Local Growth Fund for East Sussex being match funded 
by £451.31m with the aim of enabling 27,547 jobs and 32,913 homes. The bid was 
submitted at the end of March 2014.  
 
The peer challenge team believes that TES should take an increasingly important role to 
maximise the above opportunity so that it becomes the partnership to co-ordinate the 
delivery vehicles that drive economic growth. All councils will need to get behind TES even 
if it means being bold and accepting some short-term aspirational sacrifices in the interests 
of long-term economic growth and inclusion. It will also be important to ensure strong links 
between the TES and structures that perform a valuable role at the level of the functioning 
economies that exist within the county, such as the Hastings-Bexhill Task Force and Sea 
Change. Such structures can be effective mechanisms for mobilising and co-ordinating 
resources at a local level and in delivering economic initiatives. 

55
Page 57



One of the first jobs for TES, following the SEP submission, should be to work with 
partners on an economic growth and inclusion strategy. Following the SEP submission 
and determination, it will be important for the East Sussex Councils and partners to 
develop an economic growth strategy that clearly sets out the East Sussex growth 
priorities, detail on resources and leveraging, related infrastructure priorities, partner roles 
and their contributions. Implementation timelines and the allocation of project lead roles 
will be important to avoid any loss of momentum in taking this forward. 
 
4.2 Partnership Working 
There are a large number of partnerships in existence and they take up a significant 
resource to operate. It would be beneficial to review the partnerships to ensure they 
remain fit for purpose, specifically, how they link to TES. Partnerships based on functional, 
economic areas or with sound branding in their sectors will continue to be of value. 
 
At the same time there is a need to develop new partnership governance arrangements to 
encourage and enable working with social enterprise and community agencies so that 
these can assume an important and contributory role on economic growth. 
 
The East Sussex Councils have made huge strides in engaging with the community and 
voluntary organisations, mainly through the organisations who represent the voluntary 
sector and larger voluntary organisations. This work will be important to support 
community led regeneration initiatives, neighbourhood planning and to enable the 
community and voluntary sector to contribute to sustainable communities. It would be 
useful to further develop a wider understanding of the link between social value and 
economic delivery. 
 
In the midst of a public service austerity programme, it makes sense to continue to look for 
opportunities to drive up performance and efficiency through sharing resources, skills and 
best practice across councils and with other partners. This is not just to achieve financial 
efficiencies but to generate capacity and enable improved access to business advice 
services. 
 
4.3 Promotion of Economic Growth and Supporting Businesses 
East Sussex was described by partners as being “ahead of the pack” and “punching above 
its weight” while operating as the smallest partner in the largest LEP in the country outside 
of London. East Sussex has done well to have schemes ready for implementation and has 
been successful in making applications to SELEP under the Regional Growth Fund and 
the Growing Places Fund (GPF). 
 
There is an excellent delivery vehicle in place in Sea Change Sussex, an economic 
development company, which was initially started in Hastings but is being developed as a 
successful East Sussex-wide model. Sea Change Sussex has led on a number of new 
projects, including: the Hastings Priory Quarter; Hastings North Queensway Business 
Park; the Bexhill Innovation Mall and the Sovereign Harbour Business Innovation Mall at 
Eastbourne and made effective use of the GPF funding secured to date. 
 
Support and development of rural businesses has been achieved through the WARR 
partnership which successfully delivered some £2m of business and community support. 
The partnership is poised to consolidate this success through a further bid to the DEFRA 

56
Page 58



LEADER Programme from which monies are available for 2015 for the implementation of a 
second phase of rural business support. 
 
There are a number of examples of good joint working across councils, for example 
SPACES (Strategic Property Asset Collaboration in East Sussex) reviews and seeks 
opportunities to reduce the size and cost of public sector property estate throughout East 
Sussex. A ten year plan and vision for collaborative asset management in East Sussex 
has been approved, which identifies a range of short-term opportunities and long-term 
aspirational targets to: 
• achieve Capital Receipts in excess of £30m through property disposal 
• reduce property revenue costs by £10m per annum 
• reduce CO2 production by 10,000 tonnes per annum by 2020.  
 
Another example is the Newhaven project to expand the harbour and port facilities to 
enable it to secure the support base contract for the multi-million pound Rampion Offshore 
Wind Farm. This has seen all agencies coming together to ensure that a major planning 
application submitted in April/May can be determined by August with timing critical to meet 
E.ON’s requirements. Joint working has shown that, when required, authorities can 
accelerate and co-ordinate their processes to meet commercial deadlines. These joint 
working principles should be taken forward to assist in delivering other economic growth 
projects. The examples of joint working point towards a growing maturity of councils 
willingness to work together to gain capacity and achieve shared priorities and bodes well 
for future working arrangements. 
 
Locate East Sussex has an important inward investment role and is being funded by the 
East Sussex Councils, at £660,000 in a three year contract. Its purpose is to provide 
assistance with location decisions and access to funding to accelerate growth, as well as 
providing valuable connections to local planning and economic development teams. 
Locate East Sussex could be important to the creation of an environment that is more 
conducive to the growth of new and existing businesses, as well as promoting inward 
business migration. The various parts of the county offer distinctly different opportunities 
for business investment, and promotion should appropriately reflect this distinctiveness, 
rather than marketing the county as a single place. 
 
However, the Locate East Sussex has a limited marketing budget of £50,000 and the 
question that councils will need to consider is whether this will be sufficient to deliver the 
inward investment growth sought. The peer challenge team believes that for Locate East 
Sussex to deliver, the East Sussex Councils must be ambitious for its success and 
consider if the balance of resources and ambition is correct (including the longer-term 
resourcing for inward investment). The business case for increased resourcing must, 
however, be built around clear strategic outcomes. 
 
Tourism and culture are important sectors of the local economy and need to be recognised 
as essential components for future growth. For example, tourism activity in East Sussex is 
at 12.9%, higher than the national average of 10.9% and is estimated to generate £880m 
of income for the area. However, resources to support tourism are not significant across all 
councils and its importance is not appropriately reflected in the current SEP for the region. 
There are, however, more localised cultural strategies that drive much work at a borough 
and district level. Cultural activities account for 5.9% of employment in Tourism and related 
industries in East Sussex, the highest being in Lewes at 14.9%. Cultural regeneration is 

57
Page 59



recognised as a strong driver for economic growth in Hastings and Rother, and is a 
strategic priority in the Hastings and Rother Task Force’s Six Point Plan. There is already 
considerable joint work (ie. 1066 Country) and councils should consider if current models 
remain appropriate. It would be worth the East Sussex Councils considering the resources 
that each currently makes towards tourism and whether there is an opportunity to combine 
resources to gain more capacity. Also, the role of rural businesses in contributing to much 
of the tourist attraction of East Sussex’s landscape and providing facilities and 
accommodation needs to be taken into account in integrating tourism support. 
 
The team were told that the general perception was that the tourism sector was either 
‘looked down on’ (in terms of the accommodation offer and the nature of jobs created) or 
taken for granted – it’s always been here and always will be. Although, at a strategic level, 
there is recognition that tourism is a big part of the economy it will need further nurturing to 
a wider understanding that this plays an important and more sophisticated part of the 
overall economy.  
 
Important for tourism is the role and potential of the cultural environment reflected in 
various plans across the county. Helping to guide this are a number of strategic plans at a 
countywide and more localised level. The East Sussex Cultural Strategy is built around a 
number of venues and organisations highly regarded nationally and internationally. These 
include the De La Warr Pavilion, Glyndebourne and the Towner Contemporary Art Gallery. 
Other cultural and destination management strategies focus on the distinct visitor 
destinations that exist across the county. 
 
At district and borough level, the local offer is promoted separately. Whilst there are a few 
good examples of wider initiatives, for example the culture trail and the 1066 Country 
marketing brand, there seems to be general agreement that there is no identifiable 
strategic approach to marketing East Sussex. Although there was widespread agreement 
that the East Sussex tourism and cultural ‘offer’ is not well developed as a geographical 
entity, the team did not detect any emerging strategic product offer linking the ‘horizontal’ 
geographies of the Weald, South Downs and coastal into a single, coherent product that 
could be marketed and might offer more than the sum of the parts presently available. 
 
National Parks have a statutory purpose of ‘promoting, understanding and enjoyment’ 
which closely relates to tourism and recreation. It would be productive for the East Sussex 
Councils to discuss with the South Downs National Park Authority the opportunities for 
closer working on tourism, to generate additional capacity and together to further develop 
this mutually important sector. 
 
There are, however, important variations in the opportunities for using culture as a driver 
for economic growth across the county. For example, Bexhill, Eastbourne and Hastings in 
particular need to develop cultural and tourism agendas reflecting the urban, cultural, 
heritage, maritime, music, art and food festivals. These variations are distinct and often 
based on a strong sense of local heritage and innovation. 
 
There are a number of examples of joint ventures across public and private sectors, for 
example the £70m Arndale shopping centre expansion in Eastbourne; the GPF funding for 
the Innovation Mall at Sovereign Harbour, Eastbourne; the Jerwood Gallery, Hastings; the 
mixed use development at North Street, Lewes; Eastbourne’s partnership with 
CloudConnX offering superfast broadband and the Elva Business Centre, Bexhill-on-Sea. 

58
Page 60



These all show how councils and partners have worked to create viable funding packages 
to enable development. Joint ventures, and other innovative models of funding packages 
to deliver development, are essential at a time of financial constraint and they strengthen 
the partnership working approach where each has an important contribution to make. 
 
The strategic relationship between East Sussex and Brighton and Hove and other 
neighbours was not clear to the team. Lewes, by geographical proximity, has an important 
axis with Brighton and Hove and this is reinforced by the working arrangements across the 
two through the Coast to Capital LEP, the Greater Brighton City Deal arrangements and 
the Coastal West Sussex and Greater Brighton Strategic Planning Board. Brighton and 
Hove is an important hub for the East Sussex and South East regional economy, which will 
be strengthened by the recent City Deal announcement, expected to deliver: 
• 1,300 jobs in the short-term, rising to 8,500 jobs and £361m in annual GVA over the 

medium-term; 
• £173m of investment in the medium-term, creating a network of Growth Centres 

across the City Region; 
• The unlocking of sites to deliver up to 2,000 new homes over the medium-term; 
• A £1.8m integrated business support programme across the Greater Brighton and 

wider Coast to Capital Local Enterprise Partnership area. 
 
This should be incorporated into the wider East Sussex strategic planning arrangements 
for economic growth. This also applies to other strategic areas of interest that extend 
beyond the boundaries of East Sussex, for example Gatwick Airport just one hour journey 
time is of considerable strategic importance and strategically important road networks, for 
example the A21 road connecting East Sussex and Kent. The links to Ashford are 
important for economic growth in the eastern part of the county, particularly for Bexhill, 
Hastings and Rye. 
 
Businesses perceive some local authorities as difficult to access, and that 
responses/support can be too variable. The team was not able to collect sufficient 
information to assess this by district and borough but there was variable performance and 
surprisingly few examples of a common approach to working with business. Advice and 
support, such as planning advice or tendering information, are offered by a range of 
different agencies to different standards and quality levels. In particular, developers 
indicated a strong desire for meaningful, co-ordinated pre-application advice. One 
commented that “I currently just pay lip service and tick the box but I would be prepared to 
pay extra for a proper pre-application service”. There is obvious scope here for much 
stronger sharing of best practice, and adopting minimum common approaches and service 
standards, so that businesses know what to expect and can be re-assured that all councils 
are striving to offer a consistently high level of support across the county. 
 
The team saw no collective understanding of the existing or potential business/niche 
clusters in East Sussex. Although there are no large clusters, there are certainly micro and 
niche clusters that need to be better understood and which have significance within 
functioning economic areas. For example, there is a small and growing clusters of vacuum 
technology based and advanced engineering industries in the county providing valuable 
jobs and career opportunities. There is an annual survey that gathers valuable intelligence 
on business needs but there does not appear to be a structured approach to 
understanding the business sectors and niches and, from this, tailoring a means to work 
with these. SELEP has identified important contributors to the employment growth of the 

59
Page 61



area, being: finance and business services, retail, professional services, health and social 
work, construction, other business services, and distribution, hotels and catering (tourism). 
In addition, there are also other sub-sectors, of which the most important are: cultural and 
creative industries; agriculture (including wine production); offshore 
renewables/renewables and education, for example foreign language schools. It will be 
essential to have a stronger understanding of these sectors to sustain the current and 
future economy and support their growth requirements.  
 
There is an absence of a strategic economic framework to support coherent partnership 
working. Rather than an organised architecture for economic growth there appears, 
instead, to be lots of good projects and initiatives but uncertainty as to whether these 
always align with overarching priorities. It is likely that this lack of coherence is due to the 
current absence of an agreed set of priorities to deliver economic growth. Team East 
Sussex could work to provide the necessary coherence. 
 
For example, the team found insufficient growth market focus. So, historically, there has 
been a focus on projects to address deprivation (or parts of it) through public funded 
regeneration programmes. However, this funding is likely to be less readily available and 
the area will therefore need to set out its ‘offer’ and ‘ask’ more clearly according to the 
opportunity. A clear narrative that sets out East Sussex’s ‘unique selling points’ will be 
important to ‘brand’ the area and, in so doing, differentiate it from other areas when 
competing for funding. 
 
There is a lack of a consistent ‘narrative’ about East Sussex. This needs to be developed 
and balanced so that it avoids the ‘chocolate box’ presentation and includes both urban 
challenge and the traditional attraction of the countryside. The lack of a narrative could 
undermine the selling proposition to businesses and inward investment because it is not 
as clear as it needs to be. Once the narrative is developed, in tandem with an agreed set 
of economic growth and inclusion priorities, then the richness of the story will become 
evident and the area’s unique ‘offer’ and ‘ask’ clearly set out. This will be essential to 
inform the ‘branding’ of the area at county, district or other level according to the market or 
issue being addressed. 
 
The team were unable to identify an agreed single set of priorities to deliver economic 
growth across East Sussex. There is an East Sussex Strategy from 2012 which is 
acknowledged to be out of date. It is recognised that this is a major piece of work to be 
undertaken once the SEP has been submitted and the outcome known. The team regard 
this as a critically important piece of work that must set out clearly economic growth and 
inclusion priorities and be grounded on a pragmatic understanding of what can be 
implemented and resourced. 
 
Outcomes are notoriously difficult to define and capture and particularly for economic 
growth where this can be predominantly initiative/project based. However, this will be 
important in the future to evaluate the benefits of growth investment and to project the 
future economic profile and changes. 
 
Good work is being conducted with East Sussex Local Forecasting Model and economic 
impact model. The ESCC ‘programme for growth’ undertook an economic impact 
assessment to quantify economic benefits. This estimated that the programme would 

60
Page 62



generate £1.65bn GVA over twenty-five years and that for every £1 of capital investment 
there was a return of £3.40 GVA generated. 
 
Economic opportunity and inclusion is critical to long-term economic sustainability in East 
Sussex, and a key challenge will be to ensure that the opportunities of economic growth 
(ie. jobs and wealth creation) are accessible to East Sussex residents. Capturing the 
benefits of growth is as important as the growth itself. Growth that does not stimulate local 
employment and prosperity is of limited value. 
 
It will be important to build on this in the development of the economic growth strategy so 
that this can be founded on key milestones and measurable outcomes. It will be vital to 
measure achievement and to demonstrate the beneficial outcomes linked to significant 
inward investment. TES should have an important role to regularly monitor strategy 
delivery and outcome achievement. 
 
4.4 Planning 
Planning has a crucial role in delivering economic growth. For East Sussex, there is an 
important balance to be struck in promoting economic growth for sustainable communities, 
while conserving and enhancing the natural landscape that makes the county unique. 
 
It was apparent to the team that growth has sometimes been seen as a political and a 
professional ‘problem’ – particularly on whether growth might spoil the area and where 
growth should take place and be prioritised. It will be necessary for the East Sussex 
Councils to move to shared ownership of a joined-up approach to housing and economic 
growth. Housing is an essential component of economic growth; economic growth is a 
priority for all East Sussex Councils. Progressing this will need strategic management so 
that sustainable community growth is achieved with integrated infrastructure without losing 
the intrinsic richness of the East Sussex environment. 
 
This makes the development of Local Plans of great importance in setting out a spatial 
vision for each council area and for East Sussex as a whole. The Local Plans are in effect, 
the economic development strategies for each LPA and should not be seen as separate 
from the overall delivery of economic growth. Good progress has and is continuing to be 
made in developing the Local Plan framework for the East Sussex area, with adoption 
already achieved by Eastbourne, Hastings and Wealden with Rother close to adoption and 
Lewes progressing well (Lewes will be a joint Local Plan with the South Downs National 
Park Authority). It is through the certainty and encouragement of the LP process that 
investment will come. The current Government focus on housing must be balanced with 
appropriate employment and infrastructure provision to enable sustainable economic 
growth. Once adopted, the Development Planning process needs to be supported 
including through the appeal process and where historically allocated employment land 
has been under threat from residential applications. 
 
This importance of a Plan led process is supported by evidence of working together and 
an increasing realisation of the importance of co-operation, for example: 
• The recent establishment of a Strategic Planning Members’ Group is major step 

forward and should provide a sound basis for future policy development 
• There is an emerging joined-up approach to infrastructure planning and effective 

Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) development and a growing awareness of the 
importance of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 

61
Page 63



There is specific evidence of where the planning system has responded rapidly to help 
secure delivery of a major project. For example, Lewes District Council has worked in 
partnership with Newhaven Port and Properties and the County and Town Council, to put 
in place an ambitious Planning Performance Agreement for the Port which will secure an 
infrastructure investment of £35m that will help to safeguard the port’s future. 
 
Although by its nature the plan-making process is slow, the submission of the SEP should 
be a catalyst for developing a more joined-up approach to housing and economic planning. 
The section of the SEP dealing with East Sussex will assist in developing a shared 
strategic view of future economic and housing development, and set out the investment 
priorities. While it will necessarily take time for the next round of Local Plans to come 
forward, the East Sussex authorities could use the submission of the SEP as a basis for 
further developing their joint approach to the delivery of housing and economic 
development. In the short-term this could involve a changing emphasis in the interpretation 
of adopted policy and development management and in the longer-term by developing a 
clearer understanding of where there are direct links between housing provision and job 
growth. The submission of the SEP may also require the phasing of investment, as set out 
in Infrastructure Delivery Plans, to be revisited. There may be particular opportunities 
within functional travel to work areas and housing models for boroughs and districts to co-
operate more actively. 
 
The Duty to Co-operate (Localism Act 2011) will become increasingly important and will 
need both resourcing and strong political partnership working arrangements. The Strategic 
Planning Members’ Group could have an important role on this (this has been an item for 
discussion already), with it being evident that the Duty is becoming increasing important 
for Local Plans’ test of soundness. It is clear that a number of the East Sussex Councils 
have major constraints on housing growth; with a combination of National Park and AONB 
being limiting factors. Nevertheless, Wealden, for example, has been able to deliver 
significant volumes of planned housing within these constraints but such levels of growth 
cannot be sustained without significant and prioritised infrastructure investment. The Duty 
can build on the good working relationships across East Sussex to explore how housing 
numbers might be met by councils working together and what the quid pro quo might be 
for councils who accept additional housing. 
 
There is an important role for the Strategic Planning Members’ Group to develop this 
further and thought may need to be given to strengthening the political support this needs 
by means of assurance of all councils through their effective representation and the ability 
to influence economic strategy. For example, this could be by the involvement of Leaders 
and agreement on how the governance of decision-making in each district can support the 
Group and enable key decisions to be made. 
 
Local Plans are often driven by the response to housing need but housing provision needs 
to be linked more clearly to economic growth objectives so that the two work in balance. 
Authorities should use their collective understanding of the area’s economic growth 
potential, in terms of scale, type and location, as one of the key drivers for future housing 
provision across East Sussex. Accepting the major environmental constraints in some 
parts of the area, this could nonetheless lead to a change in the pattern of housing 
provision if greater strategic emphasis is placed on growth in the local economy and the 
distribution of benefits of that growth. 
 

62
Page 64



Creative approaches will be needed to protect valuable employment allocations, for 
example by site purchase and joint development. This will be important to resist developer 
pressure to convert these sites into housing development.  
 
Although some councils have established quality standards for planning services 
conducive to supporting growth, development management performance in respect of 
standards and customer experience is variable, however, across county. The opportunity 
should be taken to review services across the county with a view to production of agreed 
best practice guidelines. This needs to be addressed so that applicants can not only see 
that councils are ‘open for business’ but also that they can have confidence that the 
planning service received will be broadly consistent across the county. The opportunity is 
to create a reputation for a consistent county-wide planning services working to quality 
standards, for example: pre-application advice; earlier Member involvement in 
controversial applications; early clarity on s106; monitoring performance on business 
applications which would contribute to raising planning performance. It may be useful for 
planning services to devise a set of ‘open for business’ metrics that could include 
quantitative measures, for example determination times of applications along with more 
qualitative measures, for example on jobs created, local labour agreements attached to 
major developments. 
 
The commercial world is often frustrated by the lack of speed and drive in delivering a 
planning permission. Moving from enabling to pro-actively enabling, especially on larger 
schemes, should be the aim with all statutory agencies. Effective, integrated pre-
application advice and the speedy delivery of s106 and legal agreements should be the 
aim across all councils to achieve delivering a planning permission capable of speedy 
implementation. 
 
It may be worth building on current planning officer networking arrangements to establish a 
body to mirror the Strategic Planning Members’ Group that could provide a professional 
spatial voice to support the delivery of sustainable, economic-led growth. There are 
examples of this elsewhere, for example PUSH (Promoting Urban South 
Hampshire) http://www.push.gov.uk/ (although this was based on a shared local economy 
and infrastructure). In some areas that formerly had Growth Point status, such as 
Exeter/East Devon and Teignbridge, joint delivery arrangements have been retained to 
bring forward strategic developments - including main employment sites and the delivery 
of key infrastructure investment. 
 
4.5 Housing 
There is an East Sussex Housing Officers’ Group, which includes representation from 
registered social landlords (RSLs) and from County Council services, such as Children’s 
and Adults’ Services. This is good practice that enables a strategic housing view to be 
taken to co-ordinate housing related services and support. 
 
House building is starting to pick up. The annual average is circa 1,400 dwellings a year, 
with more than 30% of completions being for affordable housing. 
 
There were examples of enhanced service delivery achieved through innovative work 
conducted by councils to address housing priorities. In particular, work on the early 
adoption of Core Strategies has enabled significant housing and economic growth to be 
delivered. Other examples of specific projects include: 

63
Page 65

http://www.push.gov.uk/


• joint funding (Hastings – the Borough Council and the Homes and Communities 
Agency (HCA) working together) 

• affordable housing at Compass Point, Bexhill (council and HCA funding) 
• 64 new build council dwellings in Wealden nearing completion for handover, with a 

further phase planned, and 163 affordable homes delivered in the district in 2012/13 
• a key site development at North Street, Lewes (including housing, community 

infrastructure, a health centre and extra care housing) 
• a joint venture at Eastbourne with the Arm’s Length Management Organisation, for the 

council’s housing stock, working with the council to buy sites to build a mix of: market 
housing for outright sale; rented housing and affordable housing. Funding comes from 
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) financial ‘headroom’ and council taking 
advantage of borrowing at lower interest rates. 

 
A notable feature of these schemes is how they have been developed to leverage external 
funding. This practice could be productively extended where councils might consider 
mechanisms to convert land or capital to work in partnership to leverage funding for 
housing development. This could be arranged as investment to realise an income stream 
while, at the same time, addressing council priorities and adding social value. Collective 
working, across local authority boundaries, offers real opportunities especially as the 
‘scaling up’ of joint venture proposals could make these viable for external investors, which 
they might not be for individual authorities. 
 
There are innovative housing models elsewhere that the East Sussex Councils might learn 
from. For example, Manchester City Council is building homes for sale and for market rent 
with HCA funding and in partnership with the Greater Manchester Pension Fund. Hackney 
London Borough Council is building new council homes for social renting through a 
programme funded by HRA ‘headroom’, cross-subsidy, rental income and shared 
ownership sales. The LGA and PAS would be happy to direct East Sussex to these and 
other examples. 
 
Good work is being conducted to address housing market failure, in particular the 
imbalance of private rented sector housing and the quality of this stock, for example in 
Hastings - Seven Streets, St Leonards. This work is important as the comparatively 
cheaper accommodation in coastal towns encourages inward migration and can “funnel” 
need into these areas. It is estimated that 58% of the East Sussex population live in 
coastal urban areas.  
 
The private sector rented sector housing imbalance is a feature of many coastal towns in 
the area, particularly in Hastings, and there is an opportunity to work on this collectively 
and share good practice. This could include licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation 
(HMOs); inspection programmes across regulatory services, including Fire and Rescue 
Services; and active liaison through landlord forums. The latter are important to improve 
housing standards, and to enable homelessness discharge into the private sector.  
 
A SELEP report, commissioned by the Coastal Communities Group, viewed housing 
market failure as an opportunity as, “housing is relatively cheap (hence viability issues) 
and development land is relatively available. Development of professionally managed 
market rented housing alongside homes for sale and affordable homes would boost the 
overall output of homes and meet a real need.” 
 

64
Page 66



However, a coherent, shared vision and understanding of housing as an economic 
generator across East Sussex has not yet been articulated. Across England it is not 
uncommon to see housing, and housing numbers, driving Local Plans, indeed this appears 
to be almost the sole thrust of Government advice on such. The challenge for councils and 
strategic planners is to get the balance between housing provision and economic growth 
including, connected through integrated infrastructure, so that the contribution of each 
works to deliver the sustainable communities of the future. This will be important and 
should be tied into the work to develop an East Sussex economic growth strategy. The 
councils should commit to housing growth that delivers the mixed tenure and housing type 
required to complement and enhance business and employment growth. 
 
With the team’s recommendation of an enhanced role for TES, the above East Sussex 
Housing Officer Group’s role might be adapted and strengthened by having the group 
report into TES so that housing is more closely linked to economic growth and the work of 
SELEP. The group is well placed to work alongside the Strategic Planning Officers’ Group 
and the Strategic Planning Members’ Group to incorporate strategic housing as a key 
component of the economic growth.  
 
In the week following the peer challenge the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced a 
budget which places a heavy emphasis on housing, including: 
• Help to Buy – the equity loan scheme will be extended to March 2020 with an extra 

£6bn to help a further 120,000 households purchase a home.  
• Builders' Finance Fund – Government will provide a £500m recoverable Builders 

Finance Fund to provide loans to SME developers for sites of 15 to 250 units. Funding 
is available in 2015/16 and 2016/17 and will unlock 15,000 housing units stalled due to 
difficultly in accessing finance. The prospectus is due later this year.  

• Estate Regeneration – Government will establish a £150m loan fund to kick-start the 
regeneration of some of the worst housing estates, with expressions of interest invited 
from private sector developers. Funding is available from 2015. 

• Custom Build – Government will consult on a new ‘Right to Build’ to give custom 
builders a right to buy a plot from councils. Government will be seeking a small 
number of councils to act as vanguards to test the model. A new £150m Serviced 
Plots loan fund (2014/15 to 2018/19) will help provide up to 10,000 serviced plots for 
custom build. Councils will need to work with contractors or builders to access the fund 
and will also look to make the Help to Buy equity loan scheme available for custom 
build. 

 
These present some opportunities for East Sussex that could be developed. 
 
The burgeoning ageing population for East Sussex has significant implications for future 
housing and social care provision for older people. ESCC has a comprehensive ‘Pathways 
to support and independence: a strategy for supported housing and housing support in 
East Sussex 2013 - 2018’ with a detailed action plan to support delivery. 
 
However, East Sussex Councils have an opportunity to recognise and shape a market for 
housing needs for older people that would: deliver social benefit; address strategic housing 
priorities; and provide councils with a return on investment. The provision of housing for 
older people is a rapidly increasing private sector market. There is no reason why councils 
should not move into this to offer residents quality housing and to maintain independent 
living, through assisted care technology and warden support arrangements. This could be 

65
Page 67



founded on a partnership between councils and developers but could also involve Housing 
Associations, Clinical Commissioning Groups and the East Sussex Health and Well-being 
Board. 
 
Finally, councils seeking to derive community benefit from approved development depend 
upon professional and specialist expertise to understand developer operating margins and 
viability. There would be benefit in councils contributing towards a shared Valuer, with 
commercial expertise to advise on development viability, S106 planning gain and CIL. This 
will be essential to evaluate proposed development and derive community benefit. 
Additionally, this expertise would assist councils in working on joint venture partnerships 
with commercial partners. 
 
4.6 Infrastructure 
The transport infrastructure for East Sussex is generally regarded as inadequate. There 
are no motorways and only short stretches of dual carriageway. Although geographically 
only a short distance to London, this is made more difficult by slow train and road times. 
This is exacerbated by the increasing trend of out-commuting where nearly one in four of 
residents in employment travel outside the county to work. Consequently, East Sussex has 
held aspirations for county-wide transport infrastructure improvements. However, in a 
climate of severely constrained public sector spending, these aspirations will need to be 
reined in and decisions made on which are the most important of these for shorter-term 
delivery and those to be deferred to a later date.  
 
This will be an uncomfortable message for some parts of East Sussex where there are 
compelling cases for infrastructure improvement. However, it is a message that needs to 
be heeded and it will require some difficult decisions to be taken. Not to do so will dilute 
the infrastructure ‘ask’ for East Sussex and what can be realistically delivered. 
 
It will be necessary to avoid concentrating on the inadequacies of infrastructure and 
‘talking the county down’. There needs to be a recognition and promotion of existing 
infrastructure strengths such as the proximity to Gatwick, links to mainland Europe, high 
speed broadband developments and good logistics services which already operate. 
 
The East Sussex Councils are working on their Infrastructure Development Plans (IDP) in 
support of their local plans. A template for strategic infrastructure delivery developed jointly 
by a number of the East Sussex Councils is now being adopted throughout the county. 
This joint approach will provide consistency, link to funding streams, through to delivery. 
Such consistency is a positive step, but it may be that a greater emphasis on economic 
growth and inclusion could lead to some changes in phasing and the prioritisation of 
investment. As part of this process, ESCC will need to ensure that economic growth 
objectives are directly reflected in the priorities for transport investment identified in the 
Local Transport Plan. 
 
East Sussex partners recognise the importance of having ‘shovel ready’ schemes in the 
event of SELEP programme slippage. This has been a strength in the past where funding 
has come to the area because such schemes have been ready for implementation. It is 
understood that this will be important to maximise investment in the future, especially in 
the event of SELEP programme slippage. 
 

66
Page 68



The high speed broadband programme (to enable 97% of the county to have access to 
broadband), secured with funding from ESCC and contracts let with BDUK, will be 
important for business connectivity. [The cost of £34m is met by contributions from ESCC 
(£15m), Broadband Delivery UK (£10.4m) and BT (£9m).] The programme of 
implementation is ahead of schedule, in particular, fibre relay boxes are becoming 
operational in some rural areas. Work is still needed, however, to stimulate take-up of high 
speed broadband by business and the wider community to enable the remaining 3% to be 
covered by associated broadband communications options. At the same time there is a 
need to consider contingency arrangements to address any gaps as there is a 
commitment for 100% premises coverage by 2018. 
 
Mobile phone coverage was reported to the team as patchy across significant rural and 
urban areas and will need addressing with the mobile phone providers. Lack of adequate 
coverage could be a deterrent to new business start-ups. 
 
There are good examples of supported development and new infrastructure. The Bexhill to 
Hastings Link Road has cost circa £113m and not only improves the transport links to 
Hastings and north to the A21 but is creating new opportunities for a new High School and 
Vocational Skills Centre, a substantial new community to the north of Bexhill-on-Sea with 
1,200 new homes and 50,000m2 of commercial space. Similarly the Newhaven Port 
demonstrates strong partnership and political working to deliver a Clean Tech Growth Hub 
to capitalise on opportunities associated with E.ON’s operations and maintenance base for 
the Rampion wind farm; Veolia’s Energy Recovery Facility; and the new University 
Technology College for the marine and environmental engineering sector. However, there 
is a question on the possible future cessation of the Newhaven to Dieppe crossing which 
would present a potential economic loss and risk. 
 
There is a clear consensus around the importance of a limited number of deliverable 
strategic transport investments that would best support future economic growth. If funding 
for these key schemes is not secured, or is delayed, authorities will need to consider the 
extent to which an alternative package of smaller scale transport investment schemes 
could help to unlock the area’s economic potential in the short to medium-term.  
 
Councils will need to carefully review how they integrate economic growth and inclusion 
into their transport, housing and planning functions. This could be achieved by having 
proper regard to the SEP strategy (and subsequent East Sussex economic growth 
strategy): in the planning process; the prioritisation of transport investment and the next 
iteration of the LTP; and in district/borough housing investment plans. It would be sensible 
for councils sharing housing and economic interests to co-ordinate more closely their 
planning policy functions. Alternatively, this could be achieved via a shared strategic 
spatial development framework for the area – setting out what needs to be delivered, 
through which mechanisms and by whom.  
 
As an example, the Greater Norwich Development Partnership (GNDP) has produced a 
Joint Core Strategy which brings together transport, housing and the 
economy www.gndp.org.uk. 
 
4.7 Educating and training for skills  
ESCC is drafting a corporate skills and training strategy which recognises many of the 
problems and issues that the area is working to address. This strategy prioritises 

67
Page 69

http://www.gndp.org.uk/


engagement, retention, progression, connectivity and includes employer involvement in 
shaping the training offer and tackling disengagement. It is an important development and 
will need the involvement of schools, colleges and the range of other partner providers to 
deliver its objectives. Therefore it will be important to share the draft strategy and consult 
with partners on this. The strategy should reflect the different opportunities and challenges 
in the county and identify appropriate initiatives in this context. A stronger commitment to 
delivery that reflects local need and works hand in hand with local partners is important. 
 
This strategy and action plan will need to agree the working relationship with the current 
East Sussex Adult Learning and Skills Partnership Board, which includes representatives 
from further and higher education, the voluntary sector, Jobcentre Plus etc. and also from 
the Economic Development and Skills Team that is represented on the SELEP Advisory 
Group. There is keen local interest at borough and district level and potential benefits to be 
achieved in harnessing this. It is also worth examining the potential for building on 
successful employability and workforce skills development initiatives that have operated in 
some borough and districts. 
 
Some councils are set to increase their intake of apprentices matched by an increase also 
in the private sector. For example, ESCC currently has 20 apprenticeships and is aiming to 
increase this to 150 in coming years. The intention is that for large contracts let by the 
council, there will be a requirement that contractors take on a number of apprentices. This 
is encouraging and should be co-ordinated to be extended further. It would appear that 
local councils could have an important brokering role on this and more widely in matching 
the unemployed with training and job opportunities. This will build on some of the activities 
already taking place at a local level, including the Local Enterprise Apprenticeship Platform 
in Lewes District and Own Grown in Hastings and Rother. This should be extended to Sea 
Change Sussex and future delivery mechanisms that might be set up. 
 
The evidence that councils leading on apprenticeships stimulate the private sector to also 
increase their take-up, could be enhanced by the recent budget announcement to extend 
the Apprenticeship Grants for Employers (AGE) scheme. This will provide £85m for 2014-
2015 and 2015-2016 for over 100,000 grants to employers and £20m for post-graduate 
apprenticeships. TES could lead by example in adopting a challenging apprenticeship 
target, which all organisations and businesses across the county could be encouraged to 
contribute towards, with this backed by a strong local media campaign. This will, however, 
need to link with existing activities and should be co-ordinated through the existing 
Apprenticeships in East Sussex Strategy Group (administered by the County Council). 
 
In Hastings, the University of Brighton will be expanding its intake from 800 to 2,000 
students, specialising in a number of high tech. disciplines. This is significant for the 
number of students who will contribute to that part of the East Sussex economy and also 
for the training provided that should be aligned to what current and future employers see 
as the key clusters and sectors of the East Sussex economy. The University of Brighton 
will be an important economic partner to discuss such issues as housing and integration of 
students along with the current and future sectoral development in the area’s economy. 
Furthermore, the emerging University Technical College in Newhaven will link with 
emerging high-value sectors of the economy. 
 
There are three employment hubs developing. Own Grown is a Hastings initiative and is a 
good example of a local project extended to operate across the Hastings and Rother area. 

68
Page 70



The programme includes an Own Grown 1066 Pledge Apprenticeship initiative and 
brokered arrangements between potential apprentices and employers, involving Jobcentre 
Plus, Sussex Coast College, the National Apprenticeship Service and Own Grown brand. 
The Eastbourne Employability Hub is a pilot with the Borough Council, the County Council 
and Jobcentre Plus to provide a central resource on jobs, skills in demand, assistance in 
preparing for employment, and training, education and career information and guidance. 
Included in the target client cohort are 16-18 and 19-24 year NEET groups. The Local 
Enterprise and Apprenticeship Platform (LEAP) Lewes initiative also seeks to broker 
arrangements between potential apprentices and employers. This is a good example of 
successful partnership working, bringing together training providers, voluntary and 
community groups, employers and young people. LEAP also provides support for aspiring 
entrepreneurs providing extensive training and mentoring for business pre-starts. 
 
ESCC’s Connexions 360 website for young people is a helpful tool for young unemployed 
people (http://www.connexions360.org.uk/Pages/default.aspx) offering support, advice and 
signposting. This should have an important role in the action plan to deliver the above 
skills and training strategy. 
 
As in many places, the range of partners involved in skills and training are many and the 
coordination of services poor. One quote obtained onsite was, “lots of avenues, no real 
coordination between the avenues” and “lots of strategy, so little delivery”. This will be 
important to address and the skills and training strategy should make improving 
partnership coordination a priority – building on the work being done through the 
Apprenticeships in East Sussex Strategy Group and others.  
 
Again, as in many places, the curricula of schools and some further education 
organisations are still too demand and funding-led. There is an essential coordinating role 
to establish the skills and training needs for the current economy and to project what these 
might be for the future. Identified skills and training needs must then form the basis for 
delivery by providers and will require councils and business representatives to engage with 
the Skills Funding Agency to agree a core set of skills and training priorities. 
 
The ability of business and employers to influence and shape the training curricula of 
further and higher education providers will be essential for the new skills and training 
strategy and a good example of this is the University Technical College at Newhaven 
which is focusing on marine engineering and sustainability. Another example is the Sussex 
Coastal College which is aligning a number of courses to local job demand, for example 
vacuum technology. 
 
The nature of the East Sussex economy means that there is a lack of large employers to 
drive systematic business engagement with the education and skills sector. With the 
preponderance of small and medium size enterprises (SMEs), it is essential that the views 
of SMEs, captured through the East Sussex Business Survey, help to make these 
necessary links. It is equally essential that support and brokerage projects (eg. LEAP and 
Own Grown) continue to support SMEs in engaging with skills, such as apprenticeships, in 
the local area. 
 
Levels of self-employment are high in East Sussex, with Wealden and Rother having the 
highest levels in the SELEP area. The importance of the self-employed to the local 
economy, and particularly as they may expand to become SMEs, emphasises the 

69
Page 71

http://www.connexions360.org.uk/Pages/default.aspx


importance of training and skills to both nurture entrepreneurial activity and to direct 
potential self-employers to support, advice and funding. Again, LEAP reflects this need 
and offers potential for expansion across the East Sussex economy. 
 
Some councils appear not to be making the most of procurement and planning 
agreements to secure local jobs and training. An example of this is Local Labour 
Agreements where the planning authority reaches an agreement on large development to 
invest in skills training and support. This could be CV development; psychometric testing 
and other training to assist the local population gain the skills to apply for jobs resulting 
from that development. This could form part of an approach that the councils facilitate to 
get young people, and out of work adults, ready for future jobs. The LGA and PAS are able 
to provide examples of councils that have used such agreements. The challenge will be to 
overcome the dichotomy that those areas of the county where land values (and hence 
planning gain) are low are often those with the highest levels of unemployment. 
 
Another example is from mapping commercial economic sectors across East Sussex so 
that supply chain gaps might be revealed. The East Sussex Councils and partners could 
then promote these as commercial opportunities that could be supported by Business 
Centres offering high quality and flexible facilities for business start-up and growth. 
 
4.8 Procurement 
The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 requires public bodies to consider how goods 
and services they purchase/commission might improve the economic, social and 
environmental well-being of the area. 
 
The inclusion of procurement as an essential part of the East Sussex economic growth 
and inclusion strategy recognises the importance of public/private/third sector expenditure 
in supporting the local economy and the important role that councils have in how they 
exercise their spending power. For example, ESCC will have significant spend for goods 
and services, which creates the opportunity to influence markets.  
 
There are some excellent procurement initiatives supporting the growth agenda. The 
Procurement Hub and Procurement Portal provide a good basis for greater public /private/ 
third sector partnership working. Other arrangements include the Improvement and 
Efficiency South East (IESE) partnership with Eastbourne Borough and Lewes District 
Councils and the shared service arrangement between Hastings Borough, Rother District 
and Wealden District Councils.  
 
The team also encountered a number of specific areas of good practice, such as: the 
SPACES initiative’s asset management and contract alignment; ‘Build East Sussex’ supply 
chain management aimed at partnering principal contractors with local construction 
businesses; and the TRAC apprenticeship initiative. These have helped harness local 
buying power, created business opportunities for local companies that might otherwise not 
have existed and boosted apprenticeship provision. 
 
However, it will be important to ensure that procurement activities are focused on where 
they will have the most chances of success, in supporting local businesses and 
employment creation, rather than chasing overall targets, which is a characteristic of 
current working arrangements. 
 

70
Page 72



Smarter procurement practice should involve more public/private/ third sector partners. 
More could be done to harness local spending power by coordinating/amalgamating 
partner procurement to support local suppliers and get better deals. Many people met by 
the team expressed a willingness to work together on this and just a 1% increase in local 
spend would have a major impact on the local economy. 
 
Smarter working would also be achieved by standardising procurement requirements 
through the Procurement Hub – procurement procedures and rules, tender thresholds, 
insurance requirements, contract packages and a ‘tell us once’ approach would make it 
easier for SMEs to do business. Creating an East Sussex part of the joint procurement 
portal, to make it more relevant to local purchasers and suppliers, would promote a local 
ownership of the initiative and a procurement focus. The LGA and PAS would be able to 
direct East Sussex to councils that have advanced good practice in this field. 
 
Procurement training and support is limited and disjointed between the public and private 
sector suppliers and it would be helpful to better co-ordinate its provision between the 
different agencies in an East Sussex wide programme to improve accessibility for SMEs 
and make the best use of the limited resources that are available. 
 
  

71
Page 73



Appendix 1 
FOLLOW-UP SUPPORT 

 
1. To aid the review/updating of Local Plans, the development of the East Sussex 

economic growth strategy and encourage further development of co-operation 
between councils on the allocation of housing and employment across the county. 
 
Soon to be published: PAS Guide to Objectively Assessed Need and housing 
targets  
 
This guidance note will help councils to understand how to calculate the objectively 
assessed need and housing targets within their area. It includes up to date advice 
based on recent Local Plan examinations. This can be used by councils on a self-
serve basis. PAS expects also to be able to facilitate a discussion for a group of 
councils and to provide support in relation to discussions on the Duty to Co-operate. 
 

2. To support the development of an improved pre-application offer across all the 
councils 

 
The LGA and PAS have worked with a cross-sector group to agree a set of 10 
commitments that set out a framework for effective pre-application 
discussions. http://www.pas.gov.uk/web/guest/publications/-
/journal_content/56/10180/5862911/PUBLICATION  
 
PAS area currently completing a suite of supplementary best practice notes that set 
out advice on how these commitments should be implemented by local planning 
authorities. Importantly this includes advice on the engagement of councillors in 
pre-application discussions. These will be launched through a series of workshops 
in May and June 2014. 
 
The LGA have a suite of case studies that look at how effective partnership with 
developers and the community at pre-application stage has resulted in delivery of 
developments to be proud of. http://www.pas.gov.uk/web/guest/publications/-
/journal_content/56/10180/5862856/PUBLICATION  

 
3. To help develop a quality performance framework that will monitor how the planning 

decision making system is working. 
 

PAS has developed a series of tools and templates to help councils to set up a 
system that will assess the effectiveness of development management services to 
make the decisions that enable sustainable developments to be delivered in a way 
that customers value. http://www.pas.gov.uk/web/pas-test-site/events-and-
support2/-/journal_content/56/332612/5730199/ARTICLE  

 
4. Not all councils manage their planning services in the same way.  

Wolverhampton City Council has developed a way of working in their development 
management service that has been designed to provide more active support for 
applicants and encourage investment in line with the economic growth 
plans. http://www.pas.gov.uk/web/pas-test-site/improvement-store/-
/journal_content/56/332612/6011793/ARTICLE  

72
Page 74

http://www.pas.gov.uk/web/guest/publications/-/journal_content/56/10180/5862911/PUBLICATION
http://www.pas.gov.uk/web/guest/publications/-/journal_content/56/10180/5862911/PUBLICATION
http://www.pas.gov.uk/web/guest/publications/-/journal_content/56/10180/5862856/PUBLICATION
http://www.pas.gov.uk/web/guest/publications/-/journal_content/56/10180/5862856/PUBLICATION
http://www.pas.gov.uk/web/pas-test-site/events-and-support2/-/journal_content/56/332612/5730199/ARTICLE
http://www.pas.gov.uk/web/pas-test-site/events-and-support2/-/journal_content/56/332612/5730199/ARTICLE
http://www.pas.gov.uk/web/pas-test-site/improvement-store/-/journal_content/56/332612/6011793/ARTICLE
http://www.pas.gov.uk/web/pas-test-site/improvement-store/-/journal_content/56/332612/6011793/ARTICLE


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Local Government Association 
Local Government House 
Smith Square 
London SW1P 3HZ 
 
Telephone 0207 664 3000 
Fax 0207 664 3030 
Email info@local.gov.uk 
www.local.gov.uk 

73
Page 75

mailto:info@local.gov.uk
http://www.local.gov.uk/


74
Page 76



A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

Th
e 

In
ve

st
m

en
t (

op
en

 fo
r g

ro
w

th
) P

ee
r C

ha
lle

ng
e 

– 
To

w
ar

ds
 a

n 
A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
: C

ol
la

te
d 

in
te

re
st

 le
ve

ls
 a

nd
 fo

rw
ar

d 
ac

tio
ns

  
N

ot
es

:  
1.

 V
er

y 
fe

w
 o

f 
th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

w
er

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 n
ew

 t
o 

th
e 

Ea
st

 S
us

se
x 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s;

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
 in

 g
re

en
 w

he
re

 th
ey

 a
re

 c
on

sid
er

ed
 b

e 
su

ffi
ci

en
tly

 d
et

ai
le

d 
in

 te
rm

s o
f a

ct
io

n 
an

d 
tim

el
in

es
 to

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 ‘b
ei

ng
 p

ro
gr

es
se

d’
. 

2.
 A

ll 
th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

‘ra
nk

ed
’ i

n 
te

rm
s 

of
 th

ei
r i

m
po

rt
an

ce
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s’
 re

sp
on

se
s;

 so
m

e 
w

er
e 

no
tic

ea
bl

y 
ra

nk
ed

 ‘h
ig

h’
 a

s 
w

er
e 

al
re

ad
y 

re
co

gn
ise

d 
as

 im
po

rt
an

t 
an

d 
w

er
e 

al
re

ad
y 

be
in

g 
pr

og
re

ss
ed

. T
ho

se
 r

an
ke

d 
hi

gh
 (H

) o
r 

hi
gh

 m
ed

iu
m

 (H
/M

) a
re

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 in
 c

ol
um

n 
1.

  I
n 

ye
llo

w
 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

1.
In

te
re

st
  

le
ve

l: 
Hi

gh
; 

M
ed

iu
m

; 
Lo

w
; 

N
on

e 

2.
 W

hy
? 

3.
 H

ow
? 

 
4.

 B
y 

W
he

n?
 

  

5.
 P

ot
en

tia
l i

m
pa

ct
 

R
1:

 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 
 

 
 

 
 

R1
.1

 U
se

 th
e 

em
er

gi
ng

 c
on

se
ns

us
 

ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Ec
on

om
ic

 P
la

n 
(S

EP
), 

an
d 

a 
re

vi
se

d 
Ea

st
 S

us
se

x 
gr

ow
th

 st
ra

te
gy

, a
s a

 c
at

al
ys

t f
or

 
dr

iv
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d 
th

e 
ne

xt
 ro

un
d 

of
 

Lo
ca

l P
la

ns
 

M
/L

 
Re

co
gn

ise
d 

as
 a

 n
ee

d 
an

d 
al

re
ad

y 
in

 tr
ai

n 
Ea

st
 S

us
se

x 
G

ro
w

th
 S

tr
at

eg
y.

  
In

te
gr

at
io

n 
an

d 
co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

of
 

ex
ist

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 –

 o
ut

co
m

e 
or

ie
nt

ed
 a

ct
io

ns
. 

Th
is 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
lin

ke
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

ov
er

ar
ch

in
g 

Pr
id

e 
of

 P
la

ce
 v

isi
on

 a
nd

 
st

ra
te

gy
 fo

r c
oh

er
en

ce
 a

nd
 to

 b
ui

ld
 

on
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
ns

en
su

s a
cr

os
s t

he
 

pi
ec

e 
fo

r E
as

t S
us

se
x.

  T
he

 e
co

no
m

ic
 

el
em

en
ts

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 

st
re

ng
th

en
ed

, b
ut

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 

co
nt

ex
t t

o 
en

su
re

 a
 b

al
an

ce
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 g

ro
w

th
. S

ee
 n

ot
es

 o
n 

R2
.2

5-
7,

 R
3.

1&
2,

 R
4.

4 
an

d 
R5

.1
&

2 

Pu
lli

ng
 to

ge
th

er
 e

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

 e
co

no
m

ic
 e

vi
de

nc
e.

  D
ut

y 
to

 C
oo

pe
ra

te
 w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
Ea

st
 S

us
se

x 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 M
em

be
rs

 G
ro

up
 (E

SS
PM

G
) 

is 
al

re
ad

y 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 fu
tu

re
 L

oc
al

 

N
ov

 2
01

4 
Ev

id
en

ce
d 

di
re

ct
io

n 
an

d 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 o
n 

ke
y 

ec
on

om
ic

 p
rio

rit
y 

ar
ea

s 

75
Page 77



Pl
an

 p
ro

ce
ss

. 

R1
.2

 R
ai

se
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s a

nd
 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

co
ns

ist
en

cy
 o

f t
he

 
co

un
ci

ls’
 ‘O

pe
n 

fo
r G

ro
w

th
’ s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

m
or

e 
co

ns
ist

en
tly

 
po

sit
iv

e 
an

d 
pr

oa
ct

iv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 sy

st
em

, 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
in

 E
as

t S
us

se
x 

M
/L

 
A 

m
or

e 
sh

ar
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

pr
om

pt
 a

nd
 e

ffi
ci

en
t 

re
sp

on
se

s t
o 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pr
op

os
al

s s
ho

ul
d 

ge
ne

ra
te

 
po

sit
iv

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
r p

er
ce

pt
io

ns
 

of
 E

as
t S

us
se

x 
as

 a
 ‘g

o 
to

’ 
lo

ca
tio

n 
to

 p
ur

su
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 
gr

ow
th

. 

La
rg

el
y 

ex
ist

in
g 

re
sp

on
sib

ili
ty

 o
f B

/D
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
ei

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t f
un

ct
io

n;
 m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
al

re
ad

y 
in

 p
la

ce
, c

ro
ss

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
of

fic
er

s g
ro

up
s.

  

RE
M

O
VE

: a
nd

 th
e 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

M
em

be
rs

 G
ro

up
 (S

PM
G

). 
Ad

dr
es

s 
ne

ed
 fo

r a
 ‘S

tr
at

eg
ic

 c
ro

ss
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 p

la
n’

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
Po

sit
iv

e 
re

sp
on

se
s t

o 
bu

sin
es

se
s/

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

su
bm

itt
in

g 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
; 

m
or

e 
co

ns
ist

en
t a

nd
 

cl
ea

re
r g

ui
da

nc
e.

 

 HB
C 

qu
er

y 
on

 
ag

re
em

en
t t

o 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 p

la
n 

R1
.3

 B
ui

ld
 c

on
se

ns
us

 a
cr

os
s t

he
 

co
un

ci
ls 

&
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 c
om

m
on

 a
nd

 
co

ns
ist

en
t s

tr
at

eg
ic

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 
su

pp
or

t a
 sh

ar
ed

 v
isi

on
 a

nd
 u

nd
er

-
st

an
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 ro
le

 o
f h

ou
se

 
bu

ild
in

g 
as

 a
n 

ec
on

om
ic

 g
en

er
at

or
 

an
d 

so
ci

al
 b

en
ef

it,
 li

nk
ed

 to
 th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 in

cl
us

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 

H/
M

 
W

ith
ou

t a
 c

or
re

ct
ly

 b
al

an
ce

d 
ho

us
in

g 
su

pp
ly

 th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 a

nd
/o

r s
oc

ia
l 

st
ag

na
tio

n 

Li
nk

ed
 to

 R
1.

2 

Du
ty

 to
 C

oo
pe

ra
te

 w
or

k 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
ag

re
ed

 b
y 

ES
SM

PG
 -s

ha
re

d 
ev

id
en

ce
 

ba
se

 a
cr

os
s E

S 
to

 su
pp

or
t e

co
no

m
ic

 
gr

ow
th

. 

Ho
us

e 
bu

ild
er

s e
ng

ag
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

B/
D 

SH
M

As
. 

O
ng

oi
ng

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 fo
r a

ll 
co

un
ci

llo
rs

 
on

 p
la

nn
in

g 
co

m
m

itt
ee

s;
 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
th

e 
ro

le
 o

f h
ou

se
 

bu
ild

in
g 

as
 e

co
no

m
ic

 g
en

er
at

or
+ 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
La

ck
 o

f s
ta

gn
at

io
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

su
pp

ly
 th

at
 a

lso
 

su
pp

or
ts

 g
ro

w
th

 

R1
.4

 F
oc

us
 o

n 
a 

sm
al

l n
um

be
r o

f 
ac

hi
ev

ab
le

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 e

ss
en

tia
l t

o 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 

H 
To

 a
dd

re
ss

 k
ey

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

ne
ed

s a
cr

os
s t

he
 c

ou
nt

y 
th

at
 

ar
e 

ev
id

en
ce

d 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

m
os

t e
co

no
m

ic
 b

en
ef

it 

TE
S 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
m

ai
n 

de
ci

sio
n 

m
ak

in
g 

ro
le

 in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f a

gr
ee

d 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
 

ES
SP

M
G

 a
gr

ee
d 

to
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 a
 ‘S

tr
at

eg
ic

 c
ro

ss
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 D

el
iv

er
y 

Pl
an

’; 
w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

al
re

ad
y 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 

de
liv

er
 P

la
n.

  

Pr
ov

isi
on

 o
f i

nd
iv

id
ua

l d
el

iv
er

y 
pl

an
s 

us
ed

 to
 h

el
p 

 id
en

tif
y,

 b
id

 a
nd

 se
cu

re
 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r k

ey
 p

ro
je

ct
s t

o 
un

lo
ck

 
ca

pi
ta

l i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

Pl
an

 2
01

5 
( t

o 
be

 
lo

ok
ed

 a
t f

or
 e

ar
lie

r 
Pl

an
 d

el
iv

er
y)

 

 O
ng

oi
ng

 

Ec
on

om
ic

 im
pa

ct
 

be
ne

fit
s p

ro
du

ce
d;

 
im

pr
ov

ed
 tr

an
sp

or
t 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 

en
su

rin
g 

re
ad

y 
&

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 su
pp

ly
 o

f 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t s
pa

ce
 

76
Page 78



En
su

re
 c

oh
er

en
t m

es
sa

ge
s b

y 
al

l a
nd

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

lo
bb

yi
ng

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 

R1
.5

 E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 e
co

no
m

ic
 in

cl
us

io
n 

an
d 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 a

s w
el

l a
s e

co
no

m
ic

 
gr

ow
th

 p
la

ys
 a

 k
ey

 p
ar

t i
n 

fu
tu

re
 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

y 
 

H 
Po

ve
rt

y 
an

d 
ec

on
om

ic
 

ex
cl

us
io

n 
ar

e 
ke

y 
ba

rr
ie

rs
 to

 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 

in
 th

e 
 c

oa
st

al
 c

on
ur

ba
tio

ns
, 

bu
t a

lso
 in

 p
oc

ke
ts

 o
f r

ur
al

 
de

pr
iv

at
io

n;
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n/
ga

in
 

so
ci

al
 c

oh
es

io
n 

an
d 

to
 a

ss
ist

 
lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e 
gr

as
p 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 a
s t

he
y 

ar
ise

 in
 a

 
gr

ow
in

g 
ec

on
om

y 

Al
so

 se
e 

R4
.4

 in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f s

ki
lls

 

To
 b

e 
re

fle
ct

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ES
 G

ro
w

th
 

St
ra

te
gy

. 

M
ax

im
isi

ng
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

s f
ro

m
 

fu
nd

in
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fr
om

 E
SF

 a
nd

 
ot

he
rs

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

sk
ill

s a
nd

 
em

pl
oy

ab
ili

ty
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 in

 E
S.

 

St
ro

ng
er

 re
m

it 
an

d 
in

flu
en

ce
 o

n 
th

is 
ag

en
da

 b
y 

TE
S 

an
d 

th
e 

ES
 

Em
pl

oy
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 S
ki

lls
 B

oa
rd

 
re

pr
es

en
te

d 
by

 c
ro

ss
 se

ct
or

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
. 

N
ov

 2
01

5 

 M
ar

 1
5 

on
w

ar
ds

 

  O
ct

 1
4 

on
w

ar
ds

 

Re
du

ce
d 

so
ci

o/
ec

on
om

ic
 

ex
cl

us
io

n 
ov

er
 ti

m
e 

m
ea

su
re

d 
by

 re
le

va
nt

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 a
nd

 ‘c
lo

sin
g 

th
e 

ga
p’

 a
ga

in
st

 ‘p
ee

r’ 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rs

 a
re

as
 a

nd
 

re
gi

on
. 

Co
m

pa
ris

on
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ar
ea

s w
ith

in
 th

e 
Co

un
ty

 
its

el
f w

ou
ld

 sh
ow

 h
ow

 
TE

S 
is 

re
dr

es
sin

g 
ec

on
om

ic
 d

isa
dv

an
ta

ge
. 

Ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

 
be

nc
hm

ar
k 

lo
ca

l 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 

pe
er

s i
.e

. H
as

tin
gs

 &
 

Th
an

et
 o

r W
ea

ld
en

/M
id

 
Su

ss
ex

 to
 c

om
pa

re
 re

al
 

ch
an

ge
s w

ith
 th

os
e 

w
ith

 si
m

ila
r p

ro
fil

es
.  

Ca
n 

th
e 

LE
P 

he
lp

 in
 

th
is?

 T
he

 E
co

no
m

ic
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
at

 a
 lo

ca
l (

fu
nc

tio
na

l 
ec

on
om

y)
 le

ve
l (

e.
g.

 th
e 

Ha
st

in
gs

/R
ot

he
r T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e)
 n

ee
d 

to
 ta

ke
 a

 
ro

le
 in

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

th
is 

ag
en

da
. 

 

77
Page 79



R1
.6

 R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

th
at

 h
ou

sin
g 

gr
ow

th
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
y 

is 
ke

y 
to

 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 

H 
Se

e 
R1

.3
 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Ho

us
in

g 
m

ar
ke

t A
re

a 
As

se
ss

m
en

ts
, L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
ta

rg
et

s.
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

un
de

r D
ut

y 
to

 
Co

op
er

at
e 

an
d 

ES
SP

M
G

 

Th
e 

TE
S 

ne
ed

s t
o 

pr
om

ot
e 

ho
us

in
g 

gr
ow

th
 a

nd
 th

e 
“g

ov
er

ni
ng

” 
do

cu
m

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
be

 th
e 

sh
ar

ed
 

gr
ow

th
 st

ra
te

gy
. 

 

20
15

 
Cl

os
er

 a
lig

nm
en

t o
f 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 to

 
ho

us
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 

M
or

e 
ac

tiv
e 

‘li
ve

’ 
pr

og
re

ss
 re

po
rt

in
g 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ar

in
g 

R
2:

 T
ea

m
 E

as
t S

us
se

x 
(T

ES
) 

 
 

 
 

 

R2
.1

 T
he

 S
EP

, c
ite

d 
in

 R
1.

1,
 sh

ou
ld

 
be

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 
an

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

f T
ES

 

H/
M

 
SE

P 
al

re
ad

y 
pr

od
uc

ed
; 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
ro

le
 fo

r T
ES

 to
 b

e 
de

fin
ed

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
SE

LE
P 

de
liv

er
y 

co
nt

ra
ct

in
g 

w
ith

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 

N
ew

 T
ES

 te
rm

s o
f r

ef
er

en
ce

 a
gr

ee
d.

  

TE
S 

to
 a

pp
ro

ve
 d

ra
ft

 E
S 

G
ro

w
th

 
St

ra
te

gy
 

N
ov

 2
01

4 
M

or
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 

fo
cu

ss
ed

 o
rg

an
isa

tio
n 

ab
le

 to
 c

oo
rd

in
at

e 
 

ac
tiv

ity
 a

nd
 lo

bb
y 

m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
fo

r k
ey

 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

, s
oc

io
 

ec
on

om
ic

 in
cl

us
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

R2
.2

 D
ev

el
op

 T
ES

 a
s t

he
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

to
 c

o-
or

di
na

te
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
ve

hi
cl

es
 

fo
r t

he
 E

as
t S

us
se

x 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 

st
ra

te
gy

 in
 th

e 
fe

de
ra

te
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
of

 th
e 

LE
P,

 to
: 

HB
C 

a 
lit

tle
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

 th
at

 a
 p

la
n 

fo
r 

TE
S 

do
es

n’
t i

nc
lu

de
 a

 p
ro

pe
r 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 o
ur

 re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

w
ith

 
th

e 
LE

P.
  T

he
re

 a
pp

ea
rs

 to
 b

e 
a 

sil
en

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
th

at
 th

is 
is 

a 
st

ra
ig

ht
fo

rw
ar

d 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
ba

se
d 

up
on

 C
ou

nt
y 

bo
un

da
rie

s.
 T

hi
s 

ne
gl

ec
ts

 th
e 

co
as

ta
l w

or
k 

th
at

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 a

re
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

en
ga

ge
d 

in
 a

nd
 

H/
M

 
To

 e
ns

ur
e 

m
om

en
tu

m
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

ES
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 b

en
ef

it 
vi

a 
SE

LE
P.

 

Se
e 

R2
.1

 

 

Ag
re

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 ro

le
, a

re
as

, 
re

sp
on

sib
ili

tie
s a

nd
 re

so
ur

ce
s.

 A
lso

 
tim

el
y 

pr
og

re
ss

 tr
ac

ki
ng

. 

M
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

re
al

isa
tio

n 
of

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 a
nd

 c
oh

er
en

t 
m

es
sa

ge
s c

ar
rie

d 
fo

rw
ar

d 
re

su
lti

ng
 

in
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 o

ut
co

m
es

. 

Aw
ar

en
es

s,
 li

nk
ag

e 
to

 o
th

er
 L

EP
s/

 
G

ro
w

th
 D

ea
l T

ea
m

 a
nd

 b
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 
/ a

dv
ise

d 
by

 th
es

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

. 

Al
so

 e
ss

en
tia

l l
in

ka
ge

s t
o 

be
 fo

rg
ed

 
w

ith
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 a
cr

os
s E

as
t S

us
se

x 
to

 
bu

ild
 o

n 
th

e 
st

re
ng

th
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 

TE
S 

SE
P 

ro
le

: 
By

 M
ar

ch
 1

5 
  O

ng
oi

ng
 

  O
ng

oi
ng

 

M
ea

su
re

 a
ga

in
st

 
de

liv
er

ab
le

s i
n 

te
rm

s o
f 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 a
nd

 
tim

ef
ra

m
es

. 

G
ro

w
th

 st
ra

te
gy

 n
ee

ds
 to

 
be

 in
 p

la
ce

 / 
in

 li
ne

/ 
su

pp
or

tiv
e 

of
 lo

ca
l p

la
ns

.  

De
liv

er
y 

of
 g

ro
w

th
 is

 
la

rg
el

y 
de

pe
nd

en
t u

po
n 

ex
te

rn
al

 fa
ct

or
s a

nd
 it

 w
ill

 
no

t n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

be
 T

ES
 th

at
 

w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 in

flu
en

ce
 

th
os

e 
at

 lo
ca

l l
ev

el
. 

78
Page 80



th
e 

cr
os

s L
EP

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

to
ur

ism
/c

ul
tu

re
. 

 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 b
et

w
ee

n 
pu

bl
ic

, p
riv

at
e 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 &

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 se

ct
or

 
w

or
ki

ng
 in

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f a
re

na
s (

e.
g.

 
ca

re
 p

ro
vi

sio
n,

 so
ci

al
 e

xc
lu

sio
n,

 
ac

ce
ss

 e
tc

.) 

R2
.2

.1
 o

pe
ra

te
 a

t a
 n

ew
 le

ve
l o

f 
m

at
ur

ity
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

op
en

ne
ss

 a
nd

 
tr

us
t b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 

M
/H

 
Al

re
ad

y 
st

ro
ng

 w
or

ki
ng

 b
ot

h 
at

 
po

lit
ic

al
, s

en
io

r m
an

ag
em

en
t 

le
ve

l a
nd

 o
ffi

ce
r l

ev
el

 a
cr

os
s 

D/
DC

 a
nd

 E
SC

C.
 

Im
po

rt
an

t i
n 

th
e 

co
he

re
nc

e 
of

 
ou

r j
oi

nt
 m

es
sa

ge
s 

Se
e 

R2
.1

 

In
cl

ud
es

 D
ut

y 
to

 C
oo

pe
ra

te
 

Sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
cr

os
s c

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
be

yo
nd

 
(e

.g
. G

re
at

er
 B

rig
ht

on
 C

ity
 D

ea
l a

nd
 

C2
C)

 
 Is

 th
is 

re
al

ly
 a

n 
ac

tio
n 

in
 a

 re
al

 se
ns

e 
– 

is 
it 

no
t m

or
e 

a 
de

sir
ab

le
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

? 

N
ow

 o
ng

oi
ng

 
 

R2
.2

.2
 c

o-
or

di
na

te
 d

el
iv

er
y 

ve
hi

cl
es

; 
in

flu
en

ce
 a

nd
 a

dv
ise

 o
n 

co
m

m
iss

io
ni

ng
 d

el
iv

er
y 

M
/H

 
Fo

r s
tr

at
eg

ic
 a

nd
 / 

or
 re

gi
on

 
w

id
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

, o
th

er
w

ise
 c

ou
ld

 
m

er
el

y 
du

pl
ic

at
e 

ac
tio

n 
ta

ke
n 

by
 C

ou
nc

ils
 / 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 / 
 

in
cr

ea
se

 u
nn

ec
es

sa
ry

 
bu

re
au

cr
ac

y 

 Se
e 

R2
.2

 

Lo
ok

 a
t t

he
 ty

pe
 o

f d
el

iv
er

y 
m

an
ag

em
en

t r
eq

ui
re

d,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ex

ist
in

g 
(S

ea
 C

ha
ng

e,
 

CC
/B

/D
Cs

 e
tc

.) 
an

d 
ex

te
rn

al
 

fin
an

ci
al

 re
so

ur
ce

s t
o 

he
lp

 
de

liv
er

 (e
.g

. A
cc

es
s t

o 
fin

an
ce

, 
ER

DF
 e

tc
.) 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 fu

tu
re

 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 n
ee

d 
   

 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 k
ey

 st
ra

te
gi

c 
an

d 
or

 
re

gi
on

al
 p

ro
je

ct
s /

 d
el

iv
er

y 
ve

hi
cl

es
.  

 

Le
ad

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
or

 p
ar

tn
er

 to
 le

ad
 

(u
sin

g 
th

ei
r o

w
n 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t r

ul
es

) 
an

d 
re

po
rt

  

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f T
ES

 th
ro

ug
h 

Du
ty

 to
 

Co
-o

pe
ra

te
 - 

Ho
w

 –
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f 
TE

S 
as

 c
oo

rd
in

at
in

g 
bo

dy
? 

De
liv

er
y 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 a

gr
ee

d 
as

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s t
o 

un
lo

ck
 fu

tu
re

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 

 

Sp
rin

g 
20

15
 

      O
ng

oi
ng

 

M
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 

ta
ng

ib
le

 p
ro

je
ct

s.
 

R2
.2

.3
 in

vo
lv

e 
ke

y 
pu

bl
ic

/p
riv

at
e/

th
ird

 se
ct

or
 p

la
ye

rs
 

as
 a

n 
ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

dr
iv

in
g 

fo
rc

e 
fo

r t
he

 

H 
U

nd
er

 th
e 

Gr
ow

th
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

SI
F:

 T
o 

en
su

re
 m

ax
im

um
 

be
ne

fit
 fo

r f
oc

us
ed

 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
 fr

om
 

En
su

re
 a

ll 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 &

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
ha

ve
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
of

 a
nd

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 o

f t
he

 G
S 

so
 a

lso
 w

or
k 

to
w

ar
ds

 it
s d

el
iv

er
y.

 W
he

re
 

Fr
om

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

 

Su
pp

or
t 

so
ci

al
/e

co
no

m
ic

 
in

cl
us

io
n 

79
Page 81



ec
on

om
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
ge

nd
a 

ot
he

r s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 e
xp

er
tis

e,
 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

an
d 

fu
nd

s.
 T

o 
en

su
re

 th
at

 p
ar

tn
er

s r
ol

es
 a

re
 

cl
ea

r a
nd

 a
gr

ee
d 

at
 th

e 
ou

ts
et

 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 li
ke

lih
oo

d 
of

 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 d
el

iv
er

y.
  

Fu
ll 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
is 

es
se

nt
ia

l 
fo

r e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p.
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
, c

o-
de

sig
n 

an
d 

co
-

pr
od

uc
e 

de
liv

er
y 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s.
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 
to

 a
dv

ise
 o

n 
ac

tio
ns

 re
fe

rr
ed

 to
 in

 
R1

.5
 a

bo
ve

.  

 Th
ird

 se
ct

or
 re

p.
 o

n 
EA

B 
an

d 
TE

S;
 

ne
w

 T
ES

 T
oR

. A
lo

ng
sid

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
re

ps
 o

n 
E&

SP
 b

oa
rd

 

Bu
sin

es
s r

ep
s o

n 
TE

S 
to

 c
ov

er
 a

cr
os

s 
ke

y 
se

ct
or

al
 a

re
as

 –
 is

 B
oa

rd
 

m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

su
ffi

ci
en

t –
 o

th
er

 
m

et
ho

ds
? 

E.
g.

 E
co

no
m

ic
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

? 

     N
ov

 2
01

4 

 N
ov

 2
01

4 

    Im
pr

ov
ed

 v
oi

ce
 o

f 
bu

sin
es

se
s a

nd
 V

CS
 

en
ab

lin
g 

co
he

re
nt

 a
nd

 
jo

in
t m

es
sa

ge
s w

ith
 

pu
bl

ic
 se

ct
or

 –
el

ev
at

in
g 

cr
os

s r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

of
 

TE
S.

 

R2
.2

.4
 c

re
at

e 
th

e 
Ea

st
 S

us
se

x 
‘n

ar
ra

tiv
e’

 w
hi

ch
 re

fle
ct

s t
he

 v
ar

yi
ng

 
ne

ed
 a

nd
 a

m
bi

tio
n 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
co

un
ty

 a
nd

 w
hi

ch
 se

ts
 o

ut
 a

n 
ag

re
ed

 
vi

sio
n 

fo
r t

he
 fu

tu
re

 

L/
M

 
Li

tt
le

 sh
ar

ed
 n

ar
ra

tiv
e 

th
at

 
im

pa
ct

s t
he

 w
ho

le
 c

ou
nt

y 

Al
so

 se
e 

R3
.5

; R
4.

3;
  

G
S 

an
d 

‘In
no

va
te

 E
as

t S
us

se
x’

 
St

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 E

S 
Bu

sin
es

s G
ui

de
 P

rid
e 

of
 P

la
ce

 a
rt

ic
ul

at
es

 th
e 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 

Ea
st

 S
us

se
x 

vi
sio

n 
to

 2
02

6 
– 

ad
op

te
d 

by
 a

ll 
Ea

st
 S

us
se

x 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
(a

pa
rt

 fr
om

 S
ou

th
 D

ow
ns

 N
at

io
na

l 
Pa

rk
 A

ut
ho

rit
y)

 

Ev
en

t O
ct

ob
er

 a
nd

 
on

 g
oi

ng
 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
w

ar
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t, 

in
di

ge
no

us
 

bu
sin

es
s g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 

jo
bs

 

R2
.2

.5
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
rig

ht
 e

co
no

m
ic

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 e

xi
st

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 a

nd
 

in
iti

at
e 

ac
tio

n 
an

d 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

th
in

ki
ng

 
at

 a
 lo

ca
l a

nd
 th

em
at

ic
 le

ve
l 

H 
To

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 in
fo

rm
ed

 
ex

pe
rt

ise
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
an

d 
us

ed
 

to
 g

ui
de

 a
nd

 in
flu

en
ce

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t d
ec

isi
on

s.
 E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

es
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 h
av

e 
a 

re
al

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 a

nd
 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
&

 n
ot

 in
di

vi
du

al
 

ag
en

da
s 

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

? 

Al
so

 se
e 

R3
.1

 

W
he

re
 p

os
sib

le
 v

ia
 e

xi
st

in
g 

gr
ou

ps
 a

t 
bo

th
 S

EL
EP

 le
ve

l a
nd

 a
t t

he
 lo

ca
l 

le
ve

l e
.g

. t
he

 E
AB

, t
he

 R
ur

al
 F

or
um

, 
‘S

pe
ak

 U
p’

, S
M

E 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n,
 L

oc
at

e 
Ea

st
 S

us
se

x 
et

c.
 

En
su

re
 th

at
 th

es
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 li

nk
 in

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

w
ith

 
ex

ist
in

g 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 –
 m

ay
 

no
t n

ee
d 

to
 in

ve
nt

 n
ew

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s,
 

bu
t d

ev
el

op
 a

 st
ro

ng
er

, m
or

e 
co

he
re

nt
 e

co
no

m
ic

 fo
cu

s.
 

Lo
ca

l P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s a
lso

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

Ha
st

in
gs

 a
nd

 R
ot

he
r T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e,
 

to
w

n 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 c
ou

nt
y 

O
n-

 g
oi

ng
 a

lth
ou

gh
 

sli
gh

tly
 m

or
e 

fo
rm

al
ise

d 
ro

ut
es

 in
 

to
 d

ec
isi

on
 m

ak
er

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
he

lp
fu

l a
s 

w
ill

 u
nd

er
-s

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 m

ai
n 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 o
ut

 
th

er
e,

 li
nk

 b
ac

k 
to

 
TE

S 
as

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 

M
or

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 a

nd
 

ev
id

en
ce

d 
de

ci
sio

n 
m

ak
in

g;
 im

pr
ov

ed
 

ch
an

ce
s o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 

80
Page 82



w
id

e.
 T

ES
 n

ee
ds

 to
 li

nk
 w

ith
 th

es
e 

Ex
ist

in
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 to
 b

e 
m

ap
pe

d.
 

N
B 

ES
SP

 a
nd

 D
ist

ric
t &

 B
or

ou
gh

 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 m
ap

pe
d 

th
es

e;
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
up

da
te

d 
ra

th
er

 th
an

 
st

ar
tin

g 
fr

om
 ze

ro
. 

R2
.2

.6
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
by

 a
ll 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 
M

/H
 

En
su

re
 st

ra
te

gi
c 

iss
ue

s/
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

ar
e 

em
be

dd
ed

 in
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

pa
rt

ne
r o

rg
an

isa
tio

ns
 a

lo
ng

 
w

ith
 T

ES
 

Re
vi

ew
 o

f D
ire

ct
io

n 
fo

r T
ES

: k
ee

p 
it 

tig
ht

, s
ho

rt
, c

le
ar

 a
nd

 sh
ar

pl
y 

fo
cu

se
d;

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 st
ra

te
gi

c 
fit

, 
re

le
va

nc
e 

an
d 

ou
tc

om
es

 fo
r e

ac
h 

el
em

en
t. 

N
ee

d 
to

 lo
ok

 m
or

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 fo

rw
ar

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 n

ex
t g

ro
w

th
 p

ro
po

sa
ls 

an
d 

‘a
sk

s’
, w

or
k 

as
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 o

n 
cr

os
s 

fe
de

ra
te

d 
pr

op
os

al
s a

nd
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 
LE

PS
. T

o 
en

su
re

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
le

ar
ni

ng
 

an
d 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 o

f T
ES

 g
oi

ng
 fo

rw
ar

d.
 

En
su

re
 th

at
 C

ou
nc

il 
Le

ad
er

s a
nd

 
se

ni
or

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

ei
r 

at
te

nd
an

ce
 a

t T
ea

m
 E

as
t S

us
se

x 
m

ee
tin

gs
. E

ns
ur

e 
 d

ec
isi

on
s a

re
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

ed
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

s’
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

, a
nd

 th
at

 th
ey

 fe
ed

 in
 

Si
gn

 u
p 

to
 fi

ni
te

  l
ist

 o
f s

tr
at

eg
ic

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

s p
er

 D
ut

y 
to

 C
o-

op
er

at
e 

(S
tr

at
eg

ic
 C

ro
ss

 B
ou

nd
ar

y 
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 D
el

iv
er

y 
Pl

an
)  

Q
U

ER
Y 

ro
le

 o
f D

ut
y 

he
re

 a
nd

 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

lis
t 

O
n 

go
in

g 
A 

st
ro

ng
 T

ES
 w

ith
 a

 
so

un
d 

pr
of

ile
 

R2
.2

.7
 O

pe
ra

te
 a

 “
lig

ht
 to

uc
h”

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 th

at
 v

al
ue

s i
nn

ov
at

io
n 

an
d 

cr
ea

tiv
ity

 b
y 

al
l p

ar
tn

er
s a

nd
 e

na
bl

es
 

ra
th

er
 th

an
 c

on
st

ra
in

s t
hi

s 

 

H 
Th

es
e 

ar
e 

th
e 

va
lu

es
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 
en

ab
le

 a
 c

re
at

iv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
or

ki
ng

 - 

To
 a

vo
id

 u
nn

ec
es

sa
ry

 
bu

re
au

cr
ac

y 
an

d 
fo

cu
s o

n 

En
su

re
 th

at
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 d
isc

us
se

d 
in

 R
2.

2.
6 

ab
ov

e 
ar

e 
no

t o
ne

ro
us

 , 
an

d 
lin

k 
w

ith
 

/ r
ei

nv
ig

or
at

e 
ex

ist
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

De
ve

lo
p 

a 
sh

ar
ed

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
th

at
 

pr
oa

ct
iv

el
y 

st
im

ul
at

es
 in

no
va

tio
n 

– 

O
n 

go
in

g 
Po

ss
ib

le
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 
in

no
va

tio
n/

 in
no

va
tiv

e 
th

in
ki

ng
 

81
Page 83



 
de

liv
er

y.
  

Th
er

e 
is 

a 
gr

ea
t d

ea
l o

f v
er

y 
pr

oa
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
w

or
k 

go
in

g 
on

.  
In

 so
m

e 
se

ns
es

 th
is 

ha
pp

en
s b

ec
au

se
 st

ru
ct

ur
es

 
ar

e 
su

ffi
ci

en
tly

 lo
os

e 
to

 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

re
al

 c
o-

op
er

at
io

n 
an

d 
ar

e 
no

t s
ee

n 
as

 b
ei

ng
 

ow
ne

d 
(o

r e
ve

n 
le

d)
 b

y 
a 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 o

rg
an

isa
tio

n 
or

 
in

di
vi

du
al

.  
W

e 
sh

ou
ld

 st
riv

e 
to

 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
is 

se
ns

e 
of

 c
o-

op
er

at
io

n 
an

d 
be

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
ris

ks
 o

f l
os

in
g 

th
is 

“l
ig

ht
 to

uc
h”

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
. 

cr
ea

tin
g 

th
e 

es
se

nt
ia

ls 
of

 ti
m

e,
 

sp
ac

e,
 su

pp
or

t a
nd

 e
nt

hu
sia

sm
. 

In
tr

in
sic

 to
 T

ES
 T

oR
 

R2
.3

 M
ap

 th
e 

m
ic

ro
 a

nd
 n

ic
he

 
cl

us
te

rs
 o

f b
us

in
es

s a
ct

iv
ity

 in
 E

as
t 

Su
ss

ex
 so

 th
at

 c
ou

nc
ils

 c
an

 e
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 th
es

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 in

te
re

st
s t

o 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
ei

r n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 b

e 
be

tt
er

 a
bl

e 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 su
pp

or
t 

H 
So

 w
e 

kn
ow

 w
ho

 to
 e

ng
ag

e 
w

ith
 a

nd
 th

en
 ta

rg
et

 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
.  

To
 c

re
at

e 
a 

sh
ar

ed
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ba
se

 

‘In
no

va
te

 E
as

t S
us

se
x’

 a
nd

 E
S 

G
ro

w
th

 
St

ra
te

gy
 p

lu
s r

el
ev

an
t d

at
as

et
s/

 
ba

se
s.

 

Da
ta

se
t o

ve
rv

ie
w

 to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

ES
CC

 A
P 

N
ov

 2
01

4 
M

ax
im

ise
 d

eg
re

e 
of

 fi
t 

be
tw

ee
n 

re
so

ur
ce

s a
nd

 
gr

ow
th

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s.
 

R2
.4

 R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ci

ng
 o

f T
ea

m
 E

as
t S

us
se

x 
to

 
en

su
re

 a
ll 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 

M
 

Al
re

ad
y 

be
in

g 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 

Al
so

 se
e 

R2
.2

.3
 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
by

 E
SC

EG
 a

nd
 L

ea
de

r’s
 

G
ro

up
; r

ev
ie

w
ed

 T
oR

 w
hi

ch
 

re
co

gn
ise

s t
he

 n
ee

d 
to

 ta
ke

 a
 

ba
la

nc
ed

, i
nt

eg
ra

tiv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 a

ll 
as

pe
ct

s o
f g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 p

ro
sp

er
ity

. 

Q
3 

20
14

/1
5 

Al
l r

el
ev

an
t 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 in
cl

ud
ed

 

R
3:

 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
w

or
ki

ng
  

 
 

 
 

 

R3
.1

 B
e 

op
en

 to
 n

ew
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 w

or
k 

m
or

e 
cl

os
el

y 
w

ith
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 to
 m

ax
im

ise
 o

ut
co

m
es

, b
ut

 
al

so
 lo

ok
 o

ut
 fo

r o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s t
o 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 w

id
er

 p
ar

tn
er

s 

H 
An

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
ra

th
er

 th
an

 a
n 

ac
tio

n 

Be
tt

er
 c

ha
nc

es
 o

f i
nn

ov
at

io
n/

 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e.

 

Al
so

 se
e 

R2
.2

.5
 

N
ee

d 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
w

ho
 a

re
 th

e 
re

al
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

, w
ho

 w
ill

 e
na

bl
e 

/ s
up

po
rt

 
pr

og
re

ss
;  

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

m
ap

pi
ng

 to
 

ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 

Re
so

ur
ci

ng
 is

su
e 

im
pl

ic
it 

in
 e

xp
lo

rin
g 

ne
w

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 

O
n 

go
in

g 
To

 a
pp

ly
 w

he
n 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
be

ne
fit

, 
sa

vi
ng

s c
an

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 

82
Page 84



N
ee

d 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

lin
ka

ge
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

Te
am

 E
as

t S
us

se
x 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 a

nd
 g

ro
up

in
gs

 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 E
as

t S
us

se
x,

 a
lig

ni
ng

 
ac

tio
ns

 a
nd

 re
so

ur
ce

s t
ha

t f
it 

w
he

re
 

th
ey

 to
uc

h.
 

Se
e 

ea
rli

er
 c

om
m

en
ts

 a
bo

ut
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
, o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s f

or
 

sh
ar

pe
ni

ng
 fo

cu
s,

 c
oh

er
en

ce
; 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 to

 u
pd

at
e 

ex
ist

in
g 

m
ap

pi
ng

 to
 sh

ar
pe

n 
fo

cu
s,

 
co

he
re

nc
e;

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 to
 u

pd
at

e 
ex

ist
in

g 
m

ap
pi

ng
 ra

th
er

 th
an

 
re

in
ve

nt
in

g 
th

e 
w

he
el

 

TE
S 

pl
us

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

R3
.2

 R
ev

ie
w

 d
iff

er
en

t g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

m
od

el
s t

o 
en

su
re

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s a
re

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

in
cl

us
iv

e 
of

 th
e 

bu
sin

es
s &

 th
ird

 se
ct

or
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

ge
nc

ie
s t

o 
m

ax
im

ise
 

so
ci

al
 v

al
ue

 a
nd

 e
co

no
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 

M
 

Se
e 

R2
.2

.3
. 

an
d 

R2
.2

.5
 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 is
 fi

t f
or

 
pu

rp
os

e 
re

co
gn

isi
ng

 th
at

 o
ne

 
siz

e 
do

es
 n

ot
 fi

t a
ll 

an
d 

th
at

 th
e 

rig
ht

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 a

re
 

ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
ta

bl
e.

 

Im
po

rt
an

t t
ha

t a
ll 

se
ct

or
s a

re
 

in
vo

lv
ed

 to
 p

ur
su

e 
bo

th
 

gr
ow

th
 a

nd
 in

cl
us

io
n 

ag
en

da
s 

En
su

re
 th

at
 p

ar
tn

er
s a

re
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
th

ird
-s

ec
to

r &
 o

th
er

 
se

ct
or

al
 st

ru
ct

ur
es

.  
U

se
 

ev
id

en
ce

 to
 in

fo
rm

 p
ro

vi
sio

n 
e.

g.
 

sh
ar

in
g 

ne
w

 d
at

a 
an

d 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
an

al
ys

is 
to

 a
id

 a
ll 

to
 ta

rg
et

 
ac

tiv
ity

. 

M
ap

pi
ng

 e
xe

rc
ise

 o
f a

ll 
th

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 w

ill
 a

id
 c

la
rit

y.
 

Le
ad

in
g 

on
 to

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

su
b 

gr
ou

ps
/f

or
um

s u
nd

er
/t

o 
ad

vi
se

 T
ES

 (m
ay

 th
en

 re
qu

ire
 

up
da

te
d 

TE
S 

To
R)

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

    N
ov

 2
01

4 

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

 

M
or

e 
st

re
am

lin
ed

 a
nd

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t. 

   M
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

ev
id

en
ce

 b
as

ed
 e

xp
er

t 
ad

vi
ce

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
to

 T
ES

 
th

ro
ug

h 
su

b 
gr

ou
ps

 
(g

ro
up

s n
ot

 to
  b

e 
in

ve
nt

ed
 w

he
re

 a
lre

ad
y 

in
 p

la
ce

) 

R3
.3

 S
tr

et
ch

 a
m

bi
tio

n 
an

d 
tr

us
t b

y 
co

m
bi

ni
ng

 re
so

ur
ce

s,
 a

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

, t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

bu
sin

es
s 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 

H/
M

 
Th

e 
cu

rr
en

t b
us

in
es

s s
up

po
rt

 
of

fe
r i

s n
ot

 u
ni

ve
rs

al
 c

ro
ss

 
co

un
ty

 n
or

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ec

on
om

ic
al

ly
 a

lig
ne

d 
ar

ea
s a

nd
 

do
es

 n
ot

 n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

re
fle

ct
 

W
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 S
EL

EP
 to

 fu
rt

he
r 

de
ve

lo
p 

th
e 

Ea
st

 S
us

se
x 

Ga
te

w
ay

 
fo

r G
ro

w
th

 u
nd

er
 S

EL
EP

 G
ro

w
th

 
Hu

bs
. U

se
 o

f L
GF

 a
nd

 E
RD

F.
 

Be
tt

er
 m

at
ch

 o
f s

up
pl

y 
w

ith
 

Sp
rin

g 
20

15
 

Fo
cu

se
d 

su
pp

or
t w

he
re

 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
ca

n 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 re

al
 a

dd
ed

 
va

lu
e 

to
 b

us
in

es
s 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
an

d 

83
Page 85



co
lle

ct
iv

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 

bu
sin

es
s n

ee
d,

 m
ay

 re
qu

ire
 

sim
pl

ifi
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

be
tt

er
 

ta
rg

et
in

g 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

di
sc

er
na

bl
e 

be
ne

fit
s)

 to
 b

us
in

es
s a

nd
 th

e 
ec

on
om

y 
(a

nd
 so

 h
as

 h
ea

lth
y 

po
sit

iv
e 

co
st

 b
en

ef
it 

ra
tio

) 

ev
id

en
ce

d 
de

m
an

d 
e.

g.
 v

ia
 th

e 
bu

sin
es

s s
ur

ve
y 

/ b
ar

rie
rs

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 th

e 
SM

E 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n 
et

c.
 

gr
ow

th
; i

nc
re

as
ed

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
ca

pa
ci

ty
. 

R3
.4

 H
el

p 
ea

ch
 o

th
er

 w
ith

 th
e 

ha
rd

 
ch

oi
ce

s r
eg

ar
di

ng
 th

e 
Du

ty
 to

 C
o-

op
er

at
e 

w
hi

lst
 in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

pr
io

rit
ie

s a
cr

os
s t

he
 a

re
a 

H/
M

 
In

ev
ita

bl
e 

te
ns

io
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
m

ee
tin

g 
gr

ow
th

 n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 g
re

en
 sp

ac
es

, a
nd

 
ur

ba
n/

ru
ra

l d
im

en
sio

n 

ES
 S

PM
G 

Ag
re

em
en

t t
hr

ou
gh

 E
SC

EG
 a

nd
 

Le
ad

er
’s

 G
ro

up
 

As
 p

er
 D

ut
y 

to
 C

o-
op

er
at

e 
w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

– 
in

 
ha

nd
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
pr

os
pe

ct
s o

f 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 st
ra

te
gi

c 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

R3
.5

 B
ra

nd
in

g 
w

ill
 b

e 
es

se
nt

ia
l a

s 
w

ill
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 re
co

gn
ise

 w
he

n 
to

 
m

ar
ke

t a
s ‘

Ea
st

 S
us

se
x’

 a
nd

 w
he

n 
to

 
m

ar
ke

t a
s ‘

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ar
ea

s’
 o

f t
he

 
co

un
ty

 (u
nd

er
st

an
d 

an
d 

pl
ay

 to
 

co
lle

ct
iv

e 
&

 in
di

vi
du

al
 st

re
ng

th
s a

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y)

 in
 a

 w
ay

 w
hi

ch
 m

ax
im

ise
s 

ec
on

om
ic

 g
ro

w
th

, o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 &
 

be
ne

fit
s f

or
 b

us
in

es
se

s a
nd

 
re

sid
en

ts
  

M
/L

  
Al

so
 se

e 
R2

.2
.4

; 
R2

.3
 a

nd
 

R4
.3

 

Al
th

ou
gh

 th
is 

m
ay

 h
av

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l w

e 
st

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 th

is 
is 

re
qu

ire
d,

 w
ha

t b
ra

nd
in

g 
co

ul
d 

m
ea

n 
/ l

oo
k 

lik
e 

an
d 

w
ho

 it
 is

 
ai

m
ed

 a
t 

Ev
en

t O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4 
fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 b
y 

LG
A 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4 
‘b

ra
nd

in
g/

na
rr

at
iv

e 
ev

en
t’ 

 

R
4:

 
B

us
in

es
s 

fo
cu

s 
 

 
 

 
 

R4
.1

 F
oc

us
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
w

he
re

 th
ey

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
th

e 
m

os
t 

ch
an

ce
s o

f s
uc

ce
ss

 in
 su

pp
or

tin
g 

lo
ca

l b
us

in
es

se
s w

hi
le

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

va
lu

e 
fo

r m
on

ey
 

M
/H

 
To

 su
pp

or
t l

oc
al

 b
us

in
es

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 g
ro

w
th

. 

N
B 

Lo
ca

l b
us

in
es

s s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 
VF

M
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

lw
ay

s b
e 

co
m

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 
w

he
n 

se
ek

in
g 

ec
on

om
ie

s o
f 

sc
al

e.
 

Th
is 

ha
s a

lre
ad

y 
co

m
m

en
ce

d 
w

ith
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
Ea

st
 S

us
se

x 
Pr

oc
ur

em
en

t H
ub

 

Lo
ok

 a
t b

es
t p

ra
ct

ic
e 

fr
om

 o
th

er
 

co
un

ci
ls.

 F
oc

us
 o

n 
be

lo
w

 E
U

 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t l
ev

el
s w

he
re

 th
e 

bu
lk

 o
f t

he
 D

ist
ric

t c
ou

nc
il’

s 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t o
cc

ur
s a

nd
 fa

lls
 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 

So
ci

al
 V

al
ue

 A
ct

. L
oo

k 
to

 se
e 

ho
w

 
EU

 a
nd

 a
bo

ve
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
ts

 d
o 

no
t d

isa
dv

an
ta

ge
 lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
s;

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
Gr

ea
te

r r
et

en
tio

n 
of

 
pu

bl
ic

-s
ec

to
r s

pe
nd

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
. 

Be
tt

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 
pr

ov
isi

on
 a

nd
 v

fm
 a

s 
su

pp
lie

r r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 

de
ve

lo
p.

 

M
or

e 
bi

ds
 fr

om
 lo

ca
l 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 a

nd
 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 

lo
ca

l c
om

pa
ni

es
 

84
Page 86



co
ns

id
er

 d
iv

id
in

g 
co

nt
ra

ct
s i

nt
o 

lo
ts

; e
ns

ur
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

re
 n

ot
 e

xc
es

siv
el

y 
on

er
ou

s.
 

Th
e 

lin
ks

 th
e 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t H

ub
 

ha
s e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
w

ith
 F

SB
 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t a

cc
or

d 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 

up
on

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 sk

ill
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

, a
nd

 re
gu

la
r 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 

de
ep

en
 c

on
st

ru
ct

iv
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 

 Ex
ist

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ca
n 

be
 

an
al

ys
ed

 to
 c

re
at

e 
a 

ba
se

lin
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

su
cc

es
s o

f l
oc

al
 c

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 

fo
r t

he
 E

as
t S

us
se

x 
Pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
Hu

b.
 

 C
on

tin
ue

 to
 in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 

us
e 

of
 L

oc
al

 M
ul

tip
lie

r 3
 to

 
en

su
re

 b
et

te
r r

et
en

tio
n 

of
 

fis
ca

l/o
th

er
 b

en
ef

it 
fr

om
 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
. 

 En
co

ur
ag

e 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 a
re

 
pr

oc
ur

in
g 

co
nt

ra
ct

s t
o 

ad
ve

rt
ise

 
on

 th
e 

SE
 S

ha
re

d 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t h

ub
 p

or
ta

l. 
Th

is 
w

ou
ld

 in
cr

ea
se

 lo
ca

l c
om

pa
ny

 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 to

 b
id

. 

Th
e 

ca
ta

ly
st

s f
or

 g
et

tin
g 

pu
bl

ic
/p

riv
at

e/
th

ird
 se

ct
or

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 to

 w
or

k 
to

ge
th

er
 a

re
 to

 

w
in

ni
ng

 te
nd

er
s 

Po
ss

ib
le

 e
co

no
m

ie
s a

nd
 

va
lu

e 
ad

de
d.

 

Gr
ea

te
r n

um
be

r o
f E

as
t 

Su
ss

ex
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
en

ga
gi

ng
 w

ith
 E

SP
H 

an
d 

re
gi

st
er

in
g 

w
ith

 S
ES

SP
.  

85
Page 87



pr
ov

id
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 &
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
an

d 
on

go
in

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
co

ns
tr

uc
tiv

e 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
. A

 fi
rs

t s
te

p 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 to
 h

ol
d 

a 
ne

tw
or

k 
m

ee
tin

g 
of

 
in

te
re

st
ed

 p
ar

tie
s t

o 
tr

y 
to

 se
t u

p 
th

e 
tr

ai
ni

ng
. 

R4
.2

 R
ev

ie
w

, a
lo

ng
 w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s,

 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

cr
os

s t
he

 
co

un
ci

ls 
w

ith
 a

 v
ie

w
 to

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

ne
w

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s t

o 
pr

om
ot

e 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 fo

r l
oc

al
 

bu
sin

es
se

s 

Se
e 

R4
.1

 
ab

ov
e 

 
N

ew
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s a
re

 a
lre

ad
y 

be
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 

ch
an

ge
s r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 li

nk
 th

e 
e-

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
 w

ith
 th

e 
SE

 
Sh

ar
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

s P
or

ta
l 

 
 

R4
.3

 C
on

tin
ue

 to
 re

co
gn

ise
 to

ur
ism

 
an

d 
cu

ltu
re

 a
cr

os
s t

he
 c

ou
nt

y 
as

 
im

po
rt

an
t e

le
m

en
ts

 fo
r g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 

co
ns

id
er

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s t

o 
fu

rt
he

r s
up

po
rt

 th
es

e 
pa

rt
s o

f t
he

 
ec

on
om

y 

 Al
so

 se
e 

R2
.2

 

H 
 

Al
so

 se
e 

R2
.2

.4
; 

R3
.5

 

As
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

or
s t

o 
th

e 
lo

ca
l 

ec
on

om
y 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

nt
rib

ut
in

g 
to

 se
ct

or
 

di
ve

rs
ifi

ca
tio

n.
 

Su
pp

or
ts

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l v

isi
to

r 
ec

on
om

y 
in

 b
ot

h 
ru

ra
l a

nd
 

ur
ba

n 
ar

ea
s 

Cu
ltu

ra
l a

ct
io

ns
 to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
vi

a 
th

e 
Cu

ltu
ra

l A
dv

iso
ry

 B
oa

rd
 

no
tin

g 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 

re
pr

es
en

te
d 

th
er

e 
al

so
 si

t o
n 

th
e 

Cu
ltu

ra
l D

es
tin

at
io

ns
 C

on
so

rt
iu

m
 

PL
U

S 
TE

S 
an

d 
lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
ic

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 in

 th
e 

lig
ht

 o
f t

he
 

w
or

k 
of

 C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

lo
ca

l c
ul

tu
ra

l 
an

d 
to

ur
ism

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s.
 

CA
B 

is 
a 

ne
w

 g
ro

up
 a

nd
 th

e 
To

R 
is 

st
ill

 b
ei

ng
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 b
ut

 m
ai

n 
fo

cu
s i

s o
n 

cu
ltu

ra
l d

es
tin

at
io

ns
 

no
t t

he
 v

isi
to

r e
co

no
m

y 
in

 it
s 

w
id

er
 se

ns
e 

To
ur

ism
 lo

cu
s o

f B
/D

Cs
 a

nd
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
lo

ca
lly

 

Vi
sit

or
 e

co
no

m
y 

re
qu

ire
s f

ut
ur

e 
pr

oo
fin

g 
an

d 
th

e 
cu

ltu
ra

l s
tr

at
eg

y 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n;

 c
an

 a
 c

ol
le

ct
iv

e 

Cu
ltu

re
 in

 h
an

d 
+ 

in
pu

t f
ro

m
 

‘n
ar

ra
tiv

e 
w

or
ks

ho
p’

 O
ct

ob
er

 

Br
an

di
ng

 to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
vi

ew
 o

f 
to

ur
ism

. 
Ac

tio
ns

 a
ro

un
d 

to
ur

ism
 a

re
 n

ot
 

lo
gi

ca
lly

 p
la

ce
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

Cu
ltu

ra
l 

Ad
vi

so
ry

 B
oa

rd
  

N
ot

w
ith

st
an

di
ng

 
th

e 
cu

ltu
ra

l 
de

st
in

at
io

ns
 

co
ns

or
tiu

m
, 

to
ur

ism
 a

nd
 c

ul
tu

re
 

ar
e 

no
t i

de
nt

ic
al

. 
To

ur
ism

 a
ct

iv
ity

 is
 

 

86
Page 88



of
fe

r y
ie

ld
 m

or
e 

sp
en

d 
in

 E
S?

 
fo

cu
se

d 
at

 lo
ca

l 
le

ve
l (

10
66

 C
ou

nt
ry

 
et

c.
) a

nd
 th

er
e 

is 
no

 
ag

re
em

en
t t

ha
t t

hi
s 

w
ill

 c
ha

ng
e.

 
Th

is 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
or

e 
ce

nt
ra

l i
n 

th
e 

gr
ow

th
 st

ra
te

gy
 

an
d 

un
de

r t
he

 
pu

rv
ie

w
 o

f T
ES

 
its

el
f a

t a
 st

ra
te

gi
c 

le
ve

l 

Po
st

 S
ep

t. 
19

  
w

or
ks

ho
p 

R4
.4

 E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s,

 
bu

sin
es

s a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 in
flu

en
ce

 &
 

sh
ap

e 
sk

ill
s a

nd
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

rio
rit

ie
s f

or
 

th
e 

ec
on

om
y 

w
ith

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
sk

ill
s p

ro
vi

de
rs

 

H/
M

 
It 

is 
re

co
gn

ise
d 

th
at

 n
at

io
na

l 
fu

nd
in

g 
po

lic
y,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 E
FA

 
fu

nd
in

g 
in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

, d
oe

s n
ot

 a
lw

ay
s l

en
d 

its
el

f t
o 

em
pl

oy
er

s b
ei

ng
 a

bl
e 

to
 sh

ap
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s t
o 

m
ee

t 
bu

sin
es

s n
ee

d 

Es
se

nt
ia

l t
ha

t e
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
sk

ill
s p

ro
vi

sio
n 

is 
re

le
va

nt
 to

 
lo

ca
l w

or
kf

or
ce

 n
ee

ds
 

Th
e 

An
nu

al
 B

us
in

es
s S

ur
ve

y 
as

 a
n 

{e
vi

de
nc

e}
 to

ol
 w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 
ga

th
er

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fr
om

 
em

pl
oy

er
s a

bo
ut

 n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 

pr
io

rit
ie

s,
 a

m
on

gs
t o

th
er

 
m

et
ho

ds
, a

nd
 e

co
no

m
et

ric
 

fo
re

ca
st

in
g 

w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 

fo
re

ca
st

 se
ct

or
al

 a
nd

 
oc

cu
pa

tio
na

l g
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 
re

su
lti

ng
 sk

ill
s r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

.  
In

 
ad

di
tio

n,
 a

 n
ew

 E
m

pl
oy

ab
ili

ty
 

an
d 

Sk
ill

s P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 li
nk

ed
 w

ith
 

th
e 

Ea
st

 S
us

se
x 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
(fo

r c
oh

er
en

ce
 a

nd
 

cr
os

s-
se

ct
or

al
 li

nk
ag

e 
an

d 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
), 

 d
ra

w
in

g 
in

 b
ot

h 
cu

rr
en

t a
nd

 n
ew

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pr
ov

id
er

s,
 th

e 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

se
ct

or
, B

/D
C 

an
d 

re
le

va
nt

 e
co

no
m

ic
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

O
n-

go
in

g;
 

pr
og

re
ss

io
n 

re
in

vi
go

ra
te

d 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

01
4 

          

Cl
os

er
 fi

t o
f e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 o
ut

pu
t t

o 
ec

on
om

ic
 n

ee
d.

 

87
Page 89



an
d 

bu
sin

es
se

s,
 is

 b
ei

ng
 fo

rm
ed

 
an

d 
w

ill
 m

ee
t e

ar
ly

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

.  
Th

e 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
w

ill
 c

ov
er

 
a 

w
id

e 
ag

en
da

 a
nd

 w
ill

 h
el

p 
to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 e
m

pl
oy

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 

sk
ill

s f
ul

ly
 su

pp
or

t s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
.  

 

Th
er

e 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
lo

ca
l 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 

ec
on

om
ic

 a
re

as
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nt
y.

 

N
ew

 w
eb

 b
as

ed
 ‘e

m
pl

oy
er

 sk
ill

s 
po

rt
al

’ d
ev

el
op

ed
 n

at
io

na
lly

 
en

ab
lin

g 
bu

sin
es

se
s t

o 
re

qu
es

t 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 th

en
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 to
 

lo
ok

 to
 m

ee
t r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

. 
Th

e 
em

pl
oy

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 sk

ill
s 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

ap
pe

ar
s t

o 
ex

cl
ud

e 
lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
ic

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s a
nd

 
Di

st
ric

t C
ou

nc
ils

.  
It 

m
ak

es
 n

o 
m

en
tio

n 
of

 c
o-

or
di

na
te

d 
ac

tio
n 

at
 a

 lo
ca

l l
ev

el
 fo

cu
sin

g 
on

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

eo
gr

ap
hy

.  
M

ov
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d 
ou

gh
t t

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
sk

ill
s p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s,

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

an
d 

ot
he

rs
 w

or
ki

ng
 a

t a
 tr

ul
y 

lo
ca

l l
ev

el
. 

TE
S 

ne
ed

s t
o 

be
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

di
sc

us
sio

ns
 a

nd
 

en
su

rin
g 

pr
op

er
 id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 n
ee

d 
ac

ro
ss

 
th

e 
Co

un
ty

. 

 Au
tu

m
n 

20
14

 

R4
.5

 R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f 

Lo
ca

te
 E

as
t S

us
se

x 
an

d 
in

w
ar

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
, w

ith
 a

 v
ie

w
 to

 

M
 

An
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
nt

ac
t b

et
w

ee
n 

al
l 

6 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
Th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 d

el
iv

er
ab

le
s a

re
 

al
re

ad
y 

m
on

ito
re

d 
an

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

a 
m

id
-t

er
m

 re
vi

ew
 in

 

M
id

-t
er

m
 re

vi
ew

 in
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4;
 

fu
rt

he
r r

ev
ie

w
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
ta

ke
 u

p 
of

 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

er
ci

al
 

pr
op

er
ty

; f
ac

ili
ta

tin
g 

fit
 

88
Page 90



un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
if 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

w
ou

ld
 d

el
iv

er
 a

dd
ed

 v
al

ue
 

O
ct

ob
er

 v
ia

 re
po

rt
 to

 
Le

ad
er

s/
ES

CE
 m

ee
tin

g 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
so

ur
ci

ng
 

ne
ar

er
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 c
on

tr
ac

t M
ay

 
20

15
 

be
tw

ee
n 

bu
sin

es
s 

pr
em

ise
s a

nd
 

bu
sin

es
se

s w
hi

ch
 se

ek
 

to
 e

xp
an

d;
 su

pp
or

tin
g 

in
w

ar
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t; 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
bu

sin
es

s 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 R

GF
 4

 

R
5:

 
K

ey
 m

es
sa

ge
s 

 
 

 
 

 
R5

.1
 E

as
t S

us
se

x 
is 

po
ise

d 
to

 
ac

ce
le

ra
te

 g
ro

w
th

 b
ut

 th
is 

ne
ed

s 
co

lle
ct

iv
e 

vi
sio

n 
dr

iv
en

 b
y 

a 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

vi
ew

  

  R5
.1

; R
5.

2;
 R

5.
3:

 L 
Lo

w
 p

rio
rit

y 
as

 se
en

 a
s a

 su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 a
ll 

ac
tio

ns
 a

lre
ad

y 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 th

er
ef

or
e 

th
er

e 
is 

no
 n

ee
d 

to
 in

di
vi

du
al

ly
 re

fe
r t

o 
th

es
e 

ke
y 

m
es

sa
ge

s.
 

Pr
id

e 
of

 P
la

ce
 re

pr
es

en
ts

 th
e 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 st

ra
te

gi
c 

vi
sio

n 
fo

r E
as

t S
us

se
x 

as
 a

 w
ho

le
 (a

do
pt

ed
 c

ol
le

ct
iv

el
y 

an
d 

in
di

vi
du

al
ly

 b
y 

al
l l

oc
al

 
au

th
or

iti
es

 a
cr

os
s E

as
t S

us
se

x 
ap

ar
t f

ro
m

 th
e 

So
ut

h 
Do

w
ns

 N
at

io
na

l P
ar

k.
; t

he
 e

co
no

m
ic

 e
le

m
en

ts
 in

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
ov

er
ar

ch
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
t a

nd
 in

di
vi

du
al

 a
re

a 
ch

ap
te

rs
 sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 ro
bu

st
 a

nd
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

la
tf

or
m

 fo
r t

hi
s e

m
er

gi
ng

 
Ac

tio
n 

Pl
an

. 

R5
.2

 C
on

tin
ue

 to
 b

ui
ld

 o
n 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 a
cr

os
s t

he
 c

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 w
he

n 
to

 w
or

k 
co

lle
ct

iv
el

y 
an

d 
w

he
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

. T
he

 c
on

se
ns

us
 

al
re

ad
y 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
ov

en
 

tr
ac

k 
re

co
rd

 is
 th

e 
w

ay
 fo

r c
ou

nc
ils

 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 e
co

no
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 fo

r t
he

ir 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
. T

hi
s a

pp
ro

ac
h 

m
ay

 
re

qu
ire

 in
di

vi
du

al
 c

ou
nc

ils
 to

 tr
ad

e 
so

m
e 

co
nt

ro
l o

n 
ce

rt
ai

n 
iss

ue
s i

n 
ex

ch
an

ge
 fo

r e
nh

an
ce

d 
ra

te
s o

f 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 p
ro

sp
er

ity
 a

cr
os

s t
he

 
co

un
ty

 a
s a

 w
ho

le
. P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

co
un

ci
ls 

ar
e 

no
t 

co
ns

tr
ai

ne
d 

by
 T

ea
m

 E
as

t S
us

se
x 

an
d 

m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
eg

io
na

l, 
na

tio
na

l a
nd

 in
te

rn
at

io
na

l w
or

ki
ng

  

R5
.3

 W
or

ki
ng

 to
ge

th
er

 a
nd

 
st

re
tc

hi
ng

 th
e 

bo
un

da
rie

s f
or

 c
lo

se
r 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ill

 b
ui

ld
 tr

us
t a

nd
 le

ad
 to

 

89
Page 91



m
at

ur
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 
be

tw
ee

n 
co

un
ci

ls 
an

d 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 

 

90
Page 92



 
Agenda Item 7  

Report to:  Cabinet  
Date:   15 October 2014 
By: Chief Operating Officer  
Title of report: East Sussex National Non Domestic Rates Pooling Agreement   
Purpose of report: To ask Cabinet to approve entering into the East Sussex National Non 

Domestic Rates Pooling Agreement. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
Cabinet are recommended to approve entering into the East Sussex National Non Domestic Rates 
Pooling Agreement, and: 
1. Endorse the Council’s participation in an East Sussex NDR pool, this includes: 
a) Endorse that the basic principle on which the agreement is based is that no authority will receive 
a lower level of funding than they would have received without the pool;  
b) Endorse that any resources gained on the basis of the levy amount that was saved by individual 
authorities be shared on the following basis 40% to ESCC, 10% to the Fire Authority and the 
remaining 50% split amongst the District/Borough Councils; 
c) That the finalisation of the submission, agreement of the Memorandum of Understanding, and the 
final decision on whether it is financial advantageous to partake in the pool is delegated to the Chief 
Finance Officer;  
d) Chief Finance Officer to review the council’s membership of the Pool on an annual basis; and   
e) Note the lead authority in respect of the administration of the Pool will be Wealden District 
Council. 
 
 
1.  Financial Implications 
 
1.1 Local authorities are free to come together to form pools for Non Domestic Rates (NDR) purposes. 
In such cases tariffs and top-ups can be combined – and this can result in lower payments being made to 
the government. Authorities within such arrangements need to agree how risks and benefits are shared. A 
pooling arrangement within East Sussex, covering the County, the five Boroughs and Districts and the Fire 
& Rescue service, could result in additional resources being retained within East Sussex. The estimates 
identify sums of £1.8m in 2015/16, £2m in 2016/17 and £2.2m in 2017/18 which would be shared between 
authorities and used for economic development purposes. 
 
1.2 East Sussex County Council’s share of the above would be £0.7m in 2015/16, £0.8m in 2016/17 
and £0.9m in 2017/18. 
 
1.3 The longer term benefit of operating a Pool arrangement is that a larger proportion of any increase 
in NDR resulting from economic development activity will be retained within the county.  

2. Background  

2.1 A new national funding regime was introduced on 1 April 2013 whereby local authorities effectively 
retain a proportion of any additional business rate income collected (above inflation) or conversely will 
experience a reduction in resources if the business rate base declines. 

2.2 Under the scheme 50% of business rates is localised through a system of top-ups and tariffs that fix 
an amount to be paid by high yield authorities and distributed to low yield authorities – this amount being 
increased annually by inflation (RPI). The proportion retained by individual collection authorities in East 
Sussex is 40%, 9% is payable to East Sussex County Council, and 1% to Fire and Rescue authority (the 
government receive 50%). 

2.3 The 50% central government share is distributed through the formula grant process (now termed 
Settlement Funding Assessment) – thus enabling the government to control the overall amount received by 
local authorities. Where there is disproportionate growth this will be used to provide a safety net for those 
authorities experiencing little or negative growth and allows the treasury to top slice business rates income. 

91
Page 93

Agenda Item 7



 
A reset mechanism will be in place with the first reset in 2020 and periods of 10 years between resets 
thereafter. 

3. Pooling 

3.1  To date on a national basis there are 18 pools in operation, comprising 111 different authorities. 

3.2    A report on the potential for pooling in East Sussex was first considered by the Leaders and Chief 
Executives/Directors of respective Councils on the 25 October 2013, with a subsequent report on the 25 
April 2014 and more recently on the 25 July 2014 where all Councils agreed unanimously that an 
application should be submitted for 2015/16 on the basis of the arrangements and recommendations 
outlined in this report.  

3.3 A company called LG Futures has been employed to collate and advise on the financial viability of 
the scheme, modelling some of the risks and identifying appropriate governance arrangements. LG futures 
will also help draft and coordinate the submission of an application on behalf of the seven authorities. 
  
3.4 The issues are however complex and the financial figures and assumptions upon which the 
assessments are based are largely on the first year of a new funding stream and estimates for future years 
should be viewed with a level of potential change.  
 
3.5 The 2015/16 pooling prospectus issued by the Department of Communities and Local Government 
(DCLG) makes it clear that a pooling application is unlikely to be approved merely on the basis that the pool 
will enable a greater level of business rates to be retained locally (to the detriment of the national pool).  
There will be a need for authorities therefore to agree a common objective to support any pooling 
application, for example making a clear link between economic development strategy, investment and 
consequent growth in the business rate base.   
 
3.6 In brief the financial case for pooling remains strong.  The joint application will need to be made by 
31 October 2014 for it to apply in the 2015/16 financial year.  
 
3.7 Agreement does need to be reached on a number of governance arrangements, namely:- 
(1)  Appointing a lead authority  
(2)  Supporting authorities that fall below the safety net 
(3) Splitting the gains/losses from pooling 
(4) Timetable and Authorisation 
(5)  Annual review 
 
3.8 A summary of the suggested approach to each of these issues are set out on Appendix 1. 
 
4. Recommendations 
 
4.1 Cabinet are recommended to endorse: 
a) The basic principle on which the agreement is based is that no authority will receive a lower level of 
funding than they would have received without the pool. 
b) That any resources gained on the basis of the levy amount that was saved by individual authorities be 
shared on the following basis 40% to ESCC, 10% to the Fire authority and the remaining 50% split amongst 
the District/Borough Councils. 
c) That the finalisation of the submission, agreement of the Memorandum of Understanding, and the final 
decision on whether it is financial advantageous to partake in the pool is delegated to the Chief Finance 
Officer. 
d) The Chief Finance Officer to review the council’s membership of the Pool on an annual basis; and to 
e) Note the lead authority in respect of the administration of the Pool will be Wealden District Council. 
 
KEVIN FOSTER 
Chief Operating Officer  
 
Contact Officer: Graham Friday, Interim head of Financial Planning Contact number: 01273 481579 

92
Page 94



 
 

Appendix 1  
 
 

East Sussex National Non Domestic Rate Pooling Agreement 
 
The following paragraphs provide background to the general assumptions that will be used in finalising the 
terms of the agreement.  
 
1. Appointing a Lead Authority 
 
1.1 A lead authority will need to be named in the application. It has already been agreed that LG 
Futures will be contracted to advise the pool in 2015/16 (should an application be successful), and this will 
also provide a degree of objectivity and impartiality for all parties. The very limited costs being shared 
equally between the seven authorities. 
 
1.2 Wealden DC has indicated that they would be prepared to undertake the role of lead authority to 
administer and manage the operation of the pool. 
 
2. Supporting Authorities that fall below the Safety Net  
 
2.1 Currently if local authorities suffer significant reductions in the business rate tax base, a safety net is 
applied to restrict losses in any one year to 7.5% of a Council’s baseline funding level.  
 
2.2 Authorities need to jointly agree as a basic principle that no authority will receive a lower level of 
funding than they would have received without the pool i.e. than under the current DCLG scheme. 
 
2.3 Therefore if one of Boroughs and Districts was to see a reduction in their business rate collected 
because of loss of a major business, that loss would be covered by the retained levies from the other 
authorities, before the residual gain is shared between the seven authorities. 
 
2.4 LG Futures were asked to undertake a sensitivity analysis to assess the impact of the potential 
overall cash benefit of both a 5% increase and 5% decrease in collection levels. 
 
2.5 In terms of sensitivity analysis, the gain from pooling resulting from a 5% decrease in NDR income 
in 2015/16, across the whole county, would reduce the retained benefits from  £1.8m to £0.6m. No authority 
would hit the safety net if NDR income was 5% lower than currently forecast. The gain from pooling from a 
5% increase in NDR income in 2015/16 increases from £1.8m to £3.0m in 2015/16.   
 
2.6 The key risk in the Pool arrangement revolves around the reduction in the business rate taxbase. 
This could arise as a result of recession, companies closing down, or the level of rating appeals that are still 
outstanding resulting in larger than estimated reductions in rateable values. The report by LG futures 
considered what level of loss would be required for the overall Pool to loss all of its potential benefit. For 
this to materialise each borough / district area would need to lose the equivalent of two of the highest rate 
payers, without warning, and for a whole year. The potential for this happening is considered as being 
highly unlikely in terms of growth being forecast in the economy as a whole.  In all the Boroughs and 
Districts the majority of the highest business rate payers come from the Retail sector and consist of the 
major Supermarket chains. 
 
3. Splitting the Gains/Losses from Pooling   
 
3.1 Should a pool not be formed, each District and Borough Council will end up paying a levy to the 
government based upon the level of business rate growth in their respective areas. The formation of the 
pool allows authorities to offset the levy payable against “Top up “authorities e.g. ESCC and the Fire 
authority. 
 
3.2 LG Futures were asked to provide options for the basis of sharing any net retained rates within the 
pool.  The authorities Chief Finance Officers considered all options and agreed that a split based upon the 
levy amount that was saved by individual authorities, would be the most equitable solution. The basis of the 

93
Page 95



 
split is 40% ESCC, 10% Fire authority and 50% split amongst the remaining District and Borough Councils.  
The following table shows the potential proceeds based on current levy projections.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 This split is seen as the simplest and most transparent solution. It also has the following benefits: 
(i) simpler administration 
(ii) allows resources to be used in a timely manner/each local authority can determine its own reserve 
policy should a budgeted surplus actually result in a loss. 
(iii) still allows local authorities to combine resources for joint working and allows for match funding. 
(iv) would be more straight forward if the pool was dissolved or gained/lost members in the future. 
 
4. Timetable and Authorisation 
 
4.1 An application has to be made by the 31st October 2014, in the form of a joint Memorandum of 
Understanding.   
 
4.2 The DCLG regulations require that the submission itself has to be authorised by the Chief Financial 
Officer of each authority. The timescales for compilation and agreement of the submission is tight. In 
addition there is only a narrow window to decide whether to withdraw an application once the Local 
Government settlement is known in December 2014. For practicable purposes alone, it would appear to be 
sensible to delegate the finalisation of the submission and the decision on whether to submit and/or 
withdraw the application on financial grounds to the Chief Finance Officer.  
 
5. Annual Review 

 
5.1 Should the application be successful, the pool would continue to operate for a minimum of one year. 
Should an individual authority withdraw from the pool arrangement, then the pool will terminate and if 
required a new Pooling arrangements with a revised number of authorities could then be set up. 
 
5.2 To ensure that this potential is managed the Memorandum of Undertaking will place an obligation 
on all authorities to review their membership of the pool annually and be given the authority to withdraw 
from the pool where it is not financially advantageous to retain membership. Such a decision is to be taken 
in consultation with the remaining authorities in the pool and at the earliest possible time, in order to allow 
for an alternative submission to be made. 
 

Local Authority 

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

£m £m £m 

Eastbourne  0.223 0.301 0.311 
Hastings  0.061 0.063 0.066 
Lewes 0.230 0.238 0.246 
Rother 0.139 0.177 0.218 
Wealden 0.243 0.251 0.260 
East Sussex  0.716 0.823 0.880 
East Sussex Fire 0.179 0.206 0.220 
Overall 1.790 2.057 2.201 

94
Page 96



Cabinet – 15 October 2014  

 

Item 7 – Non domestic rate pooling agreement  

 

Amended recommendations:  

 

The Cabinet is recommended: 

 

(1) To agree, subject to recommendation 2 below and  the Chief Finance Officer being 
satisfied: 
 
a) that no authority shall receive a lower level of funding than they would have 

received without the Pool; and 

b) any resources gained on the basis of the levy amount saved by individual 

authorities be shared on the following basis: 40% to ESCC, 10% to the Fire Authority 

and the remaining 50% split amongst the District/Borough Councils; 

 

                         

to  the Council’s participation in an East Sussex National Non Domestic Rate Pool 

 

(2) to agree to delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to  agree the terms of, and 

enter into the Memorandum of Understanding and to take any other action to give effect to 

recommendation 1 above; and 

 

 

(3) agree that the Chief Finance Officer shall review the Council’s membership of the Pool 

on an annual basis  

 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8    
Report to: 
 

Cabinet 
 

Date: 
 

15 October 2014 

By: 
 

Chief Operating Officer 

Title of report: 
 

Treasury Management – 2013/14 Stewardship/Half Year 2014/15 Report 

Purpose of report: To present a review of the County Council’s performance on treasury 
management for the year 2013/14 and Mid Year review for 2014/15. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Cabinet is recommended to note the Treasury Management 
performance in 2013/14 incorporating the Mid Year review for the first half of 2014/15 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The annual stewardship report reviews the Council’s treasury management performance and 
Mid Year report is required by the Code of Practice for Treasury Management.   

2.        Supporting Information  

2.1 The County Council’s treasury management activities are regulated by a variety of 
professional codes and statutes and guidance. The County Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of 
Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Sector and operates treasury management service 
in compliance with this Code. These require that the prime objective of the treasury management 
activity is the effective management of risk, and that its borrowing activities are undertaken in a 
prudent, affordable and sustainable basis and treasury management practices demonstrate a low risk 
approach.  The Code requires the regular reporting of treasury management activities to: 
 

 Forecast the likely activity for the forthcoming year (in the Annual Treasury Strategy Report ); 
and  

 Review actual activity for the preceding year (this Stewardship report). 
 A mid year review  
 

2.2 This report sets out: 
 A summary of the original strategy agreed for 2013/14 and the economic factors affecting this 

strategy (Appendix A).  
 The treasury management activity during the year (Appendix B); 
 The treasury management Mid Year activity for 2014/15 (Appendix C); 
 The Prudential Indicators, which relate to the Treasury function and compliance with limits 

(Appendix D). 
 

3.      The economic conditions compared to our original Strategy for 2013/14 
 
3.1 The original strategy and the economic conditions prevailing in 2013/14 are set out in 
Appendix A which is attached to this report.  2013/14 continued the challenging environment of the 
previous years, with concerns over the states of the UK economy and of European countries.  The 
main implications have been continuing counterparty risk and low investment returns. 
 
4.       The Treasury activity during the year on short term investments and borrowing 
 
The Treasury Management Strategy 
 
4.1      The strategy for 2013/14, agreed in January 2013, continued the prudent approach and 
ensured that all investments were only to the highest quality rated banks and only up to a period of 
one year (revised to 2 years within the 2014/15 strategy).  A more prudent approach was adopted 
throughout 2013/14 because of the uncertainties in the market and the emphasis was to be able to 
pre-empt/react quickly if market conditions worsen. 
Short term lending 

95
Page 99

Agenda Item 8



 
4.2 The total amount received in short term interest for 2013/14 was £1.35m at an average rate of 
0.39%.  This was below the average of base rates in the same period (0.5%) and against a backdrop 
of ensuring, so far as possible in the current financial climate, the security of principal and the 
minimisation of risk.  This Council has continued to follow a prudent approach with security and 
liquidity as the main criteria before yield.   

Short term borrowing              

4.3 No borrowing was undertaken on a short-term basis during 2013/14 to cover temporary 
overdraft situations. 

Long term borrowing                    

4.4 Details of our long term borrowing are included in Appendix B of the report. The important 
points are: 

 No new borrowing was undertaking during 2013/14.  It was agreed to use “internal borrowing” to 
finance new capital investment 

 The average interest rate of all debt at 31 March 2014 (£262.9m) was 5.20%. 

 Although a proactive approach has been taken to repayment and restructuring of debt, no cost 
effective opportunities arose during the year.   

 
5. Treasury Management Mid Year Review 2014/15 

5.1 The Treasury Management and Annual Investment Strategy for 2014/15 were approved by 
the Cabinet 28 January 2014 and there have been no policy changes to date. 

 
6. Prudential Indicators which relate to the Treasury function and compliance with limits 
  
6.1 The County Council is required by the CIPFA Prudential Code to report the actual prudential 
indicators after the end of each year.  There are eight indicators which relate to treasury 
management and they are set out in Appendix D.   
 
7. Conclusion and reason for recommendation 
 
7.1 This report updates the Cabinet and fulfils the requirement to submit an annual/half yearly 
report in the form prescribed in the Treasury Management Code of Practice.   Short term lending 
achieved improved returns toward the end of the year.   This reflects the objective to ensure so far as 
possible in the financial climate, a prudent approach with security and liquidity as the main criteria 
before yield.  Exposure to future risk continues to be minimised through proactive and constant 
review of the treasury management policy.  The emphasis must continue to be able to pre-empt/react 
quickly if market conditions worsen. 

 

KEVIN FOSTER 

Chief Operating Officer 
 
Contact Officer: Ola Owolabi Tel No. 01273 482017  
Local Member(s): All  
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Cabinet    26 January 2013 Treasury Management Strategy for 2013/14 

     28 January 2014 Treasury Management Strategy for 2014/15 
 
CIPFA Prudential Code and Treasury Management in the Public Services- Code of practice 
Local Government Act 2003 Local Government Investments guidance 
 

96
Page 100



 
 
 

Appendix A  
 
A summary of the strategy agreed for 2013/14 and the economic factors affecting this strategy 
and amendments to this strategy in the year 
 
1.  Background information 

1.1 Cabinet receive an annual Treasury Management Strategy report in January 2013, which sets 
out the proposed strategy for the year ahead. This strategy includes the limits and criteria for 
organisations to be used for the investment of cash surpluses and has to be approved by the County 
Council. 
 
1.2 This Council has always adopted a prudent approach to its investment strategy and in the last 
few years, there have been regular changes to the list of the approved organisations used for 
investment of short term surpluses. This list is regularly reviewed to ensure that the Council is able to 
invest in the best available rates consistent with low risk; the organisations are regularly monitored to 
ensure that their financial strength and low risk has been maintained. 
 
1.3 When the original strategy for 2013/14 was drawn up in January 2013, the money markets 
were still volatile with Banks reluctant to lend to each other.  In this climate ensuring the security of 
investments continues to be difficult and caution has to be taken on where surplus funds can be 
invested.   
 
1.4 At the same time, the Treasury Management Policy Statement was agreed as unchanged for 
2013/14.   
 
East Sussex County Council defined its treasury management activities as: 

“The management of the organisation’s cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions (other than those of the Pension Fund) the effective management of the risks associated 
with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 

The County Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and management of risk to be 
the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury management activities will be measured.  
Accordingly, the analysis and reporting of treasury management activities will focus on their risk 
implications for the organisation. 

This authority acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide support towards the 
achievement of its business and service objectives.  It is therefore committed to the principles of 
achieving best value in treasury management, and to employing suitable performance measurement 
techniques, within the context of effective risk management. 

 
2.  Long term borrowing 
2.1 County Council’s past strategy was to borrow to support the Capital Programme and lend out 
other cash (rather than using internal borrowing).  Historically this meant that the interest rate earned 
on cash balances was higher than the interest rate paid on loans from the Public Works Loans Board 
(PWLB).  In the current financial climate, this interest rate differential has been removed.  No new 
PWLB borrowing has taken place since January 2008.    The average rate of all debt at 31 March 
2014 of £262.9m is 5.20% (2012/13 of £264.2m is 5.20%). No new loans have been taken and no 
beneficial rescheduling of debt has been available 

2.2 Our opportunity to restructure our debt has been significantly reduced since October 2010 as 
a result of the PWLB increasing all of its lending rates by 1% as part of the Government’s 
Comprehensive Spending Review.  However, it did not increase the rate of interest used for repaying 
debt so that not only the cost of our future borrowing has increased but our opportunity to restructure 
our debt when market conditions allow has been significantly reduced. 

2.3 The Council will not borrow purely in order to profit from the investment of the extra sums 
borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing 

97
Page 101



Requirement estimates, and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be 
demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds. 

 
3.  Investment 
3.1 When the strategy was agreed in January of 2013, the advice given to us by our advisors, 
Capita, was that short term rates were expected to remain on hold for a considerable time.  Economic 
forecasting remained  troublesome with so many extermal influences weighing on the UK. There was 
consensus among analysts that the economy would remain weak and whilst there was still a broad 
range of views as to potential performance. Key areas of uncertainty included: 

 the potential for the Eurozone to withdraw support for Greece at some point if the costs of 
such support escalate were to become prohibitive, so causing a worsening of the Eurozone 
debt crisis and heightened risk of the breakdown of the bloc or even of the currency itself;  

 inter government agreement on how to deal with the overall Eurozone debt crisis could 
fragment; the impact of the Eurozone crisis on financial markets and the banking sector;  

 the impact of the Government’s austerity plan on confidence and growth and the need to 
rebalance the economy from services to manufactured goods;  

 the under-performance of the UK economy which could undermine the Government’s policies 
that have been based upon levels of growth that are unlikely to be achieved;  

 the risk  of the UK’s main trading partners, in particular the EU and US, falling into recession ;  

 stimulus packages failing to stimulate growth;  

 elections due in Germany in 2013;  

 potential for protectionism i.e. an escalation of the currency war / trade dispute between the 
US and China.  

 the potential for action to curtail the Iranian nuclear programme 

 the situation in Syria deteriorating and impacting other countries in the Middle East 

 the focus of so many consumers, corporates and banks on reducing their borrowings, rather 
than spending, will continue to act as a major headwind to a return to robust growth in 
western economies.   

The overall balance of risks remained weighted to the downside. Lack of economic growth, both 
domestically and overseas, would impact on confidence putting upward pressure on unemployment. 
It would also further knock levels of demand which would bring the threat of recession back into 
focus. 

3.2 Capita believed that the longer run trend is for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise due to the 
high volume of gilt issuance in the UK, and the high volume of debt issuance in other major western 
countries. 

3.3 Given the weak outlook for economic growth, Capita saw the prospects for any interest rate 
changes before mid-2013 as very limited.  There was potential for the start of Bank Rate increases to 
be even further delayed if growth disappointed. 

 
4.  Revised Strategy agreed for 2013/14 
4.1 The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on Local Government 
Investments (“the Guidance”) and the 2011 revised CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services 
Code of Practice and Cross Sector Asset Services al Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”). The 
Council’s investment priorities will be security first, liquidity second, and then return.  The strategy 
adopted in the original Treasury Management Strategy Report for 2013/14 approved by the Council 

98
Page 102



on 29 January 2013, was subject to revision during the year due to a review of the Council’s treasury 
management activities and counterparty list.   
 
4.2 The strategy ensured that in the current economic climate a prudent approach was 
maintained.  This would be achieved through investing with selected banks and funds which meet the 
Council’s rating criteria.  The emphasis would continue on security (protection of the capital sum 
invested) and liquidity (keeping money readily available for expenditure when needed) rather than 
yield. The strategy continued with this prudent approach. 
 
4.3 It was recognised that movements within the money markets can happen with no notice and 
the Chief Finance Officer would have to amend this strategy in order to safeguard Council funds.  As 
in the past any such actions would be reported to the next Cabinet meeting. 
 
4.4 The expectation for interest rates within the strategy for 2013/14 anticipated low but rising 
Bank Rate (starting in quarter 1 of 2015), and gradual rises in medium and longer term fixed 
borrowing rates during 2013/14.  Variable, or short-term rates, were expected to be the cheaper form 
of borrowing over the period.  Continued uncertainty in the aftermath of the 2008 financial crisis 
promoted a cautious approach, whereby investments would continue to be dominated by low 
counterparty risk considerations, resulting in relatively low returns compared to borrowing rates. 
 
4.5 In this scenario, the treasury strategy was to postpone borrowing to avoid the cost of holding 
higher levels of investments and to reduce counterparty risk.    External borrowing would only take 
place if the rates available were so low that the long term benefits would significantly exceed the 
short term cost.  Opportunities for cost effective repayment of existing debt and restructuring 
opportunities were to be constantly monitored and would be taken if and when they emerge.   
 
4.6 All of the investments were classified as Specified and non-Specified Investments.  These 
investments were sterling investments for up to two years maturity with institutions deemed to be 
high credit quality or with the UK Government (Debt Management Account Deposit Facility).  These 
were considered low risk assets where the possibility of loss of principal or investment income was 
small.       
 
4.7 Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year under the ‘Non-Specified and 
Specified’ Investments categories. The County Council funds would be invested as follows:- 
 
Specified Investments  

4.8 The use of Specified Investments - Investment instruments identified for use in the financial 
year are as follows:  
 Table below set out the types of investments that fall into each category, counterparties available 

to the Council, and the limits placed on each of these. A detailed list of each investment type is 
available in the Treasury Management Practices guidance notes; 

 all investments will be within the UK or AAA sovereign rated countries. 
 The Council’s investments in Lloyds Banking Group were based on the fact that this group is part-

nationalised by UK Government, and any changes to their credit ratings will impact on the 
duration of the Council investment with the Group. 

Counterparty 
Country/Do

micile 
Instrument 

Maximum 
investments 

Max. maturity 
period 

Debt Management and Depost 
Facilities (DMADF) UK Term Deposits unlimited 12 months 

Government Treasury blls UK Term Deposits unlimited 12 months 

Local Authorities UK Term Deposits unlimited 12 months 
RBS/NatWest Group 

 Royal Bank of Scotland 

 NatWest 

UK Term Deposits 
(including 
callable 

£60m 1 yr 

99
Page 103



Counterparty 
Country/Do

micile 
Instrument 

Maximum 
investments 

Max. maturity 
period 

Lloyds Banking Group 

 Lloyds Bank 

 Bank of Scotland 

UK deposits), 
Certificate of 

Deposits 
 

£60m 1 yr 

Barclays UK £60m 1 yr 

Santander UK UK £60m 1 yr 

HSBC UK £60m 1 yr 

Individual Money Market 
Funds 

UK/Ireland/
domiciled 

AAA rated 
Money Market 

Funds 
£60m Liquidity/instan

t access 

Counterparties in select countries (non-UK) with a Sovereign Rating of at least AAA 

Australia & New Zealand 
Banking Group  Australia 

Term 
Deposits/Call 

Accounts 
£60m 1 yr 

Commonwealth Bank of 
Australia Australia 

Term 
Deposits/Call 

Accounts 
£60m 1 yr 

National Australia    Bank  
Australia 

Term 
Deposits/Call 

Accounts 
£60m 1 yr 

Westpac Banking Corporation 
Australia 

Term 
Deposits/Call 

Accounts 
£60m 1 yr 

Royal Bank of Canada 
Canada 

Term 
Deposits/Call 

Accounts 
£60m 1 yr 

Toronto Dominion 
Canada 

Term 
Deposits/Call 

Accounts 
£60m 1 yr 

Nordea Bank Finland 
Finland 

Term 
Deposits/Call 

Accounts 
£60m 1 yr 

Cooperatieve Centrale 
Raiffeisen Boerenlleenbank BA Netherlands 

Term 
Deposits/Call 

Accounts 
£60m 1 yr 

Development Bank of Singapore  
Singapore 

Term 
Deposits/Call 

Accounts 
£60m 1 yr 

Oversea Chinese Banking Corp 
Singapore 

Term 
Deposits/Call 

Accounts 
£60m 1 yr 

United Overseas Bank 
Singapore 

Term 
Deposits/Call 

Accounts 
£60m 1 yr 

Svenska Handelsbanken  
Sweden 

Term 
Deposits/Call 

Accounts 
£60m 1 yr 

Nordea Bank AB 
Sweden 

Term 
Deposits/Call 

Accounts 
£60m 1 yr 

 
Non Specified Investments  

4.9 Non-Specified investments are any other type of investment (i.e. not defined as specified 
above). The identification and rationale supporting the selection of these other investments and the 

100
Page 104



maximum limits to be applied are set out in Table below.  Non specified investments would include 
any sterling investments. 

 

Non-Specified Investment 
Minimum credit 

criteria 
Maximum 

investments 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

UK Local Authorities Government 
Backed £60m 2 years 

 
4.10 The Council continues to recognise that movements within the money markets can happen 
with no notice and the Chief Finance Officer would have to amend the strategy in order to safeguard 
Council funds.  As in the past any such actions would be reported to the next Cabinet meeting. 
 
4.11  Additional requirements under the Code of Practice require the Council to supplement credit 
rating information.  Whilst the above criteria relies primarily on the application of credit ratings to 
provide a pool of appropriate counterparties for officers to use, additional operational market 
information has been and will continue to be applied before making any specific investment decision 
from the agreed pool of counterparties.  This additional market information (for example Sovereign 
ratings,  Credit Default Swaps, equity prices, the Capita security and liquidity model and the CIPFA 
National treasury risk model as well as media updates etc.) would be assessed when comparing the 
relative security of differing investment counterparties. 
 
4.12 All Money Market Funds used are monitored and chosen by the size of fund, rating agency 
recommendation, exposure to other Countries (Sovereign debt), weighted average maturity and 
weighted average life of fund investment and counterparty quality. 
 
5. The Economy and Interest Rates in 2013/14 
5.1 The financial year 2013/14 continued the challenging investment environment of previous 
years, namely low investment returns, although levels of counterparty risk had subsided somewhat. 
The original expectation for 2013/14 was that Bank Rate would not rise during the year and for it only 
to start gently rising from quarter 1 2015.  This forecast rise has now been pushed back to a start in 
quarter 3 2015.  Economic growth (GDP) in the UK was virtually flat during 2012/13 but surged 
strongly during the year.  Consequently there was no additional quantitative easing during 2013/14 
and Bank Rate ended the year unchanged at 0.5% for the fifth successive year.  While CPI inflation 
had remained stubbornly high and substantially above the 2% target during 2012, by January 2014 it 
had, at last, fallen below the target rate to 1.9% and then fell further to 1.7% in February.  It is also 
expected to remain slightly below the target rate for most of the two years ahead.   
 
5.2 Gilt yields were on a sharply rising trend during 2013 but volatility returned in the first quarter 
of 2014 as various fears sparked a flight to quality.   The Funding for Lending Scheme, announced in 
July 2012, resulted in a flood of cheap credit being made available to banks which then resulted in 
money market investment rates falling drastically in the second half of that year and continuing into 
2013/14.  That part of the Scheme which supported the provision of credit for mortgages was 
terminated in the first quarter of 2014 as concerns rose over resurging house prices.   
 
5.3 The UK coalition Government maintained its tight fiscal policy stance but recent strong 
economic growth has led to a cumulative, (in the Autumn Statement and the March Budget), 
reduction in the forecasts for total borrowing, of £97bn over the next five years, culminating in a £5bn 
surplus in 2018-19.  
 
5.4 The EU sovereign debt crisis subsided during the year and confidence in the ability of the 
Eurozone to remain intact increased substantially.  Perceptions of counterparty risk improved after 
the ECB statement in July 2012 that it would do “whatever it takes” to support struggling Eurozone 
countries; this led to a return of confidence in its banking system which has continued into 2013/14 
and led to a move away from only very short term investing.  However, this is not to say that the 
problems of the Eurozone, or its banks, have ended as the zone faces the likelihood of weak growth 
over the next few years at a time when the total size of government debt for some nations is likely to 
continue rising.  Upcoming stress tests of Eurozone banks could also reveal some areas of concern. 
 
 

101
Page 105



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix B  
 
The treasury management activity during the year  
 
1. Short term lending interest rates 
1.1 Base interest rate remained at 0.5% throughout 2013/14.  The rate is the lowest ever rate and 
the rate has remained unchanged for the longest period on record. The last change was over five 
years ago in March 2009. 

1.2 There have been continued uncertainties in the markets during the year to date as set out in 
Section 5 of Appendix A.  

1.3 Additional market information including Sovereign ratings,  Credit Default Swaps, equity 
prices, the Capita security and liquidity model and the CIPFA National treasury risk model as well as 
media updates etc., have been used to assess the relative security of differing investment 
counterparties. 

1.4 The strategy for 2013/14, agreed in January 2013, continued the prudent approach and 
ensured that all investments were only to the highest quality rated banks and only up to a period of 
up to two years.   

1.5 The total amount received in short term interest for 2013/14 was £1.35m at an average rate of 
0.39%.  This was below the average of base rates in the same period (0.5%) and against a backdrop 
of ensuring, so far as possible in the financial climate, the security of principal and the minimisation of 
risk.  This base rates return improved slightly towards the end of the financial year as a result of 
implementing a revised strategy approved in January 2014. 

2. Long term borrowing 

2.1 The County Council has had a strategy to borrow to support the Capital Programme and lend 
out surplus cash.  Historically this meant that the interest rate earned on cash balances was higher 
than the interest rate paid on loans from the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB).  In the current 
financial climate, this interest rate differential has been removed.  The cost of new borrowing is now 
well in excess of the rate achievable on our investments.   
 
2.2 Given the current low rates of interest available, the Council has given consideration to 
possible future tranches of borrowing. In the short term this may lead to a ‘cost of carry’ as the 
interest rate on debt is higher than the rate at which we are earning interest on investments. 
However, from a medium to long term perspective, borrowing at these levels will save the Council 
many millions of pounds as forecasts for borrowing rates increase due to inflationary pressures in the 
system. 
 
2.3 The average interest rate of all debt at 31 March 2014 of £262.9m was 5.20%. 
 
2.4 Opportunities for cost effective repayment of existing debt and restructuring opportunities 
were constantly monitored but none emerged in the first six months of the year. 
 
2.5 In the autumn of last year, the Department of Communities and Local Government asked 
local authorities to make a return to enable them to benefit from a small reduction in all of the PWLB 
rates for new loans.  The PWLB “certainty rate” as it has been named reduced PWLB borrowing 
rates by 0.20% for most local authorities from November 2012.  A return was submitted to keep our 
options open but despite this reduction, East Sussex did not borrow as the long term benefit did not 
exceed the short term costs. 
 
    
 

102
Page 106



 

 

 

 

2.6 The range of interest rates payable in all of the loans is illustrated in the graph below: 

 
 
3.  Short term borrowing 
3.1 No borrowing was undertaken on a short-term basis during 2013/14 to date to cover 
temporary overdraft situations. 
 
4 Treasury Management Advisers 

4.1 The Strategy for 2013/14 explained that the County Council uses Capita as its treasury 
management consultant on a range of services which include:  

 Technical support on treasury matters, capital finance issues and advice on reporting; 

 Economic and interest rate analysis; 

 Debt services which includes advice on the timing of borrowing; 

 Debt rescheduling advice surrounding the existing portfolio; 

 Generic investment advice on interest rates, timing and investment instruments; 

 Credit ratings from the three main credit rating agencies and other market information;   

 Assistance with training on treasury matters 

Whilst the advisers provide support to the internal treasury function, under current market rules and 
the CIPFA Code of Practice the final decision on treasury matters remained with the Council.  This 
service remains subject to regular review. 

 
4.2 Capita is the largest provider of Treasury Management advice services to local authorities in 
the UK and they claim to be the market leading treasury management service provider to their 
clients.  The advice has been and will continue to be monitored regularly to ensure a continued 
excellent advisory service.    
 
 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

3.01 to 4% 4.01 to 5% 5.01 to 6% 6.01 to 7% 7.01 to 8% 8.01 to 9%

£
m

 

% Interest Rate 

Fixed Rate Loans at 31 March 2014 

Existing loans at 31
March

103
Page 107



 
 
 
 

Appendix C  
 

The Treasury Management Activity Mid-Year Report - 2014/15 
 
1. Background 
 
1.1 As part of the County Council's governance arrangements for its treasury management 
activities, the Audit, Best Value and Community Services Scrutiny Committee is charged with 
oversight of the County Council’s treasury management activities. To enable the Committee to fulfil 
this role, the Committee receives regular reports on treasury management issues and activities. 
Reports on treasury activity are discussed on a monthly basis with the Chief Finance Officer and the 
content of these reports is used as a basis for this report to the Committee. 
 
1.2 The Treasury Management and Annual Investment Strategy for 2014/15 were approved by 
the Cabinet 28 January 2014 and there have been no policy changes to date.  This report considers 
treasury management activity over the first quarter months of the financial year. 
 
Summary of financial implications 
 
1.3 The level of Council debt at June 2014 is currently £262.9m with two loans totalling £2.6m 
maturing with the PWLB in September 2014. The forecast for interest paid on long-term debt in 
2014/15 is approximately £13.6m and is within the budgeted provision. The average balance of 
investments of approximately £383m generated investments income of £560k to June 2014. The 
forecast for 2014/15 is £2.0m, exceeding the previous year outturn of £1.35m.  
 
2. Treasury Management Strategy 
 
2.1 The Council approved the 2014/15 treasury management strategy at its meeting on 28 
January 2014. The Council’s stated investment strategy is to prudently manage an investment policy 
achieving first of all, security (protecting the capital sum from loss), liquidity (keeping money readily 
available for expenditure when needed), and to consider what yield can be obtained consistent with 
those priorities. 
 
2.2 The Council's exposure to security and interest rate risk could have been reduced by repaying 
some of the £262.9m outstanding long-term debt as at 30 June 2014, and, where possible, by 
rescheduling the average maturity of the loans. However under the current economic conditions the 
costs of doing so in terms of interest and premium payable would be prohibitive. 
 
2.3 The Chief Finance Officer is pleased to report that all treasury management activity 
undertaken from 1 April to 30 June 2014 period broadly complied with the approved strategy, the 
CIPFA Code of Practice, and the relevant legislative provisions.  
 
3. Economic Review 
 
3.1 After strong UK GDP growth of 0.7%, 0.8% and 0.7% in quarters 2, 3 and 4 respectively in 
2013, and 0.8% in Q1 2014, it appears very likely that strong growth will continue into 2014 as 
forward surveys are very encouraging.  There are also positive indications that recovery is starting to 
broaden away from reliance on consumer spending and the housing market into construction, 
manufacturing, business investment and exporting. This strong growth has resulted in unemployment 
falling much faster through the threshold of 7%, set by the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) last 
August, before it said it would consider any increases in Bank Rate.  The MPC has, therefore, now 
broadened its forward guidance by adopting five qualitative principles and looking at a much wider 
range of about eighteen indicators in order to form a view on how much slack there is in the economy 
and how quickly slack is being used up. Accordingly, markets are expecting a first increase around 
the end of 2014. 
 

104
Page 108



3.2 Also encouraging has been the sharp fall in inflation (CPI), reaching 1.5% in May, the lowest 
rate since 2009.  Forward indications are that inflation is likely to fall further in 2014 to possibly 1%.  
The return to strong growth has also helped lower forecasts for the increase in Government debt by 
£73bn over the next five years, as announced in the Autumn Statement, and by an additional £24bn, 
as announced in the March 2014 Budget - which also forecast a return to a significant budget 
surplus, (of £5bn), in 2018-19.  However, monthly public sector deficit figures have disappointed in 
this quarter. 
 
3.3 In June, the Federal Reserve continued with its monthly $10bn reductions in asset purchases, 
which started in December 2014. Asset purchases have now fallen from $85bn to $35bn and are 
expected to stop by Q3 201, providing strong economic growth continues this year.  First quarter 
GDP figures were depressed by exceptionally bad winter weather, but growth rates since then look 
as if they are recovering well. 
 
3.4 The Eurozone is facing an increasing threat from deflation.  In May, the inflation rate fell 
further, to reach 0.5%.  However, this is an average for all EZ countries and includes some countries 
with negative rates of inflation.  Accordingly, the ECB did take some rather limited action in June to 
loosen monetary policy in order to promote growth. 
 
Interest Rate Forecast 
 
3.5 The Council’s treasury advisor, Capita Asset Services, has provided the following forecast: 
 

 

Capita Asset Services undertook a review of its interest rate forecasts in May, after the Bank of 
England’s Inflation Report. However, more recent developments to the Bank of England’s forward 
guidance have necessitated a second updating in this quarter carried out on 30 June.  This latest 
forecast now includes a first increase in Bank Rate in quarter 1 of 2015 (previously quarter 4 of 
2015).   
 
3.6 Until 2013, the economic recovery in the UK since 2008 had been the worst and slowest 
recovery in recent history.  However, growth rebounded during 2013 and the first quarter of 2014 to 
surpass all expectations, propelled by recovery in consumer spending and the housing market.  
Forward surveys are currently very positive in indicating that growth prospects are also strong for the 
rest of 2014, not only in the UK economy as a whole, but in all three main sectors, services, 
manufacturing and construction. This is very encouraging as there does need to be a significant 
rebalancing of the economy away from consumer spending to construction, manufacturing, business 
investment and exporting in order for this start to recovery to become more firmly established.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

105
Page 109



 
Appendix D  

 
Prudential Indicators which relate to the Treasury function and compliance with limits 

  
1.1 The County Council is required by the Prudential Code to report the actual prudential 
indicators after the end of each year.  There are eight indicators which relate to treasury 
management and they are set on an annual basis and monitored, they comprise:-: 
 

 Operational and authorised borrowing limits which includes short term borrowing 
(paragraph 1.2 below)   

 Interest rate exposure (paragraph 1.3 below)   
 Interest rate on long term borrowing (paragraph 1.4 below)   
 Maturity structure of debt (paragraph 1.5 below)     
 Maturity structure of investments (paragraph 1.6 below)      
 Compliance with the Treasury Management Code of Practice (paragraph 1.7 below)   
 Interest on investments (paragraph 1.8 below)   
 Capital Financing Requirement and Minimum Revenue Provision (paragraph 1.9 below)   

 
 
1.2 Operational and authorised borrowing limits. 
  
The tables below sets out the estimate and projected capital financing requirement and long-term 
borrowing in 2013/14 
 

 CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14 

  Estimate 
 

 £m 

Revised 
Estimate 

£m      

Estimated 
Actual  

 
£m      

 Capital financing requirement at 1 April 2013 396       387 387 
ADD Financing of new assets 21        -            -             
LESS Provision for repayments of debt -16       -17            -15 
  -------    ------- ------- 
 Capital financing requirement  at 31 March 2014 

 
401      370 372 

ADD Net borrowing for next year         54        10  
  -------     -------  
 Operational boundary  455      380  
ADD Short term borrowing            20       20 Nil 
  -------     -------  
 Authorised limit 475     400  

 
 ACTUAL BORROWING 2013/14 

  Actual £m      

 Long term borrowing at 1 April 2013 264.2 
   
LESS Loan redemption -1.3 
   

 Long term borrowing at 31 March 2014 262.9 

 
The Capital Financing Requirement includes PFI Schemes and Finance Leases. 
 
A revised Authorised Limit for 2013/14 of £400m reflected the move to International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and previously agreed Private Finance Initiative (PFI) contracts and 
some leases (being reclassified as finance leases instead of operating leases) coming onto the 
County Council Balance Sheets as long term liabilities.  This new accounting treatment impacted on 
the Authorised Limit.   
 

106
Page 110



The Operational boundary for borrowing was based on the same estimates as the authorised limit.  It 
reflected directly the authorised borrowing limit estimate without the additional amount for short term 
borrowing included to allow, for example, for unusual cash movements.  The Operational boundary 
represents a key management tool for in year monitoring and long term borrowing control.   
 
The Authorised limit was consistent with the County Council’s current commitments, existing plans 
and the proposals for capital expenditure and financing, and with its approved treasury management 
policy statement and practices.  It was based on the estimate of most likely, prudent but not worst 
case scenario, with in addition sufficient headroom (short term borrowing) over and above this to 
allow for day to day operational management, for example unusual cash movements or late receipt of 
income.  Risk analysis and risk management strategies were taken into account as were plans for 
capital expenditure, estimates of the capital financing requirement and estimates of cash flow 
requirements for all purposes. 
 
The Authorised limit is the “Affordable Borrowing Limit” required by S3 of the Local Government Act 
2003 and must not be breached. The Long Term borrowing at 31st March 2014 of £262.9m is under 
the Operational boundary and Authorised limit set for 2013/14.  The Operational boundary and 
Authorised limit have not been exceeded during the year. 
 
1.3 Interest rate exposure 
  
The County Council continued the practice of seeking to secure competitive fixed interest rate 
exposure for 2013/14.  To provide flexibility however it set limits on our variable rate exposure in case 
that became a more effective approach.  There are figures for both borrowing and lending and a 
combined borrowing and lending table. 
 

Borrowing       2013/14   2013/14 
      Estimate   Actual 

 Fixed Rate Exposure       
  Upper Limit          100%            85%  
  Lower Limit *           85%        
 
 Variable Rate Exposure      
  Upper Limit             15%              15% 
  Lower Limit *             0%  
 
(* assumes all new borrowing is variable) 
 

Lending      
      

 Fixed Rate Exposure         
  Upper Limit         100%     56% 
  Lower Limit             0%     
        
 Variable Rate Exposure      
  Upper Limit         100%     44% 
  Lower Limit             0%            
 

Borrowing and Lending combined      
        
Fixed Rate Exposure       
 Upper Limit         100%     75%  

  Lower Limit           27%      
       
 Variable Rate Exposure      
  Upper Limit          100%     25% 
  Lower Limit              0% 
 

107
Page 111



In 2013/14, borrowing has continued to be at a fixed rate. The County Council has no variable rate 
loans.  Our lending has been both at fixed rates (to Banks and the Debt Management Office (DMO)) 
and variable rates (to Money Market Funds). 
 
1.4  Interest rate on long term borrowing  
 
The rate of interest taken on new long term borrowing will be monitored as the following targets have 
been set. 
  

 Rate taken on borrowing is within 0.25% of lowest point for set  loan period (i.e. 45-50 years) 
during the year 

 

 Rate taken is within lowest eighth of rates available for set loan period (i.e. 45-50 years) 
during the year 

 
No new borrowing has been taken in 2013/14.   
   
1.5  Maturity structure of debt 
 
The Council has set upper and lower limits for the maturity structure of its borrowings as follows. 
 
      Lower limit Upper limit   Actual 2013/14 
 Under 12 months           0%        25%    6% 
 12 months and within 24 months         0%        40%     2% 

24 months and within 5 years          0%        60%             14% 
 5 years and within 10 years          0%                  80%    8% 
 10 years and within 20 years          0%        80%             16% 
 20 years and within 30 years          0%        80%             15% 
 30 years and within 40 years          0%        80%               30% 
 40 years and above           0%        80%             10% 
          
The County Council has not exceeded the limits set in 2013/14. 
 
In addition, two targets have monitored the maturity structure of our debt.  Not more than £20m of 
debt should mature in any financial year and not more than 15% to mature in any two consecutive 
financial years.  New borrowing has been undertaken giving due consideration to the debt maturity 
profile, ensuring that an acceptable amount of debt is due to mature in any one financial year.  This 
helps to minimise the authority’s exposure to the risk of having to replace a large amount of debt in 
any one year or period when interest rates may be unfavourable.  The bar chart in the attached 
Annex 1 shows the maturity profile.   
 

1.6 Maturity structure of investments 
 
The Investment Guidance issued by the government, allowed local authorities the freedom to invest 
for more than for one year.  All investments over one year were to be classified as Non-Specified 
Investments.   The County Council had taken advantage of this freedom and non-Specified 
Investments are allowed to be held within our overall portfolio of investments and in line with our 
prudent approach in our strategy, no new long term investments (over 364 days) have been taken in 
2013/14. 
 
1.7 Compliance with the Treasury Management Code of Practice  

 
East Sussex County Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in 
the Public Services. 
 
 
 
 
 
1.8 Interest on investments 

108
Page 112



 
1.8.1. The table below sets out the average monthly rate received on our investments and 
compares it to the Bank of England Base rate to reflect both the interest rates available in the market 
and limitation in the use of counterparties. 
 

Month      Amount  
£000 

Monthly rate Margin against  
Base Rate 

April 140.7 0.50%  0.00% 
May 129.0 0.41% -0.09% 
June 103.9 0.34% -0.16% 
July 107.9 0.34% -0.16% 
August 103.8 0.33% -0.17% 
September 101.1 0.34% -0.16% 
October  100.7 0.35% -0.15% 
November 91.7 0.34% -0.16% 
December 104.6 0.34% -0.16% 
January 107.7 0.40% -0.10% 
February 112.5 0.47% -0.03% 
March 147.0 0.54%  0.04% 
Total for 2013/14 1.350.6 0.39% -0.11% 

 
1.8.2. The total amount received in short term interest for the year was £1.35m at an average rate of 
0.39%.   This was above the average of base rates in the same period (0.5%) but ensuring, so far as 
possible in the financial climate, the security of principal and the minimisation of risk.  This Council 
has continued to follow a prudent approach with security and liquidity as the main criteria before 
yield.  

1.9 Capital Financing Requirement and Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)  
 
1.9.1. The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR).  This figure is a gauge of the Council’s indebtedness.  The CFR 
results from the capital activity of the Council and resources used to pay for the capital spend.  It 
represents the 2013/14 unfinanced capital expenditure (see below table), and prior years’ net or 
unfinanced capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for by revenue or other resources.   
 
1.9.2. Part of the Council’s treasury activities is to address the funding requirements for this 
borrowing need.  Depending on the capital expenditure programme, the treasury service organises 
the Council’s cash position to ensure that sufficient cash is available to meet the capital plans and 
cash flow requirements.  This may be sourced through borrowing from external bodies (such as the 
Government, through the Public Works Loan Board [PWLB] or the money markets), or utilising 
temporary cash resources within the Council. 
 
1.9.3.  Reducing the CFR – the Council’s underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not allowed to rise 
indefinitely.  Statutory controls are in place to ensure that capital assets are broadly charged to 
revenue over the life of the asset.  The Council is required to make an annual revenue charge, called 
the Minimum Revenue Provision – MRP, to reduce the CFR.  This is effectively a repayment of the 
borrowing need.  This differs from the treasury management arrangements which ensure that cash is 
available to meet capital commitments.  External debt can also be borrowed or repaid at any time, 
but this does not change the CFR. 
 
1.9.4 The total CFR can also be reduced by: 

 the application of additional capital financing resources (such as unapplied capital receipts); or  
 charging more than the statutory revenue charge (MRP) each year through a Voluntary Revenue 

Provision (VRP).  

1.9.5. The Council’s 2013/14 MRP Policy (as required by CLG Guidance) was approved as part of 
the Treasury Management Strategy Report for 2013/14 on 29 January 2013. 
  
1.9.6. The Council’s CFR for the year is shown below, and represents a key prudential indicator.  It 
includes PFI and leasing schemes on the balance sheet, which increase the Council’s borrowing 

109
Page 113



need.  No borrowing is actually required against these schemes as a borrowing facility is included in 
the contract. 
CFR including appropriate balances and MRP charges for PFI Schemes and Finance Leases. 
 

 2013/14 
Actual 

2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

 £m £m £m £m 

Total CFR 372 360 395 390 

  -15 -12 35 -5 

Movement in CFR     
      
Movement in CFR represented by     
 Net financing need for the year (above) - 3 50 9 

MRP/VRP and other financing movements -15 -15 -15 -14 

Movement in CFR -15 -12 -35 -5 

  
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement 
 
1.10 The statutory requirement for local authorities to charge the Revenue Account each year with 
a specific sum for debt repayment has been replaced with a more flexible statutory guidance and a 
variety of options is provided to councils to replace the existing Regulations, so long as there is a 
prudent provision. 
 
1.11 The statutory duty is that a local authority shall determine for the financial year an amount of 
minimum revenue provision (MRP) that it considers to be prudent.  This replaces the previous 
prescriptive requirement that the minimum sum should be 4% of the Council’s Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR). 
 
1.12 To support the statutory duty the Government also issued a guidance, which required that a 
Statement on the Council’s policy for its annual MRP should be submitted to the full Council for 
approval before the start the financial year to which the provision will relate. The Council are 
therefore legally obliged to have regard to this MRP guidance in the same way as applies to other 
statutory guidance such as the CIPFA Prudential Code, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and 
the CLG guidance on Investments. 
 
1.13 The MRP guidance offered four options under which MRP might be made, with an overriding 
recommendation that the County Council should make prudent provision to redeem its debt liability 
over a period which is commensurate with that over which the capital expenditure is estimated to 
provide benefits (i.e. estimated useful life of the asset being financed).  
 
1.14 The move to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) involved Private Finance 
Initiative (PFI) contracts and some leases (being reclassified as finance leases instead of operating 
leases) coming onto the County Council Balance Sheets as long term liabilities.  This accounting 
treatment impacted on the Capital Financing Requirement with the result that an annual MRP 
provision will be required.  
 
1.15 The policy recommended for adoption from 1 April 2013 retained the key elements of the 
policy previously approved but now incorporates the IFRS changes (re PFI and finance leases) and 
the consequential updated Government Guidance.  The policy adopted for 2013/14 is therefore as 
follows:- 
 
1.16 For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will be Supported 
Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy has been: 
 

110
Page 114



 Based on based on the non-housing CFR, i.e., The Council currently set aside a Minimum 
Repayment Provision based on basic MRP of 4% each year to pay for past capital 
expenditure and to reduce its CFR. 

 
1.17 From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing the MRP policy has been: 
 

 Asset Life Method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in accordance 
with the proposed regulations (this option will be applied for any expenditure capitalised 
under a Capitalisation Direction).  

 

 Asset Life Method (annuity method) The Council will also be adopting the annuity method, 
- MRP calculated according to the flow of benefits from the asset, and where the principal 
repayments increase over the life of the asset.   The policy is being adopted as a result of 
any PFI’s assets coming on the balance sheet and any related MRP will be equivalent to 
the “capital repayment element” of the annual service charge payable to the PFI Operator 
and for finance leases, MRP will also be equivalent to the “capital repayment (principal) 
element” of the annual rental payable under the lease agreement.  

 
Under both methods, the Council has the option to charge more than the statutory MRP each year 
through a Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

111
Page 115



Annex 1 

LOBO Loan Call £12,900,000

LOBO Loan Call £23,000,000

£0 £5,000,000 £10,000,000 £15,000,000 £20,000,000 £25,000,000 £30,000,000

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

2026/27

2027/28

2028/29

2029/30

2030/31

2031/32

2032/33

2033/34

2034/35

2035/36

2036/37

2037/38

2038/39

2039/40

2040/41

2041/42

2042/43

2043/44

2044/45

2045/46

2046/47

2047/48

2048/49

2049/50

2050/51

2051/52

2052/53

2053/54

2054/55

2055/56

2056/57

Value of loans maturing in year

Y
e

a
r 

o
f 

M
a

tu
ri

ty
ESCC Debt Maturity Profile 31st March 14   

Interest Rate Below
5%

Interest Rate Above
5%

 

112
Page 116


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 16 September 2014
	5a Scrutiny Review of Early Years Attainment: report of the Children's Services Scrutiny Committee
	cab141014Item 8a Early Years Review Cabinet Covering Report
	Agenda Item    5a
	Cabinet
	RECOMMENDATION – to consider any comments the Cabinet wishes to make to the County Council on the report of the Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee.
	1. Financial Appraisal


	cab141014item8aScrutiny Review of Early Years Attainment Report (Cabinet version) Appendix 1
	Overview
	Factors affecting attainment
	1. Home learning environment and the role of Children’s Centres
	A nurturing home
	The role of children’s centres

	2. Take up of early years education places and access
	Take up of funded places
	Access

	3. Structure and nature of early years provision
	The structure of the early years sector
	Transitions and quality across the foundation stage.
	The nature of early years providers

	4. Quality of settings
	Foundation stage profile weaknesses
	Quality assurance.
	Assessment consistency
	Ofsted inspections
	Early years expertise in primary schools

	5. Qualification level of staff and training
	Staff qualifications
	Training

	Issues
	6. Funding
	Early years funding formula
	Other funded early years services
	Potential changes to the way ESCC funds early years

	Conclusions
	7. Concluding comments
	Appendix
	Scope and terms of reference
	Review Board Members
	Support to the Board was provided by the following officers:

	Witnesses
	Review Board meeting dates

	List of evidence papers
	Early Years Foundation Stage areas of learning and their associated early learning goals


	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	5b Early Years attainment: observations on the Scrutiny committee's report
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	6 East Sussex Councils' "Open for Growth" Peer Challenge update
	C - Open for Growth Peer Challenge Update - SP - report
	C - Open for Growth Peer Challenge Update - SP - appendix 1
	Appendix 1
	Investment (open for growth)
	Peer Challenge
	10 - 14 March 2014
	1. The Investment (open for growth) peer challenge
	2. Executive Summary
	o operate at a new level of maturity based on openness and trust between the partners
	o co-ordinate delivery vehicles; influence and advise on commissioning delivery
	o involve key public/private/third sector players as an executive driving force for the economic growth agenda
	o create the East Sussex ‘narrative’ which reflects the varying need and ambition across the county and which sets out an agreed vision for the future
	o ensure the right economic partnerships exist to deliver and initiate action and strategic thinking at a local and thematic level
	o encourage leadership and participation by all partners
	o operate a “light touch” approach that values innovation and creativity by all partners and enables rather than constrains this.
	R3: Partnership working
	R4: Business focus
	R5: Key message
	4. Detailed findings
	There is an East Sussex Housing Officers’ Group, which includes representation from registered social landlords (RSLs) and from County Council services, such as Children’s and Adults’ Services. This is good practice that enables a strategic housing vi...
	House building is starting to pick up. The annual average is circa 1,400 dwellings a year, with more than 30% of completions being for affordable housing.
	There were examples of enhanced service delivery achieved through innovative work conducted by councils to address housing priorities. In particular, work on the early adoption of Core Strategies has enabled significant housing and economic growth to ...
	 joint funding (Hastings – the Borough Council and the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) working together)
	 affordable housing at Compass Point, Bexhill (council and HCA funding)
	 64 new build council dwellings in Wealden nearing completion for handover, with a further phase planned, and 163 affordable homes delivered in the district in 2012/13
	 a key site development at North Street, Lewes (including housing, community infrastructure, a health centre and extra care housing)
	 a joint venture at Eastbourne with the Arm’s Length Management Organisation, for the council’s housing stock, working with the council to buy sites to build a mix of: market housing for outright sale; rented housing and affordable housing. Funding c...
	A notable feature of these schemes is how they have been developed to leverage external funding. This practice could be productively extended where councils might consider mechanisms to convert land or capital to work in partnership to leverage fundin...
	There are innovative housing models elsewhere that the East Sussex Councils might learn from. For example, Manchester City Council is building homes for sale and for market rent with HCA funding and in partnership with the Greater Manchester Pension F...
	Good work is being conducted to address housing market failure, in particular the imbalance of private rented sector housing and the quality of this stock, for example in Hastings - Seven Streets, St Leonards. This work is important as the comparative...
	The private sector rented sector housing imbalance is a feature of many coastal towns in the area, particularly in Hastings, and there is an opportunity to work on this collectively and share good practice. This could include licensing of Houses in Mu...
	A SELEP report, commissioned by the Coastal Communities Group, viewed housing market failure as an opportunity as, “housing is relatively cheap (hence viability issues) and development land is relatively available. Development of professionally manage...
	However, a coherent, shared vision and understanding of housing as an economic generator across East Sussex has not yet been articulated. Across England it is not uncommon to see housing, and housing numbers, driving Local Plans, indeed this appears t...
	With the team’s recommendation of an enhanced role for TES, the above East Sussex Housing Officer Group’s role might be adapted and strengthened by having the group report into TES so that housing is more closely linked to economic growth and the work...
	In the week following the peer challenge the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced a budget which places a heavy emphasis on housing, including:
	 Help to Buy – the equity loan scheme will be extended to March 2020 with an extra £6bn to help a further 120,000 households purchase a home.
	 Builders' Finance Fund – Government will provide a £500m recoverable Builders Finance Fund to provide loans to SME developers for sites of 15 to 250 units. Funding is available in 2015/16 and 2016/17 and will unlock 15,000 housing units stalled due ...
	 Estate Regeneration – Government will establish a £150m loan fund to kick-start the regeneration of some of the worst housing estates, with expressions of interest invited from private sector developers. Funding is available from 2015.
	 Custom Build – Government will consult on a new ‘Right to Build’ to give custom builders a right to buy a plot from councils. Government will be seeking a small number of councils to act as vanguards to test the model. A new £150m Serviced Plots loa...
	These present some opportunities for East Sussex that could be developed.
	The burgeoning ageing population for East Sussex has significant implications for future housing and social care provision for older people. ESCC has a comprehensive ‘Pathways to support and independence: a strategy for supported housing and housing s...
	However, East Sussex Councils have an opportunity to recognise and shape a market for housing needs for older people that would: deliver social benefit; address strategic housing priorities; and provide councils with a return on investment. The provis...
	There are good examples of supported development and new infrastructure. The Bexhill to Hastings Link Road has cost circa £113m and not only improves the transport links to Hastings and north to the A21 but is creating new opportunities for a new High...
	There is a clear consensus around the importance of a limited number of deliverable strategic transport investments that would best support future economic growth. If funding for these key schemes is not secured, or is delayed, authorities will need t...
	Councils will need to carefully review how they integrate economic growth and inclusion into their transport, housing and planning functions. This could be achieved by having proper regard to the SEP strategy (and subsequent East Sussex economic growt...
	As an example, the Greater Norwich Development Partnership (GNDP) has produced a Joint Core Strategy which brings together transport, housing and the economy 3TUwww.gndp.org.ukU3T.
	ESCC is drafting a corporate skills and training strategy which recognises many of the problems and issues that the area is working to address. This strategy prioritises engagement, retention, progression, connectivity and includes employer involvemen...
	This strategy and action plan will need to agree the working relationship with the current East Sussex Adult Learning and Skills Partnership Board, which includes representatives from further and higher education, the voluntary sector, Jobcentre Plus ...
	Some councils are set to increase their intake of apprentices matched by an increase also in the private sector. For example, ESCC currently has 20 apprenticeships and is aiming to increase this to 150 in coming years. The intention is that for large ...
	In Hastings, the University of Brighton will be expanding its intake from 800 to 2,000 students, specialising in a number of high tech. disciplines. This is significant for the number of students who will contribute to that part of the East Sussex eco...
	There are three employment hubs developing. Own Grown is a Hastings initiative and is a good example of a local project extended to operate across the Hastings and Rother area. The programme includes an Own Grown 1066 Pledge Apprenticeship initiative ...
	ESCC’s Connexions 360 website for young people is a helpful tool for young unemployed people (3TUhttp://www.connexions360.org.uk/Pages/default.aspx)U3T offering support, advice and signposting. This should have an important role in the action plan to ...
	As in many places, the range of partners involved in skills and training are many and the coordination of services poor. One quote obtained onsite was, “lots of avenues, no real coordination between the avenues” and “lots of strategy, so little delive...
	Again, as in many places, the curricula of schools and some further education organisations are still too demand and funding-led. There is an essential coordinating role to establish the skills and training needs for the current economy and to project...
	The ability of business and employers to influence and shape the training curricula of further and higher education providers will be essential for the new skills and training strategy and a good example of this is the University Technical College at ...
	The nature of the East Sussex economy means that there is a lack of large employers to drive systematic business engagement with the education and skills sector. With the preponderance of small and medium size enterprises (SMEs), it is essential that ...
	Levels of self-employment are high in East Sussex, with Wealden and Rother having the highest levels in the SELEP area. The importance of the self-employed to the local economy, and particularly as they may expand to become SMEs, emphasises the import...
	Local Government Association

	C - Open for Growth Peer Challenge Update - SP - appendix 2
	Appendix 2
	The Investment (open for growth) Peer Challenge – Towards an Action Plan: Collated interest levels and forward actions

	Blank Page

	7 East Sussex National Non Domestic Rates Pooling Agreement
	Cab 151014 item 7 amended recommendations

	8 Treasury Management: 2013/14 Stewardship/Half Year 2014/15 Report



